PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Oversight and Governance
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council

Ballard House

Plymouth PLI 3BJ

T 01752 305155
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

Published 27/11/24

Delegated Decisions

Delegated Executive/Officer Decisions

Delegated Executive and Officer decisions are published and are available at the
following link - https://tinyurl.com/mséumor

Cabinet decisions subject to call-in are published at the following link -http://tinyurl.com/yddrqllé

Notice of call-in for non-urgent decisions must be given to the Democratic Support Team by
4.30 pm on Wednesday 4 December 2024. Please note — urgent decisions and non-key Council
Officer decisions cannot be called in. Copies of the decisions together with background reports
are available for viewing as follows:

e on the Council's Intranet Site at https://modgov/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx

e on the Council’s website at https://tinyurl.com/jhnax4e

The decision detailed below may be implemented on Thursday 05 December 2024 if it is not
called-in.


https://tinyurl.com/ms6umor
http://tinyurl.com/yddrqll6
https://modgov/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://tinyurl.com/jhnax4e
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/

Delegated Decisions

l. Councillor Tudor Evans OBE - Leader of the Council:

[.1. L29 24/25 - Devonport Offsite Emergency Plan V8 (Pages | -316)



OFFICIAL Page 1 Agenda Item la

EXECUTIVE DECISION

made by a Cabinet Member

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY BY
AN INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER

Executive Decision Reference Number - L29 24/25

Decision

I Title of decision: Devonport Offsite Emergency Plan v8
2 Decision maker: Councillor Tudor Evans OBE (Leader of the Council)

3 Report author and contact details:

Dave Bate (Senior Civil Protection Officer) david.bate@plymouth.gov.uk
4 Decision to be taken:

|. Approve the revised Devonport Offsite Emergency Plan v8 (DOSEP)

5 Reasons for decision:

|. To ensure that the Council’s statutory contingency plans are updated, and have been subject
to the democratic approval process

6 Alternative options considered and rejected:

I. No other options are available due to the statutory nature of the plan (REPPIR 2019)

7 Financial implications and risks:

None

8 Is the decision a Key Decision? Yes No Per the Constitution, a key

(please contact Democratic decision is one which:

Support for further advice) X in the case of capital projects and
Please type an X into the relevant contract awards, results in a new
boxes commitment to spend and/or save in

excess of £3million in total

X in the case of revenue projects when
the decision involves entering into new
commitments and/or making new
savings in excess of £ million annually

X s significant in terms of its effect on
communities living or working in an
area comprising two or more wards
in the area of the local authority.

If yes, date of publication of the N/A
notice in the Forward Plan of Key



mailto:david.bate@plymouth.gov.uk
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FmgListPlans.aspx%3FRPId%3D254%26amp%3BRD%3D0

OFFICIAL

10

Decisions

Please specify how this decision is
linked to the Council’s corporate
plan/Plymouth Plan and/or the
policy framework and/or the
revenue/capital budget:

Please specify any direct
environmental implications of the
decision (carbon impact)

Urgent decisions

12a

12b

Page 2

By ensuring that our statutory contingency plans are
subject to the democratic process we are covering our
four core corporate purposes of being democratic,
responsible, fair and cooperative, as well as “keeping
children, adults and communities safe”. In addition, the
plan is a requirement under the Radiation (Emergency
Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations
2019.

None identified

Is the decision urgent and to be Yes (If yes, please contact Democratic

implemented immediately in
the interests of the Council or
the public?

Support
(democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk)
for advice)

Please type an X into the relevant  Ngo X (If no, go to section 13a)

box

Reason for urgency:

Scrutiny
Chair
Signature:

Scrutiny
Committee
name:

Print
Name:

Consultation

13a

13b

Are any other Cabinet members’
portfolios affected by the
decision?

Please type an X into the relevant box

Which other Cabinet member’s
portfolio is affected by the
decision?

Date

Yes X

No (If no go to section 14)

Councillor Sally Haydon (Cabinet Member for
Community Safety, Libraries, Events, Cemeteries and
Crematoria)


http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FmgListPlans.aspx%3FRPId%3D254%26amp%3BRD%3D0
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk

OFFICIAL Page 3

13c Date Cabinet member consulted 05 November 2024

14 Has any Cabinet member Yes If yes, please discuss with the
declared a conflict of interest in Monitoring Officer
relation to the decision? No X

Please type an X into the relevant box

15 Which Corporate Management Name Ruth Harrell
Team member has been

consulted? Job title Director of Public Health
Date 05/11/2024
consulted
Sign-off
16 Sign off codes from the relevant Democratic Support JS74 24/25
departments consulted: (mandatory)
Finance (mandatory) DJN.24.25.120
Legal (mandatory) LS/00003610/6/LB/
06/11/24
Procurement (if applicable) N/A
Corporate property (if N/A
applicable)
Human Resources (if N/A
applicable)
Appendices
17 Ref. Title of appendix
A 2024.11 DOSEP v8.0. OFFICIAL MARKED REDACTED EDITION
B Equalities Impact Assessment
Confidential/exempt information
18a Do you need to include any Yes X |Ifyes, prepare a second, confidential (‘Part
confidential/exempt information? II') briefing report and indicate why it is

Please type an X into the relevant box

not for publication by virtue of Part |of
No Schedule 12A of the Local Government

Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box in

18b below.

(Keep as much information as possible in
the briefing report that will be in the

public domain)




OFFICIAL Page 4

Exemption Paragraph Number

I 2 3 4 5 6 7

18b | Confidential/exempt briefing
report title:

DOSEP v8 Official Sensitive (un-
redacted) version

Background Papers

19 | Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below.

Background papers are unpublished works, relied on to a material extent in preparing the
report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the work is
based. If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it is not for
publication by virtue of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the
relevant box.

Title of background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number
I 2 3 4 5 6 7

Cabinet Member Signature

20 | agree the decision and confirm that it is not contrary to the Council’s policy and budget
framework, Corporate Plan or Budget. In taking this decision | have given due regard to the
Council’s duty to promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and
promote good relations between people who share protected characteristics under the
Equalities Act (2010) and those who do not. For further details please see the EIA attached.

Signature p ] Date of decision 26 November 2024

Print Name  Councillor Tudor Evans OBE (Leader of the Council)



Page 5
EEF\!'Q \ PORT OFF-SITE EMERGENCY PLAN

iation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019

IF ACTIVATING THIS PLAN FOR
A RADIATION EMERGENCY AT
HMNB DEVONPORT,
DEVONPORT ROYAL DOCKYARD,
CHARLIE, DELTA, ECHO BUOYS,
OR 22 & 23 ANCHORAGES

REFER IMMEDIATELY TO PAGE 29

DEVONPORT OFF-SITE EMERGENCY PLAN V.8.0.



OFFICIAL Page 6

| PART | - INTRODUCTION

I.1 Foreword

The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019, (REPPIR), place a
statutory duty on nuclear site operators, to prepare an on-site emergency plan. This obligation
extends to local authorities with nuclear operators in their area to prepare a written document, or
suite of documents, which constitute an off-site emergency plan designed to mitigate the
consequences of a radiation emergency outside the nuclear site.

The Devonport off-site Emergency Plan details how partner agencies work together during the
response and recovery phases of a radiation emergency and also outlines their roles and
responsibilities. This ensures, in the event of a radiation emergency, that members of the public are
protected from the effects of that emergency and a full range of functions and services are restored
off-site in a timely and structured manner.

The Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Local Resilience Forum endorse this plan.

(signed on original)
Mrs Tracey Lee

Chief Executive
Plymouth City Council

(signed on original)

Brig. Mike Tanner OBE RM
Naval Base Commander
HM Naval Base, Devonport

(signed on original)

Asst. Chief Constable Glen Mayhew

Chair of the Chief Officer Executive Board for the Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Local
Resilience Forum

Devon and Cornwall Police

(signed on original)

John Gane

Managing Director

Devonport Royal Dockyard Limited

DOSEP v8.0. Page 2



OFFICIAL Page 7

1.2 Aim

The aim of the Devonport off-site Emergency Plan and linked documents, is to detail the multi-agency
arrangements, designed to protect members of the public, in areas defined by the detailed emergency
planning zones, from a radiation emergency at the nuclear facilities provided at His Majesty’s Naval
Base (HMNB) Devonport or Devonport Royal Dockyard Limited'.

1.3  Objectives

* To activate the multi-agency response required to mitigate the consequences of a radiation
emergency outside the operator’s premises.

* To implement the measures necessary to protect members of the public and the environment
from the effects of a radiation emergency.

* To communicate all necessary safety information to members of the public before, during and
after a radiation emergency.

* To initiate an appropriate structure for community and environmental recovery from a radiation
emergency.

1.4 The Devonport Site

The term ‘Devonport Site’ means those areas at Devonport owned by the Ministry of Defence
(MOD) and Devonport Royal Dockyard Limited (DRDL).

The Devonport Site is situated in Plymouth, near the boundaries of Devon and Cornwall. The site
extends to an area of approximately 263 hectares and has 6.4km of water frontage.” situated on the
east bank of the River Tamar.

The Devonport Site includes the Dockyard Port of Plymouth®, where the Ministry of Defence (MOD)
also operates nuclear powered vessel moorings at CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO Buoys along with 22
and 23 Anchorages within Plymouth Sound. For the purposes of this plan, where the term
‘Devonport Site’ is used, unless clearly stated otherwise, this phrase includes these moorings and
anchorages.

I REPPIR (2019) Reg || (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019 Approved Code of Practice
and guidance (onr.org.uk), https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-20 | 9-acop.pdf) [24.07.24]

2 HMNB Devonport (https://www.royalnavy.mod.uk/our-organisation/bases-and-stations/naval-base/devonport) [24.07.24]
3 Dockyard Port of Plymouth Order 2020 (https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/126 | /contents/made) [24.07.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 3



https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-2019-acop.pdf
https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-2019-acop.pdf
https://www.royalnavy.mod.uk/our-organisation/bases-and-stations/naval-base/devonport
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/1261/contents/made

OFFICIAL Page 8

1.5 Regulated Nuclear Activity
HMNB Devonport incorporates the maintenance centre for the Royal Navy’s operational submarine
fleet. The site is equipped to conduct major refitting, refuelling and defuelling of nuclear-powered

submarines.

Two principal nuclear operators undertake operations involving ionising radiation at the Devonport
Site:

* The Naval Base (Ministry of Defence) under the Naval Base Commander Devonport.

* Devonport Royal Dockyard Limited (DRDL) (a part of the Babcock International Group) under
the Managing Director Naval Marine.

The Defence Nuclear Safety Regulator (DNSR) is responsible for regulating nuclear safety across the
Defence Nuclear Enterprise. The Naval Base (Ministry of Defence) is authorised to operate its
nuclear activities by DNSR.

The Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR) is the UK’s independent nuclear regulator for safety
security and safeguards. DRDL is both licensed to operate by ONR and authorised to operate
through DNSR.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 4



OFFICIAL

Page 9

CONTENTS
| PART | - INTRODUCTION
. Foreword
.2 Aim
.3 Objectives
.4  The Devonport Site
.5 Regulated Nuclear Activity
[.6  lllustrations & Diagrams
.7 Glossary of Terms
1.8  List of Acronyms
1.9  Plan Production and Maintenance

1.9.1 Plan Distribution

1.9.2  Updates and Amendments

1.9.3  Document Version Control
.10 Reviewing and Testing

[.10.1 Activation, Immediate Actions, Command and Control

1.10.2 Warning, Informing and Media
1.10.3 Public Urgent Protective Actions & Health Protection
1.10.4 Recovery
[.11 Public Information
.12 Local Liaison Committee (LLC)
I.13 Emergency Notification System, Public Alerting and the Devonport siren
|.14 The Emergency Notification System (ENS)
[.I15 Emergency Alerts
.16 The Devonport Sirens
.17 Berthing
.18 Emergency Planning Zones
[.19 Site Standby and Devonport Site Accident Arrangements
[.19.1 Site Standby and Reactor Safety Alerts
1.19.2 Devonport Site Accident
[.19.3 Classifying a Devonport Site Accident
.20 Off-site Nuclear Emergency and Declaration Qualifiers
1.20.1 Off-site Nuclear Emergency
1.20.2 Supplementary Declaration Qualifiers
.21  Activating the Plan

DOSEP v8.0. Page 5

w w w N DN

12
13
I5
19
19
20
20
21
21
22
22
23
24
25
25
25
25
25
26
26
27
27
27
27
28
28
28
28



OFFICIAL

Page 10
2 PART 2 - ACTIVATION, ACTIONS, COMMAND AND CONTROL
2.1  Plan Activation
2.1.1 Full Plan Activation
2.1.2  Partial Plan Activation
2.1.3  Activation for a false alarm

2.2 Collaborative Decision Making

2.3  Devonport off-site Nuclear Emergency Escalation
24  JEX€A Incident Alert - Local Response

24.1

Actions in Response to an Abnormal Event or False Alarm

2.5  JpNelap] Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan

2.5.1
252
253
254
255

Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan

Convene a DOSEP Restricted Pre-Event Assessment Teleconference (PEAT)
Publish the Resilience Direct Devonport Nuclear Emergency Response Page
Restricted PEAT Decisions

Convene a DOSEP multi-agency PEAT

2.6  JrX€SK Major Incident Declared

2.6.1
26.2
263
264
2.6.5
2.6.6
2.6.7
268
2,69
26.10
2.6.11
2.6.12
26.13
2.6.14

Declare a Major Incident and escalate to Tactical Coordinating Group (TCG)
Convene the Tactical Coordinating Group
Off-site Response - Tactical Coordinating Group
Opening the Tactical Coordination Centres and Resilient Locations
TCG Support Cells and Working Groups
Devonport Accident Control Centre — On-site to Off-site Tactical Link
Forward Command Post for Devonport Site
Additional Response Centres
Convene the Strategic Coordinating Group
Multi-agency Off-site Response — Strategic Coordinating Group
Preparation for initiating Urgent Protective Actions
Emergency Plans Activated in Support of Health Protection
Opening the Strategic Coordination Centre
SCG Support Cells and Working Groups

27 e Off-Site Nuclear Emergency Declaration

2.7.1
272
273
274
275
2.7.6
277

Off-Site Nuclear Emergency

Check Major Incident Declaration

Implement Urgent Protective Actions

Off-site Incident - Strategic Coordinating Group

Open the Strategic Coordination Centre

Establish Working Groups and Cells in support of SCC

Command, Control and Coordination

2.8 JEXel= Criteria for Handover from Response to Recovery
DOSEP v8.0. Page 6

29
29
29
29
29
30
31
32
32
33
33
33
34
35
35
37

38
38
39
39
39
39
39
40
40
41
41
41
42
43
43
43
43
44
44
44
45
46



OFFICIAL

3

3.1
3.2
3.3
34
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12
3.13
3.14
3.15
3.16

3A

3A.1.
3A2.
3A3.

Page 11

PART 3 — HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC
Protective actions

Preparation for initiating Urgent Protective Actions

Protective Actions in the Devonport DEPZ after OSNE

Stable lodine

Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - On Land - Devonport DEPZ

Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft

Communicating Health Information

Education and Early Years Settings

Population Radiation Monitoring

Health Protection Information

Protective Actions in the Outline Planning Zone

Health Communication Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ
Preplanning for Protective Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ
The UK Health Security Agency Role

The Science and Technical Advice Cell

Emergency Plans Activated in Support of Health Protection

HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC CHARLIE, DELTA and

ECHO BUOYS DEPZ

Advance Warning for Dispersal from or Evacuate the Bovisand / Staddon Areas

Advance Warning to Evacuate Drakes Island

Protective Actions in the CHARLIE, DELTA & ECHO Buoy DEPZ after OSNE

3A.4. Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft

3A5.

Stable lodine Tablet Deliveries

3A.6. Identified Stable lodine Delivery Locations

3B

HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC

22 & 23 ANCHORAGE DEPZ

3B.1.
3B.2.

Advance Warning to Evacuate the Area

Protective Actions in the 22 & 23 Anchorage DEPZ after OSNE

3B.3. Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft

DOSEP v8.0. Page 7

47
47
48
48
48
49
51
51
51
52
52
53
53
54
54
55
55

56
56
56
56
58
58
58

60
60
60
6l



OFFICIAL Page 12

4. PART 4 —- COMMUNICATIONS AND WARNING AND INFORMING
4.1.  Information to the Public and Media in the Event of a Radiation Emergency
4.2. Communications and Warning and Informing Objectives
4.2.1 Stakeholder and Communication Channels
4.3. Communication Activation
4.3.1. Communication Activation
4.3.2.  Activation for a false alarm
4.4. Incident Alert - Local Activity
44.1. Actions for Communication Leads
4.5. Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan Activation
4.5.1.  Actions for Communication Leads
4.6. Major Incident Declared
4.6.1. Tactical Level
4.6.2.  Strategic Level
4.6.3. Template Media Statements
4.6.4. Role of the Communications and Media Cell
4.6.5. Staffing the Communications and Media Cell
4.7.  Off-site Nuclear Emergency Declaration
4.7.2. Media Briefing and Interviews
4.7.3. Coordination with National Agencies/Government
4.7.4. Internal Communications
4.7.5. The Emergency Notification System
4.7.6. Emergency Alerts
4.7.7. Emergency Alerts REPPIR Request Process
4.7.8. Emergency Alerts SCG Request Process
4.7.9. Actions for Communication Leads
4.8. Pre-prepared Media Statement Templates
4.8.1. Incident Limited to the Devonport Site
4.8.2. A Nuclear Emergency is Declared Affecting Areas Outside the Dockyard
4.8.4. Off-site Nuclear Emergency
4.85. Off-site Nuclear Emergency

DOSEP v8.0. Page 8

62
62
62
63
66
66
66
66
66
66
67
68
68
68
68
68
69
70
70
70
71
71
71
71
72
73
74
74
75
79
8l



OFFICIAL Page 13

5 PART 5 — EMERGENCY PLANNING ZONE MAPS, MAPPING AND THE MAPPING CELL 82

5.1 Mapping to Support a Response to an Off-site Nuclear Emergency at the Devonport Site 82
52  Purpose of Mapping 82
5.3 Devonport Detailed Emergency Planning Zone 83
54  Devonport Outline Planning Zone 84
55 CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO Buoys Detailed Emergency Planning Zone 85
5.6 22 and 23 Anchorage Detailed Emergency Planning Zone 86
5.7  Plymouth Offshore Mooring and Anchorage Outline Planning Zone 87
5.8  Mapping and the Multi-Agency Information Cell 88
5.9  Multi-Agency Mapping Cell 88
5.10 Lead Mapping Officer 88
5.1 Mapping for a Radiation Emergency 88
5.12  Demographic Mapping, Focussed Engagement Areas and SIT Delivery Zones 89
5.13 Pre-prepared Mapping 89
5.14 Further Information Sources 90
5.15 Additional Mapping Layers 90
5.16 Example Map - Focussed Engagement Areas — Schools - Devonport DEPZ 90
5.17 Example Map Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Zones - Devonport DEPZ 91

6 PART 6 — RESPONDING AGENCIES’ RADIATION PROTECTION AND THE ROYG

SYSTEM 92
6.1  Radiation Protection Advice 92
6.2 ROYG System: Issuing Radiological Information to Off-site Responders 92
6.3 The ROYG Method 92
6.4 Communicating ROYG 92
6.5  Defining the Off-site Areas 93
6.6  Level of Radiological Hazard 93
6.7 Mapping ROYG Areas 94
6.8  Duration of ROYG 94
6.9 ROYG Chart | 95
6.10 ROYG Chart 2 96
6.11 ROYG Chart 3 97
6.12 ROYG Chart 4 98
6.13 ROYG Chart 5 99
6.14 ROYG Chart 6 100

DOSEP v8.0. Page 9



OFFICIAL

Page 14

7 RESPONDER CAPABILITY ASSURANCE
7.1 REPPIR Capability Requirements

7.2 Organisational Capabilities

7.3 Annual Capability Assurance

PARTNER AGENCIES ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
8.1  CCA Category | Responders

8.1.1
8.1.2
8.1.3
8.14
8.1.5
8.1.6
8.1.7
8.1.8
8.1.9
8.1.10
8.1.11
8.1.12

8.1.13
Hazards

8.1.14

British Transport Police

Cornwall Council

Devon and Cornwall Police

Devon County Council

Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue

Environment Agency

Livewell Southwest

MCA - HM Coastguard

NHS England / NHS Cornwall & Isles of Scilly / NHS Devon (ICB)
Plymouth City Council
South Hams District and West Devon Borough Councils
United Kingdom Health Security Agency - South West

United Kingdom Health Security Agency - Radiation, Chemicals and Environmental
115

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

82  CCA Category 2 Responders

8.2.1
822
823
824
8.2.5
8.2.6
827

Met Office

National Grid

National Highways

Network Rail

Office for Nuclear Regulation
South West Water

Wales and West Utilities

8.3  Allied Responding Organisations

8.3.1
83.2
833
834
8.3.5

MOD & Devonport Royal Dockyard Ltd (Babcock)

Food Standards Agency

Ministry of Defence HQSW Joint Regional Liaison Officers (MOD JRLO)
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government

Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry Joint Committee (Tamar Crossings)

DOSEP v8.0. Page 10

101
101
101
101

102
103
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
11
112
113
114

116
117
117
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
125
127
129
130
131



OFFICIAL Page 15

APPENDIX A - COMBINED TACTICAL & STRATEGIC COMMAND RESPONSE ACTION
CHECKLIST

Al Incident Alert - Local Response
A2 Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
A3 Major Incident Declared
A4 Off-Site Nuclear Emergency Declaration
A5 Criteria for Handover from Response to Recovery
APPENDIX B - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
Table | - Sheltering
Table 2 — Health and Stable lodine
Table 3 — University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust
Table 4 — Children at School and Vulnerable People
Table 5 — Pets and Wildlife
Table 6 — Water Supplies
Table 7 — Waste
Table 8 — Gardens, Allotments, Agriculture
Table 9 — Food
Table 10 — Housing Displacement and Financial Loss
Table || — Radio and Television Stations Broadcasting Emergency Information
Table 12 — Media Messaging
Table 13 — Radiation Units

APPENDIX C - CALL CASCADE CONTACT DETAILS

DOSEP v8.0. Page ||

132
132
133
134
137
140
141
141
142
143
143
144
144
145
146
147
147
148
148
149

150



OFFICIAL Page 16

1.6 Illlustrations & Diagrams

Figure | Public Information Booklet 24
Figure 2 Easy Read Public Information Booklet 24
Figure 3 JESIP Joint Decision Model 30
Figure 4 Four Stage DOSEP Incident Escalation Path 31
Figure 5 DOSEP / DCP Plan Electron Restricted PEAT Cascade 34
Figure 6 DOSEP / DCP Plan Electron Full Activation Call Cascade 36
Figure 7 JESIP METHANE Reporting Framework 37
Figure 8 DOSEP Command, Control and Coordination Structure 45
Figure 9 DPH Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Authority Letter 50
Figure 10 Emergency Alerts - REPPIR Process 71
Figure || Emergency Alerts - SCG Process 72
Figure 12 Devonport Detailed Emergency Planning Zone 83
Figure 13 Devonport Outline Planning Zone 84
Figure 14 CHARLIE, DELTA and Echo Buoys Detailed Emergency Planning Zone 85
Figure 15 22 and 23 Anchorage Detailed Emergency Planning Zone 86
Figure 16 Plymouth Offshore Mooring and Anchorage Outline Planning Zone 87
Figure 17 Example Map showing Focussed Engagement Areas, Schools and DEPZ 90
Figure 18 Example Map Devonport DEPZ and Stable lodine Delivery Zones 91
Figure 19 ROYG Chart | 95
Figure 20 ROYG Chart 2 96
Figure 21 ROYG Chart 3 97
Figure 22 ROYG Chart 4 98
Figure 23 ROYG Chart 5 99
Figure 24 ROYG Chart 6 100

DOSEP v8.0. Page 12



OFFICIAL

1.7 Glossary of Terms

Page 17

Definitions marked by an asterisk * refer to definitions set out in REPPIR 2019.
NOTE: This is not an exhaustive list of terms.

Containment

Primary Containment

The compartment surrounding the reactor plant made up of the
pressure hull of the submarine and internal bulkheads designed to
withstand the build-up of pressure after a severe reactor
accident.

Secondary Containment

The compartment within the submarine hull on either side of the
primary containment that can prevent internal leakage from
primary containment to the atmosphere.

Emergency exposure

The exposure of an employee engaged in an activity of or
associated with the response to a radiation emergency or
potential radiation emergency in order to:

= bring help to endangered persons;

= prevent exposure of a large number of persons;

= or save a valuable installation or goods;
whereby one of the individual dose limits referred to in the
lonising Radiation Regulations 2017 could be exceeded.

Such exposures require special authorisation as stated in REPPIR
Regulation 18.

Intervention *

An activity that prevents or reduces the radiation exposure of
personnel resulting from a radiation emergency or from an event
that could lead to a radiation emergency.

Member of the public *

A member of the public is any person not being;

(2) a person for the time being present on premises where a
radiation emergency can occur or where a radiation emergency
has actually occurred, or

(b) a person engaged in an activity of or associated with the
response to a radiation emergency.

Off-site emergency plan *

A plan prepared by the local authority if their area of
responsibility includes premises where it has been assessed as
reasonably foreseeable that a radiation emergency might arise.

On-site emergency plan

An operator’s emergency plan is required for the premises where
it is reasonably foreseeable that a radiation emergency might
arise.

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 13




OFFICIAL

Page 18

Operator *

Any reference to an operator is a reference to:

* Any premises other than a licensed site, where the person
who is, in the course of a trade, business or other
undertaking carried on by him, in control of the operation
of premises, and

= |n the case of a licensed site, is the licensee.

Operator’s emergency
plan

= See on-site emergency plan above

Premises®*

The whole area under the control of the same person where
radioactive substances are present in one or more installations.

Radiation emergency *

A “radiation emergency” means a non-routine situation or event
arising from work with ionising radiation that necessitates prompt
action to mitigate the serious consequences—

(a) of a hazard resulting from that situation or event;
(b) of a perceived risk arising from such a hazard; or
(c) to any one or more of—

(i) human life;

(i) health and safety;

(iii) quality of life;

(iv) property;

(v) the environment

NOTE: A radiation emergency may also be referred to as a
“nuclear emergency.” For this plan, the terms are treated as having
the same meaning.

Reactor Safety Alert

An abnormal event which poses a potential threat to, or causes
serious concern for, reactor plant safety.

REPPIR

The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information)
Regulations 2019 Statutory Regulations relating to:

i. The assessment of risks from installations holding large
quantities of radioactive material.

ii. The production of emergency plans to mitigate such
risks.

iii. Informing the public about health protection measures
to be taken in the event of a radiological emergency and
the basic safety standards for the protection of the general
public and workers against the dangers of ionising radiation.

Stable lodine Tablets

Tablets containing stable iodine, which would minimise the uptake
of radioactive iodine into the thyroid gland.

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 14




OFFICIAL

Page 19

1.8 List of Acronyms
CBRN Chemical, biological, radiological, and nuclear
CCA Civil Contingencies Act 2004
CFRS Cornwall Fire and Rescue Service
CHP Consultant in Health Protection
COBR Cabinet Office Briefing Rooms
COMAH Control of Major Accident Hazard Regulations 1999
CoP Common Operating Picture
DACC Devonport Accident Control Centre
DCIOS Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly
DCMO Defence Crisis Management Organisation
DCP Devon and Cornwall Police
DEFRA Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
DEPZ Detailed Emergency Planning Zone
DEVNUSAFE Devonport Nuclear Safety Orders
DNSR Defence Nuclear Safety Regulator
DOSEP Devonport off-site Emergency Plan
DPH Director of Public Health
DRDL Devonport Royal Dockyard Limited
DSA Devonport Site Accident
DSFRS Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service
EA Environment Agency
EC Emergency Controller
EMARC Environment Monitoring and Response Centre
ENS Emergency Notification System
ERL Emergency Reference Level
ERP Emergency Response Protocol
ESLO Emergency Services Liaison Officer

DOSEP v8.0. Page I5




OFFICIAL

Page 20

FCP Forward Command Post

FEA Focussed Engagement Area

FIM Force Incident Manager

FSA Food Standards Agency

GMDSS Global Maritime Distress and Safety System

HART Hazardous Area Response Team

HMEPA Hazardous Material and Environmental Protection Advisor
HMNB His Majesty's Naval Base

HMNB(D) His Majesty's Naval Base (Devonport)

HPSG Health Physics Support Group

HSE Health and Safety Executive

JDM Joint Decision Model

JRCC Joint Rescue Coordination Centre

LA Local Authority

LHRP Local Health Resilience Partnership

LLC Local Liaison Committee

LRF Local Resilience Forum

LSW Livewell Southwest

MACR Major Accident Control Regulations 2004

MAIC Multi-Agency Information Cell

MCA Ministry of Defence Coordinating Authority

MCGA Maritime and Coastguard Agency

MDP Ministry of Defence Police

M/ETHANE Eﬁ&ob::i:fgcl::alzrar:g%ﬂ:E:;jcz; ;:;:;i:::;\:)/ Exact Location, Type of Incident, Hazards, Access,
MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
MOD Ministry of Defence

MRCC Maritime Rescue Coordination Centre
DOSEP v8.0. Page 16




OFFICIAL

Page 21
NAIR National Arrangements for Incidents Involving Radioactivity
NCC News Coordination Centre
NEPC Nuclear Emergency Procedures Course
NERO Nuclear Emergency Response Organisation
NHS National Health Service
NILO National Inter-Agency Liaison Officer
NPCC National Police Chiefs' Council
ONR Office for Nuclear Regulation
OPZ Outline Planning Zone
OSNE Off-Site Nuclear Emergency
PACRAM Procefjures and Communications in the event of a release of Radioactive
Material
PCC Plymouth City Council
PEAT Pre-Event Assessment Teleconference
PPE Personal Protective Equipment
RCE Radiation, Chemical and Environmental Hazards Directorate
RCG Recovery Coordinating Group
RD Resilience Direct
RED Resilience and Emergencies Directorate
REPPIR Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019
RMU Radiation Monitoring Unit
ROYG RB8 Orange Yellow Green
RPA Radiation Protection Adviser
RREMS Radiological Response and Emergency Management System
RSA Reactor Safety Alert
SC Strategic Commander
SCC Strategic Coordination Centre
SCG Strategic Coordinating Group
DOSEP v8.0. Page 17




OFFICIAL Page 292

SDO Station Duty Officer

SIT Stable lodine Tablet

SMCC Strategic Media Coordination Centre
SMS Short Messaging Service (text message)
SNI Site Nuclear Incident

SQEP Suitably Qualified and Experienced Person
SRN Strategic Road Network

SSIL Site Specific Intervention Levels

STAC Science and Technical Advice Cell
SWASFT South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust
SWN Send Word Now

TC Tactical Commander

TCC Tactical Coordination Centre

TCG Tactical Coordinating Group

TTX Tabletop Exercise

UKHSA UK Health Security Agency

VMS Variable Message Signs
DOSEP v8.0. Page 18




OFFICIAL Page 23

1.9  Plan Production and Maintenance
Plymouth City Council is the local authority responsible for this off-site emergency plan.

This plan sets out specific arrangements required to implement responding organisations’ activities to
effect prompt protection for members of the public who may be affected by a radiation emergency at
the Devonport Site. Plymouth City Council collaborates with the nuclear operators and relevant
responding agencies to produce and maintain the plan.

This plan forms one element of the suite of documents specifically activated in the event of a
radiation emergency at the Devonport site. The list below details the associated plans, frameworks
and guidance:

* Devon & Cornwall Police Contingency Plan ELECTRON

* Devon, Cornwall & Isles of Scilly LRF Emergency Response Protocol

* Devonport Site Staff Dispersal Plan

* Devonport off-site Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Plan (MOD & PCC, 2024)

= Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC) Plan for the Local Resilience Forums (LRFs) in the
South West (SW-LRF STAC PLAN v04.00, UKHSA, 2022)

* Nuclear and Radiological Emergencies: South-West Radiation Monitoring Unit Framework

* Plymouth Radiation Monitoring Unit Deployment Plan (PCC, 2024)

* Guidance for Schools, Colleges, and Early Years Settings, in the Event of a Radiation Emergency
at HMNB Devonport

= UK Recovery Handbook for Radiation Incidents 2024°

* Devon, Cornwall & Isles of Scilly LRF Strategic Recovery Guidance

* Plymouth City Council Major Incident Recovery Plan

In addition, should a false alarm sound, the following protocol is initiated:

e Devonport Site Nuclear Accident Alarm - False Alarm Communication Protocol

This plan highlights references to multi-agency and single agency emergency plans activated as part of
generic emergency response arrangements. Those agencies activate emergency arrangements in

conjunction with this document and its subsidiary plans. The partner agencies, maintain these plans in
consultation with Plymouth City Council.

1.9.1 Plan Distribution

This plan is available to Category | and 2 responders as defined by the Civil Contingencies Act
(2004)°, and other responding agencies via Resilience Direct at:

https://collaborate.resilience.gov.uk/RDService’lhome/54743/REPPIR

An OFFICIAL version of the plan, with redacted appendices, is available through Plymouth City
Council’s website.

* UK Recovery Handbook for Radiation Incidents 2024 (Version 5) (https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-
recovery-handbook-for-radiation-incidents-2024) [08.08.24]
> Civil Contingencies Act (2004) (https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/36/contents) [24.07.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 19



https://collaborate.resilience.gov.uk/RDService/home/54743/REPPIR
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-recovery-handbook-for-radiation-incidents-2024
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-recovery-handbook-for-radiation-incidents-2024
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/36/contents

OFFICIAL Page 24

1.9.2 Updates and Amendments

Plan amendments should be sent via e-mail to Plymouth City Council’s Civil Protection Service:
civil.protection@plymouth.gov.uk,

1.9.3 Document Version Control

The table below details the publication date and document version number following plan v.8.0
publication in November 2024.

Version Updated by Date Published

8.0 Civil Protection Service November 2024

DOSEP v8.0. Page 20


mailto:civil.protection@plymouth.gov.uk

OFFICIAL Page 25

1.10 Reviewing and Testing

Regulation |12 of REPPIR requires the off-site emergency plan to be reviewed and evaluated at
suitable intervals, not exceeding three years, unless the regulator agrees otherwise.

The arrangements in this plan are validated through exercise. All exercises are planned in
consultation with the regulator, the operators, and relevant multi-agency partners.

Distinct exercise modular areas have been drawn from the off-site emergency plan. When these
significant elements are validated successfully the combined result constitutes a test of the off-site

emergency plan.

An exercise cycle is set to run over a three-year period. The whole plan is validated as a single live-
play test once every six years®.

Indicative exercise modules are listed below:

1.10.1 Activation, Immediate Actions, Command and Control

To validate the police contingency
Module | Responder call cascade | Aim plan ELECTRON call cascade to
responder agencies

Method Live play in real-time Exercise type | Communications exercise

Exercise frequency Annual

To validate the stepped escalation
Module 2 Escalation Path Aim path in anticipation of an off-site
nuclear emergency

Command, control &

Method Live play in real-time Exercise type o
communication
Exercise frequency Three-yearly
To validate the full command,
. control, coordination, and
Module 3 Full Command Structure | Aim o
communication in response to an
off-site nuclear emergency
. . . . Command, control, communication
Method Live play in real-time Exercise type o
& coordination
Exercise frequency Three-yearly

¢ 6 REPPIR (2019) Reg 12 (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019 Approved Code of
Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk), https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-2019-acop.pdf) [24.07.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 21



https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-2019-acop.pdf
https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-2019-acop.pdf

OFFICIAL

Page 26
1.10.2 Warning, Informing and Media
Emergency notification . Test of public warning and
Module 4 gency no Aim . ' U g
system activation informing via ENS
Method Practical demonstration | Exercise type | Communications exercise
Exercise frequency Annual
Test of mainstream and social
Module 5 Media engagement Aim media communications pathways
linked to ENS test
. , . Media management within a
Method Practical demonstration | Exercise type g
command structure
Exercise frequency Annual
Validation of media engagement
Module 6 Full media structure Aim and communication in response to
an off-site nuclear emergency
. . . . Communications exercise linked to
Method Live play in real-time Exercise type

module 2 or 3

Exercise frequency

Three-yearly optional module, six-yearly with full test

1.10.3 Public Urgent Protective Actions & Health Protection

Validation of stable iodine tablet

Module 7 Stable iodine distribution | Aim delivery routes

Method Live play in real-time Exercise type | Live play

Exercise frequency Annual

Module 8 STAC Aim STAC Exercise for SW Region
Method Live play in real-time Exercise type | Live play

Exercise frequency

UKHSA Exercise STAC across SW England within
partner agency exercises

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 22




OFFICIAL

Page 27
Module 10 Popu‘latiQn radiation Aim Va!idation of radiation monitoring
monitoring unit deployment plan annex
Method TTX/ Live play Exercise type | Plan walk-through / Live play

Exercise frequency

Three-yearly plan walkthrough / TTX. Six-yearly live
play with full test

1.10.4 Recovery

Module 11 Recovery Aim Validate coordination work by the
RCG
Method TTX Exercise type | Plan walk-through / TTX

Exercise frequency

Three-yearly plan walkthrough. Six-yearly table-top
exercise.

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 23




OFFICIAL Page 28

I.11 Public Information

Regulation 21 of REPPIR requires Plymouth City Council, in cooperation with the Devonport Site
nuclear operators, to provide members of the public in the detailed emergency planning zone with
prior information so they are suitably informed and prepared in the unlikely event of a radiation
emergency. In addition, members of the public in the outline planning zone should have access to
information if they so require.

WHAT YOU SHOULD DO In consultation with the operators and neighbouring
IFTHERE IS A RADIATION local authorities, Plymouth City Council publishes and
EMERGENCY AT THE distributes the public information booklet “What You
DEVONPORT SITE Should Do if There Is a Radiation Emergency at the

June 2023 Devonport Site” (fig. 1).

Plymouth City Council, Cornwall Council and Devon
County Council distribute the public information
booklet to every home, school and business in the
detailed emergency planning zones associated with the
Devonport Site.

IMPORTANT RADIATION SAFETY ADVICE
You should read this booklet carefully.

This booklet tells you what you need to do in the extremely unlikely event ﬁ m
of a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site oﬂ\«ﬁ’:ﬂfm

Standard easy -
The information in this guide is very important Although the chance of ever L .J PLYMOUTH

having to use this advice in an emergency is extremely unlikely, please put it ciTY counciL
in a safe place.

The advice is summarised on the back page, which you should tear off and
hang on your notice board or by your front door; so you can find it easily

What to do if there is a
Figure | Public Information Booklet radiation emergency at
Devonport

In addition, Plymouth City Council provides an Easy =
Read version “What to do if there is a radiation ' P
emergency at Devonport,” to enable the written
information to be easily understood (fig. 2).

The Easy Read version helps people who have a
learning disability and can also assist people for whom
English is not their main language or people who may
have memory issues’.

The Easy Read version of the public information is
available on request and supplied in hard-copy or
downloadable form as appropriate.

October 2023

Figure 2 Easy Read Public Information Booklet

Both booklets are available for download though Plymouth City Council’s website®.

7 What is Easy Read? (https://abilitynet.org.uk/factsheets/what-easy-read#simple-table-of-contents-1) [24.07.24]
8 Plymouth City Council (https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/devonport-offsite-emergency-plan) [24.07.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 24



https://abilitynet.org.uk/factsheets/what-easy-read#simple-table-of-contents-1
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/devonport-offsite-emergency-plan

OFFICIAL Page 29
1.12 Local Liaison Committee (LLC)

In applying for a nuclear site licence, through public body notification, the site operator must outline
the proposed arrangements for local community liaison for the licenced site’.

At Devonport, the LLC meets twice per year. It provides a forum for the site operators, and other
relevant agencies, to communicate and discuss radiation safety issues with members of the public.
The LLC chair alternates between the Naval Base Commander (Devonport) and the Managing
Director of Devonport Royal Dockyard Ltd (DRDL).

1.13 Emergency Notification System, Public Alerting and the Devonport siren

Regulation 22 of REPPIR requires every local authority to make, and keep up to date, arrangements
to supply information and advice to the public in the event of a radiation emergency likely to affect
members of the public in its area at the time'’.

The purpose of this regulation is to ensure that members of the public affected are informed
promptly of the facts about the radiation emergency and any measures that are to be taken for their
health protection. Part 3 of this plan details the activation of the warning, informing and media
elements.

1.14 The Emergency Notification System (ENS)

Plymouth City Council maintains an ENS. In the unlikely event of a radiation emergency, the ENS is
used to send SMS text messages and voice messages to people who choose to register their phones
with the system. This is a free service, and the public can register for the system via the Council’s
website'".

It is the responsibility of Plymouth City Council to activate the ENS in the unlikely event of an off-site
radiation emergency at the Devonport Site.

1.15 Emergency Alerts

The UK Government’s Emergency Alerts is used to provide warning and informing information to
people in the area likely to be affected by a radiation emergency. Emergency Alerts can send a
message to mobile phones or tablets to warn people if there is a danger to life nearby. The message
will include details of how to search for more information.

1.16 The Devonport Sirens

The Devonport Site sirens warn personnel at the site that an off-site nuclear emergency has
occurred. The sirens are tested every Monday at | 130 hrs.

9 Office for Nuclear Regulation — Licensing Procedures — Public Body Notification (https://www.onr.org.uk/publications/regulatory-
guidance/regulatory-assessment-and-permissioning/assessment/permissioning-inspection-assessment-full-list/) [15.07.24].

10 REPPIR 2019 — Approved Code of Practice (https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-20[9-update.htm) [15.07.24]

"' Plymouth City Council - Sign up to the Emergency Notification System Sign up to the Emergency Notification System |
PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK [31.07.24].

DOSEP v8.0. Page 25



https://www.onr.org.uk/publications/regulatory-guidance/regulatory-assessment-and-permissioning/assessment/permissioning-inspection-assessment-full-list/
https://www.onr.org.uk/publications/regulatory-guidance/regulatory-assessment-and-permissioning/assessment/permissioning-inspection-assessment-full-list/
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sign-emergency-notification-system
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sign-emergency-notification-system

OFFICIAL Page 30
1.17 Berthing

Berths cleared for use by nuclear powered warships and submarines, are categorised according to
the frequency of occupation, and the type of operation undertaken while the vessel is berthed.

a. Berths in the DNSR authorised or ONR licenced sites are cleared for building, commissioning,
refitting, refuelling or defuelling of nuclear-powered submarines, or for the repair and
maintenance of the nuclear plant, together with tests and trials.

b. CHARLIE, DELTA, and ECHO Buoys in Plymouth Sound are cleared for operational or
recreational visits by nuclear powered warships or submarines. These moorings are not cleared
for maintenance or repair of the nuclear plant. The primary hazards associated with the
movement and mooring operations are from collision or grounding.

c. 22 and 23 Anchorages are cleared for anchoring nuclear-powered warships or submarines. No
repairs or maintenance of these vessels is conducted at an anchorage.

1.18 Emergency Planning Zones

The Devonport Nuclear Safety Orders (DEVNUSAFE) and the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
(DOSEP) outline the emergency responses for all partner agencies as applied to both on and off-site
radiation emergencies.

There are four areas designated as planning zones for the combined emergency response:

a. The Exclusion Zone (on site)

An area around a nuclear submarine, including the vessel itself, in which people would be at greatest
risk from the hazards of a radiation emergency.

b. On-site Control Zone

Beyond the exclusion zone and is an area surrounding an accident where actions are taken to protect
people on the site from the effects of the emergency.

c. Detailed Emergency Planning Zone (DEPZ)

The DEPZ is an area extending to a minimum distance of |.5km from the operational nuclear
submarine berths and anchorages.

d. Outline Planning Zone (OPZ)

The OPZ is an area extending to 5km from the centre of 5 Basin on the Devonport Site and 5km
from CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO buoys and 22 & 23 Anchorages.

For off-site emergency planning purposes, the extents of the DEPZs were determined by Plymouth
City Council in consultation with Cornwall Council, South Hams District Council and Devon County
Council. The OPZs were set by the Secretary of State for Defence.

Part 5 of this plan contains maps of each DEPZ and both OPZs.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 26



OFFICIAL Page 31

1.19 Site Standby and Devonport Site Accident Arrangements

There are arrangements on the Devonport Site for responding to any radiological or conventional
incident.

1.19.1 Site Standby and Reactor Safety Alerts
A site standby is declared in the event of:

* areactor safety alert (RSA); or

* alarge conventional accident (or potential for such an accident); or
* aradiological event within the Devonport Site; or

* where there is cause for concern for the safety of a large number of persons.

Such incidents may cause concern for nuclear or radiological safety as the circumstances develop
toward a condition when a Devonport site accident may be declared.

1.19.2 Devonport Site Accident

A Devonport Site Accident (DSA) is extremely unlikely but could occur because of an emergency
onboard a nuclear-powered submarine or in connection with other nuclear or radiological
operations conducted on the site.

NOTE: As with the site standby above, the arrangements for managing a DSA can be activated for a
serious, non-radiological accident.

1.19.3 Classifying a Devonport Site Accident
There are two categories of DSA, which depend on the severity of the incident:
i. On-site Incident (Site Nuclear Incident)

An on-site incident (OSI) is an event where the radiological consequences are confined to the
Devonport Site. This may require the site/operators response plan, or parts thereof, to be
implemented. "?

In the event of an OSI, non-essential personnel evacuate from areas of the site. A clearly defined on-
site control zone will be set up around the accident.

ii. Off-site Nuclear Emergency

An off-site Nuclear Emergency (OSNE) is declared immediately if an accident develops to the extent
that it may, or does, give rise to radiological hazards which require protective measures for members
of the public. It will be necessary to evacuate non-essential personnel from a defined area of the
Devonport Site and establish an on-site control zone.

'2JSP471 p33 definition of SNI: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/jsp-47 | -defence-nuclear-accident-response
[13.08.24].
DOSEP v8.0. Page 27



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/jsp-471-defence-nuclear-accident-response

OFFICIAL Page 32

1.20 Off-site Nuclear Emergency and Declaration Qualifiers

1.20.1 Off-site Nuclear Emergency

An off-site Nuclear Emergency (OSNE) is a hazardous condition which results, or is likely to result, in
the need to implement protective action to protect members of the public beyond the site boundary
from a radiological hazard".

There is potential for a reactor safety alert to progress through to OSNE without a separate SNI. In

this event, both the on-site plan (DEVNUSAFE) and off-site planning arrangements can be activated
simultaneously.

1.20.2 Supplementary Declaration Qualifiers

The MOD Defence Nuclear Emergency Response Directive provides the following additional OSNE
Declaration Qualifiers'.

Radiation Hazard Confirmed

An OSNE in which a radiation hazard has been detected.

Qualifier Release of Radioactive Material Confirmed

An OSNE in which a release of radioactive material to the environment
has been detected.

In addition, DOSEP considers an additional qualifier, in respect of recovery from the OSNE
declaration.

Recovery
Qualifier

OSNE response has transitioned into the recovery phase.

1.21 Activating the Plan

REPPIR indicates that a local authority which has prepared an off-site emergency plan must take
reasonable steps to either activate the whole, or parts of the plan, as necessary without delay if the
operator(s) inform them that:

a. a radiation emergency has occurred, or:
b. an event has occurred which could give rise to a radiation emergency"”.

On receiving the relevant information relating to a radiation emergency, DOSEP is activated, as
outlined in the REPPIR Approved Code of Practice and associated guidance.

Part two of this document (Activation, Immediate Actions, Command and Coordination) details the
activation process.

'* REPPIR 2019 — Approved Code of Practice para. 489 (https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm) [24.07.24].
'“]SP47 1 p34 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/jsp-47 | -defence-nuclear-accident-response [24.07.24].
'> REPPIR 2019 Reg 17(3) (https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/703/regulation/| 7/made) [13.08.24].

DOSEP v8.0. Page 28



https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/jsp-471-defence-nuclear-accident-response
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/703/regulation/17/made

OFFICIAL Page 33
2 PART 2-ACTIVATION, ACTIONS, COMMAND AND CONTROL

Nuclear Emergency Planning and Response Guidance published in 2015 indicates that emergency
management structures should be operational and staffed by trained people within one to two hours
of a radiation emergency being declared'®. In addition, International Atomic Energy Agency guidance
outlines the importance of acknowledging a variation in timescale for partner consultation during an
evolving emergency'’.

The activation and escalation process defined in this plan operates in parallel with the Devonport Site
operators’ on-site emergency arrangements'®. The Devonport Emergency Response Arrangements
(on-site) provide a process for a proportionate response for a wide range of initiators.

2.1 Plan Activation

The DOSEP escalation path recognises that the on-site emergency response arrangements provide
mechanisms to resolve local incidents without activation of an off-site response. However, the
escalation pathway permits progression to a major emergency declaration should the operators
move swiftly to declaring an off-site nuclear emergency.

2.1.1 Full Plan Activation
The plan is activated in full if:

* A radiation emergency has occurred
* An event has occurred which could give rise to a radiation emergency

2.1.2 Partial Plan Activation
Partial plan activation is considered if:

* An event occurs which could be perceived as a radiation emergency off-site, but will not result in
irradiation or a release of radiation'

2.1.3 Activation for a false alarm

If a false alarm sounds at the Devonport Site, refer to the Devonport Site Nuclear Accident Alarm — False
Alarm Communication Protocol. Actions listed in the false alarm protocol provide clear and appropriate
reassurance for members of the public.

16 Nuclear Emergency Planning and Response Guidance, Concept of Operations, October 2015
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-nuclear-emergency-planning-and-response-guidance) [24.07.24]

I7 Considerations in the Development of a Protection Strategy for a Nuclear or Radiological Emergency,
(https://www.iaea.org/publications/ 1480 | /considerations-in-the-development-of-a-protection-strategy-for-a-nuclear-or-radiological-
emergency) [24.07.24]

'8 REPPIR (2019) Reg I3 (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019 Approved Code of
Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk)) [24.07.24]

19 REPPIR (2019) Reg 17 ACOP Para 490 (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019 Approved
Code of Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk)) [24.07.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 29



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-nuclear-emergency-planning-and-response-guidance
https://www.iaea.org/publications/14801/considerations-in-the-development-of-a-protection-strategy-for-a-nuclear-or-radiological-emergency
https://www.iaea.org/publications/14801/considerations-in-the-development-of-a-protection-strategy-for-a-nuclear-or-radiological-emergency
https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-2019-acop.pdf
https://www.onr.org.uk/documents/2020/reppir-2019-acop.pdf
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm

OFFICIAL Page 34

2.2 Collaborative Decision Making

The DOSEP escalation path extends across four distinct stages. Each stage allows the level of
response activity to increase in line with the likelihood of the radiation emergency evolving into an
off-site nuclear emergency declaration by the site operators. The incident escalation path is illustrated
at section 2.3 below.

Progress through the four stages allows partner agencies to apply the JESIP Joint Decision Model
(JDM), to evaluate available information, establish objectives and make the collaborative decision to
advance the incident response.

The staged approach mirrors the application of a rising tide incident management process in which
the emergency progresses from normal operation to an emergency or major incident over an
extended period.

This requires a thorough understanding of risk and potential hazard to ensure that the nature of that
incident is properly understood, and a proportionate response applied.

Gather
information and
intelligence

Assess
Take action threats and risks
and review Working and develop
what happened together a working

saving lives strategy
reducing
harm

Consider
powers,
policies and
procedures

Identify
options and
contingencies

Figure 3 JESIP Joint Decision Model

DOSEP v8.0. Page 30



OFFICIAL

2.3 Devonport off-site Nuclear Emergency Escalation

[ Incident Alert ]
[ LOCAL RESPONSE ]

INCIDEMNT ALERT

Local responder partners apply joint decision
model and evaluate likely hazard, threats and
risks

[s there a hazard showing potential for either an off
site rediation emergency or the perception of such
hazard? (DOSEP Section 2.4)

COMNSIDER AFCTIVATING

DOSEP and
DCF Plan ELECTROMN

ESCALATE TOSTAGE 2

Is the incident o false
alarm, where the on-site
siren system has sounded?

r

[

[ Devonport Off-Site Nuclear Emergency Incident Escalation
DOSEP ACTIVATED
B— 7, 2 | — SR —— B3
RESTRICTEE EERT [ DECLARE MAJOR INCIDENT ( OSNE DECLARED BY SITE

Operatorsand identified DOSEP partners apply joint
decisionmodel and evaluate likely hazard, threats and
risks

[s there potential for either anoff-site radiation
emergency or the perception of swch hazard?
{DOSEP Section 1.5)

v
YES

Consider escalation to
MULTI-AGEMNCY PEAT,

¥

MULTI AGENCY PEAT

ALL DOSEP partners, apply joint
¥ decision model evaluate likely

N g"— hazard, threats and risks

[s there potential for either an off-site
radiation emergency or the
perception of such hazard?

YES

Activate the Devonport Site
Muclear Accident Alarm — False
Alarm Communication Protocol

COMSIDER DECLARING A

MAJOR INCIDENT
SCALATE TOSTAGE 3

k4

Incident managed in
normal operations
NC ESCALATION

TACTICAL COORDIMNATING GROUP

ALL DOSEP partners apply joint decision madel
and evaluate likely hazard, threats and risks

Is there potential for either an offsite radiation

emergency or the perception of such hazard?
{DOSEP Section 2.6)
v

YES

CONSIDER ACTIVATING
STRATEGIC
COORDINATING GROUP

¥

5CG ACTIVATED
Responsible for the multi-agency

¥ coordinationand delivery of strategic
objectives

Is there continuing poetental for an off
site radiation emergency?

YES

Incident managed locally
NO FURTHER
ESCALATION

'

Continue multi-agency
response activity until

SITE CONSIDERS
DECLARING QSNE

DECLARE MAJOR INCIDEN

(If not already declared)

model and evaluate likely hazard, th
risks (DOSEP Section 2.7)

URGENT PROTECTIVE ACTIONS
INITIATED

ALL DOSEP partnersapply joint decision

reats and

abjectives.
STAC supports SCG

o
Strategic Coordinating Group

SCG responsible for the multi-agency
coordination and delivery of strategic

SMCC supports media & comms
<

Tactical Coordinating Group

in support of strategic objectives.

Hazard shows continuing potel

TCG coordinates multi-agency activities

ntial for

off-site radiological risk

OMMAND STRUCTURE]

MAMNAGE RESPONSE WITH FULL

incident managed locally
NO FURTHER
ESCALATION

Continue response activity
handover to RCG

HAZARD REDUCING

until

Off-site Hazard Risk Increasing - Incident Escalation Pathway

>

Figure 4 Four Stage DOSEP Incident Escalation Path

DEVONPORT OFF-SITE EMERGENCY PLAN V.8.0.

G¢ obed



OFFICIAL Page 36
2.4 <] Incident Alert - Local Response

If an incident occurs on the Devonport Site, the on-site duty manager determines the appropriate
declaration state.

The Devonport Site operators verify if the incident is:

* An abnormal event with potential for an off-site radiological hazard, the perception of such a
hazard, or:

= A false alarm
If neither situation is true, then DOSEP is not activated, so no off-site action is taken. The operators

liaise with relevant local responder partners and make a decision as to the local contingency planning
arrangements to be activated.

2.4.1 Actions in Response to an Abnormal Event or False Alarm

RESPONSE
v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
ACTION | Devonport Duty Arrange a meeting with relevant local
Manager responder partners
ACTION 2 Operators and The operatc.or:s meet local responders and
relevant responders make a decision
Stage | Decision Considerations
Consideration | Decision to Make Action to Take leo takes the
action?

No escalation. The incident is
A managed in normal No further off-site action N/A

operations

Activate the Devonport Site Nuclear
B There is a false alarm Accident Alarm — False Alarm F:I mouth CC
Communication Protocol

There is an abnormal event Consider activation of the
C with potential for a Devonport off-site Emergency Plan MOD Police

radiological hazard (or the Escalate to SRaXel= W) ACTION 4

perception of such a hazard)

e N BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
ACTIONS

Plymouth City Activate the Devonport Site Nuclear Accident
Council Alarm — False Alarm Communication Protocol

ACTION 3

y:\eup o] B MOD Police Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
- Contact Devon & Cornwall Police

- Request DOSEP is now activated

- Ask Force Incident Manager (FIM) to
Convene RESTRICTED PEAT

Escalate to Fap:\€l 3!

DEVONPORT OFF-SITE EMERGENCY PLAN V.8.0.



OFFICIAL Page 37
2.5 P\l Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
2.5.1 Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan

The Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan is activated if there is an abnormal event with either
potential for an off-site radiological hazard, or the perception of such a hazard.

Following the DOSEP activation, the off-site responders follow the processes for emergency
response outlined in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol (ERP) considering the hazards
and risks associated with the potential consequences of a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site.

Following the plans activation, of the escalation path corresponds to the “Rising Tide — The
PEAT and Information Sharing” process outlined in the ERP. This allows for informal discussion
between the police and a small group of relevant partners appropriate to the incident. For DOSEP
purposes the first PEAT is restricted to key agencies.

2.5.2 Convene a DOSEP Restricted Pre-Event Assessment Teleconference (PEAT)

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Activate Contingency Plan ELECTRON

ACTION 5 elegyiy Convene a restricted PEAT

Devon & Cornwall Police activate contingency plan ELECTRON and convene a DOSEP restricted
PEAT™. The PEAT enables shared understanding of the likely progression towards a radiation
emergency.

Attendance at the DOSEP restricted PEAT is limited to the following organisations:

Devon and Cornwall Police (DCP)

Ministry of Defence Police (MDP)

Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service (DSFRS)

The Devonport Site operators (MOD & Babcock International)

UK Health Security Agency, Radiation, Chemical and Environmental Hazards (UKHSA RCE)
UK Health Security Agency, South West (UKHSA SW)

Plymouth City Council

Cornwall Council

Devon County Council (ONLY for incidents at CHARLIE, DELTA, and ECHO buoys and 22 &
23 Anchorages)

20 DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol — Section 34
DOSEP v8.0. Page 33



OFFICIAL Page 38

{ Devonport off-site Emergency Plan — Restricted PEAT Call Cascade ]

[ Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service ]17

4{ Plymouth City Council ]

4{ Cornwall Council ]
/- Charlie, Delta, Echo \

Buoys only

[ Devon County Council ]
W Devon 5 Hams
\ Council Council j

Office for Nuclear ]

Regulation

[ UK Health Security Agency (RCE)

o

{ UK Health Security Agency (SW)

—e

| DOSEP v.8.0/DCP Plan Electron Restricted PEAT Cascade 06/24 |

Figure 5 DOSEP / DCP Plan Electron Restricted PEAT Cascade

2.5.3 Publish the Resilience Direct Devonport Nuclear Emergency Response Page

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Publish the RD Devonport Off-site

j-\eap (o] B PLYMOUTH CC
Nuclear Emergency Response Page

The dedicated Resilience Direct (RD) Devonport Nuclear Emergency response page is published and
made available to relevant DOSEP responder agencies.

The call cascade refers the restricted PEAT partner agencies to the DCIOS Resilience Direct
Devonport Off-site Nuclear Emergency response page.

The Devonport Off-site Nuclear Emergency response page is used to disseminate information
including meeting timings, on-line links and telephone details of all subsequent coordination
meetings®'.

21 DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol — Section 30
DOSEP v8.0. Page 34



OFFICIAL

Page 39

2.5.4 Restricted PEAT Decisions

The LRF ERP suggests that where there is insufficient information available during the PEAT meeting
to move to a formal stance (i.e. a formal TCG or even SCG) then a further PEAT can be scheduled.
In the event an additional PEAT is required, this will escalate and include all DOSEP responders.

If clear information is available about an increasing radiation hazard with potential for off-site
consequences at the Devonport Site, declare a major incident and escalate to a TCG.

Stage 2 Restricted PEAT Decision Considerations

Consideration

Decision to Make

Action to Take

Who takes
the action?

Hazard reducing. No
further escalation. The

A o . . No further off-site action N/A
incident is managed in
normal operations
Hazard not reducing, but
insufficient information to | Consider escalation to multi-
B declare a major incident. agency DOSEP PEAT. PEAT Chair
Potential off-site impact m
requires monitoring
Hazard shows increasing Consider major incident
C potential for off-site declaration and escalate to TCG | PEAT Chair
radiological risk
2.5.5 Convene a DOSEP multi-agency PEAT
RESPONSE
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
:Xeap o)) v DCP Convene a DOSEP multi-agency PEAT

Devon & Cornwall Police escalate the incident to a DOSEP multi-agency PEAT?%. The PEAT enables
shared understanding among all the DOSEP responders of the likely progression towards a radiation

emergency.

The police contingency plan ELECTRON, call cascade is used to contact all DOSEP partners via the
OP LINK process and the ELECTRON callout cascade (see fig 6 below).

The call cascade message refers agencies to the DCIOS Resilience Direct Devonport Off-site Nuclear
Emergency response page.

22 DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol — Section 34
Page 35

DOSEP v8.0.




OFFICIAL

Page 40

{ Devonport off-site Emergency Plan - All Partner Call Cascade ]

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service ]*

Comuwall Fire & Rescue Service |
Maritime & Coastguard Agency J*

W

=
South Western Ambulance Service NHS

4>[ Plymouth City Council ]

—b[ Devon County Council ]
)

-
W Devon
Council

Cornwall Council ]

_f S Hams
'L Council

Foundation Trust

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

UK Health Security Agency (SW)

—b-[ National Highways ]

NHS England

4[

Network Rail

NHS Devon ICB

NHS Cornwall and 105 ICB

National Grid

a[

o e o e o o

Livewell South West

Office for Nuclear
Regulation

—b[ Military — HQ South West ]

4{ Environment Agency ]
—b[ Met Office ]

MHCLG ]

J
—b[ South West Water ]
J
J

—D[ Wales & West Utilities

[
|
|
[ UK Health Security Agency (RCE)
|
[
|
|
|

DOSEP v.8.0/DCP Plan Electron Activation Full Cascade 08/24 |

—b[ Food Standards Agency ]

Figure 6 DOSEP / DCP Plan Electron Full Activation Call Cascade

The police coordinate the multi-agency PEAT, enabling shared understanding of the likely progression
towards a radiation emergency. Responders are briefed by the site operators as to the likely
evolution of the abnormal event at the Devonport Site.

Stage 2 Multi-agency PEAT Decision Considerations

Consideration | Decision to Make Action to Take Who ta.kes
the action?

Hazard reducing. No

A futher gscalatlon. T.h © No further off-site action N/A
incident is managed in
normal operations
Hazard not reducing, but
insufficient information to Consider further multi-agency

B declarg a major |pC|dent. DOSEP PEAT. m PEAT Chair
Potential off-site impact
requires monitoring.
Hazard shows increasing Consider major incident

C potential_for off-site declaration and escalate to TCG | PEAT Chair
radiological risk. STAGE 3JACTIONS 8 & 9

DOSEP v8.0. Page 36



OFFICIAL Page 41

2.6 <7k Major Incident Declared

2.6.1 Declare a Major Incident and escalate to Tactical Coordinating Group (TCG)

RESPONSE
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
2\epple] BB PEAT Chair Declare Major Incident

Request TCG convenes

ACTION 9  [gZotiielily Consider opening TCC

NOTE: A M/ETHANE report is required

The M/ETHANE model® is an established reporting framework which provides a common structure
for responders and their control rooms to share incident information.

~
Has a major incident been declared? x
MAJOR INCIDENT (Yes/No - If ‘No/, then complete fnclude the date and time
ETHANE message) of any declaration.
J/
y : Be as precise as possible, using
What is the exact location or ;
EXACT LOCATION
CT LOCATIO geographical area of the Incident? a system that will be understood
by all responders.
~
: % et For example, flooding, fire,
7
T TYPE OF INCIDENT What kind of incident is it? utility failure o disease outbrea.
J
= Consider the likelihood of a hazard
What hazards or potential hazards ; :
HAZARDS SR ed'ip and the potential severity
- of any impact.
Include information on inaccessible
What are the best routes routes and rendezvous points {RVPs}.
for access and egress? Remember that services need to be
able to leave the scene as mﬂasaocessfb
~
NUMBER OF How many casualties are there, Use an agreed classification system
CASUALTIES and what condition are they in? such as Pl; P2; P3 and dead.
J
z 7 N\
AR Te———— Consider whether the assets of wider
EMERGENCY = OI"I e d’ S e emergency responders, such as local
SERVICES 5 P authorities or the voluntary sector,
required or are already on-scene? &
may be required. y

Figure 7 JESIP METHANE Reporting Framework

The M/ETHANE report is compiled by Devon and Cornwall Police using information supplied by the
site operators and the MOD Police.

23 JESIP M/ETHANE full version August 2023 (https://www.jesip.org.uk/downloads/m-ethane-full-version/) [24.07.24]
DOSEP v8.0. Page 37


https://www.jesip.org.uk/downloads/m-ethane-full-version/

OFFICIAL Page 42

2.6.2 Convene the Tactical Coordinating Group

Tactical command is instigated at S3Wa\€] ] of the emergency escalation to consider the response to
potential off-site consequences. This is linked via the Police and Fire Liaison Officers to the on-site
response coordinated at the Devonport Accident Control Centre (DACC).

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE

Send first TCG details to DOSEP

ACTION 10 [nley
responders

2.6.3 Off-site Response - Tactical Coordinating Group

The TCG is the main off-site decision-making body at a tactical level. The multi-agency TCG is held
to advise all DOSEP responders about the developing on-site incident and potential progression
towards an off-site nuclear emergency.

The TCG is formed by the multi-agency representatives able to make tactical decisions on behalf of
their organisations. The TCG will be limited to response organisations listed in DOSEP and DCP
Contingency Plan ELECTRON.

Where an on-site incident occurs, there is significant potential for there to be a perception of an off-
site radiological emergency, even though there may be no release of radiation.

The TCG is convened to support multi-agency coordination ahead of the incident’s escalation to an
off-site nuclear emergency (OSNE).

If the incident escalation is likely to result in OSNE declaration, the TCG requests a strategic
coordinating group (SCG) convene. Following this request the TCG also considers colocation,
activating the appropriate tactical coordination centre(s)*, in Plymouth and Cornwall.

Who
Consideration | Decisions to Make Action to Take takes the
action?

Continue multi-agency response
A Hazard reducing activity until incident managed N/A
[YIIMINoO further escalation

Hazard shows continuing

B potential for radiological risk or | Convene a further TCG TCG
the perception of such risk. ACTION 9 Chair

Activate the appropriate TCC(s)
The nature and likely scale of
the situation is such that
responder agencies require the _ TCG
c activation of an SCG to provide Escalate to Loy fle/ NN Chair
direction in managing the
potential off-site consequences

24 DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol (ERP) — Section |1
DOSEP v8.0. Page 38



OFFICIAL Page 43

2.6.4 Opening the Tactical Coordination Centres and Resilient Locations

If, when consideration is given to opening the TCCs, the principal locations in Plymouth and Truro
are unavailable, a resilient secondary location in the appropriate area should be identified and
activated.

2.6.5 TCG Support Cells and Working Groups

During the incident escalation, the TCG should consider activating local partner organisation’s relevent
capabilities to support working groups and cells at the tactical level. Cells activated should include:

=  Mapping Cell (Resilience Direct and other mapping)
* Logistics Cell

=  Vulnerable Persons Coordination Cell

Other cells or working groups will be established as outlined in the LRF Emergency Response
Protocol and supporting guidance.

2.6.6 Devonport Accident Control Centre — On-site to Off-site Tactical Link
When the major incident is declared Devon and Cornwall Police (DCP) and Devon and Somerset
Fire and Rescue Service (DSFRS) allocate liaison officers to function as the link between the

Devonport Accident Control Centre (DACC) and the off-site TCG.

The DCP liaison officer will be an inspector rank or above, who has attended the Nuclear Emergency
Procedures Course (NEPC) and is accompanied by a support officer.

DSFRS send two officers. One will be a group manager rank or above, the other a station manager
rank or above, qualified as a Hazardous Material and Environmental Protection Advisor (HMEPA).

The DCP and DSFRS liaison officers are the link between the DACC and the TCG.
2.6.7 Forward Command Post for Devonport Site

A forward command post (FCP) will be established on site for the site operators and the emergency
responders dealing directly with the incident.

Other FCPs may be established dependent on the area of operations required by the tactical plan
devised by the TCG.

2.6.8 Additional Response Centres
DOSEP partner agencies may establish their own response centres to manage their own operations.

These centres must be in close liaison with their agency’s representative at the TCC to support all
tactical commanders with a shared situational awareness of the multi-agency response activity.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 39



OFFICIAL Page 44

2.6.9 Convene the Strategic Coordinating Group

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
Xea (el BER TCG Chair Request SCG convene

If TCCs not activated, open Plymouth

GLLE LR TCG Chair TCC (and Truro TCC if required)

At the strategic level, a major incident requiring a multi-agency response is coordinated through the
SCG which can meet online or in person.

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE

Send first SCG details to DOSEP

ACTION 13 [rle
responders

2.6.10 Multi-agency Off-site Response — Strategic Coordinating Group

Devon and Cornwall Police are the lead coordinating authority. A strategic police commander of
NPCC rank chairs the SCG. Before declaration of OSNE, colocation of strategic command is likely to
be via MS Teams.

As a2 minimum the SCG should include:

* The MOD Coordinating Authority

= DRDL Strategic Commander

* Plymouth City Council Strategic representative

* Cornwall Council Strategic representative

* The chairs (or nominated deputies), of the working groups or cells

* Devon County Council and South Hams District Council (in the event of an offshore incident at
CHARLIE, DELTA, or ECHO Buoys)

The SCG takes overall responsibility for the multi-agency management of the off-site response to the
radiation emergency through a framework within which the tactical and operational response levels
operate.

At the on-site stage, there is significant potential for the event to be perceived as a radiation
emergency off-site, even though there may be no radiation released. The SCG should consider the
requirements of the strategic framework and activity coordination in anticipation of the declaration of
an off-site nuclear emergency.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 40




OFFICIAL Page 45

2.6.11 Preparation for initiating Urgent Protective Actions

The SCG must confirm adequate and proportionate preparation is in place for the delivery of public
protective actions in the detailed emergency planning zone (DEPZ) appropriate for the declaration of
the off-site nuclear emergency (OSNE) /3

The declaration of an OSNE includes the declaration of a radiation emergency. This requires strategic
command to implement urgent protective actions for members of the public. Protective actions
include sheltering and stable iodine tablet (SIT) distribution.

Stable lodine Tablet distribution has been pre-authorised, in writing, by Plymouth’s Director of Public
Health.

Details of urgent protective actions to be implemented are contained in Part 3, Health Protection and
Protection of the Public, on page 46.

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

SCG Chair and
V:Xeu g [e] 'RV Director of Public
Health

Confirm preparation for Urgent Protective
Actions

2.6.12 Emergency Plans Activated in Support of Health Protection

The following emergency plans are activated in support of health protection in the event of a
radiation emergency at the Devonport Site:

e Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC) Plan for the Local Resilience Forums (LRFs) in the
South West

e Devonport Off-site Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Plan
e Plymouth Radiation Monitoring Unit Deployment Plan
e South West LRF’S Radiation Monitoring Unit Framework
2.6.13 Opening the Strategic Coordination Centre

Consideration should also be given to opening the SCC, to enable agencies to collocate.”” Other
than in exceptional circumstances, the SCC is situated at Police Headquarters, Middlemoor, Exeter®.

25 DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol (ERP) — Section 32
26 DCIOS LRF Strategic Coordination Centre (SCC) Plan

DOSEP v8.0. Page 41



OFFICIAL Page 46
2.6.14 SCG Support Cells and Working Groups

If the incident escalation is likely to result in an OSNE declaration, the SCG should consider activating
lead government departments and relevant supporting working groups or cells.

= Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC)”
* Local Authority Cell

»  Government Liaison Team

* Infrastructure and Utilities Group

= MOD Coordinating Authority

* Media Coordination Centre (Media Cell)*®

=  Multi-agency Information Cell”
Who

Consideration | Decisions to Make Action to Take takes the
action?

Hazard reducing. Continue SCG consider handing back to
A response activity until incident TCG SCG Chair

managed in normal operation.
Hazard shows continuing

B potential for radiological risk or | Convene a further SCG SCG Chair
the perception of such risk.
The nature and likely scale of
the radiation emergency is such
that responder agencies require
C the activation of an SCC to SCG Chair
provide the facilities required to
managing the potential off-site

consequences

RESPONSE

ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
:Xeg (o)) WEN SCG Chair Confirm activation of SCC

27 Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC) Plan for the Local Resilience Forums (LRFs) in the South West
28 | RF Communicating with the Public in an Emergency Plan
29 JESIP Multi-Agency Information Cell (MAIC) Guidance

DOSEP v8.0. Page 42



OFFICIAL Page 47

2.7 Sy Off-Site Nuclear Emergency Declaration
2.7.1 Off-Site Nuclear Emergency

DEVNUSAFE indicates that should an event occur whereby the radiological consequences of the on-
site event extend or have the potential to extend outside the Devonport Site, and which require the
implementation of urgent protective actions for members of the public then an OSNE is declared.
The OSNE declaration is made by the Devonport Site Emergency Controller (EC)

(Note: If the EC is not immediately available, the Duty Manager has the authority to act as the EC. In
addition, the submarine commanding officer or officer of the day can also declare OSNE)

RESPONSE
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
:\ea (o] BIW Devonport Site Declare OSNE

2.7.2 Check Major Incident Declaration

If there has been a rapid escalation to S Wi\€l declare a major incident if this has not already
been done.

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE

Check a major incident has been declared.
If not, then declare a major incident

ACTION 17 pele

2.7.3 Implement Urgent Protective Actions

The declaration of an OSNE includes the declaration of a radiation emergency. This requires strategic
command to implement urgent protective actions for members of the public in the DEPZ. Protective
actions include sheltering and stable iodine tablet (SIT) distribution.

Stable lodine Tablet distribution has been pre-authorised by Plymouth’s Director of Public Health

Details of urgent protective actions to be implemented are contained in Part 3, Health Protection and
Protection of the Public, on page 46.

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

SCG Chair and
:Xeu g [e)\'WE:N Director of Public
Health

Confirm implementation of Urgent
Protective Actions

DOSEP v8.0. Page 43




OFFICIAL Page 48

2.7.4 Off-site Incident - Strategic Coordinating Group

Hold an SCG no later than one hour after the off-site nuclear emergency (OSNE) declaration.

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
ACTION 19 [nley Send SCG details to DOSEP responders

2.7.5 Open the Strategic Coordination Centre

When Devon and Cornwall Police are notified about the OSNE declaration, the duty chief officer
should be informed. The duty chief officer will consult with the chair of the SCG and, if required,

open the SCC following the consideration at paragraph 2.6.5 and [;Xeg (el B}

RESPONSE
v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
ACTION 20 [bley Confirm SCC Open
2.7.6 Establish Working Groups and Cells in support of SCC
If not already operating, establish all working groups and cells to support SCG.
e Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC)*
e Local Authority Cell
e Government Liaison Team
e Infrastructure and Utilities Group
e MOD Coordinating Authority
e Media Coordination Centre (Media Cell)*'
e Multi-agency Information Cell*
RESPONSE
v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
ACTION 21 Do Conflrm Working Groups and Cells are
supporting DCG
Who
Consideration | Decisions to Make Action to Take takes the
action?
The nature and scale of the
radiation emergency is such that
A responder agencies r‘equ‘ire the full Manage at (TN SCG Chair
command and coordination
structure to manage the potential
off-site consequences
Hazard reducing. Continue
B response activity until handover to | SCG handover to RCG SCG Chair
RCG

30 Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC) Plan for the Local Resilience Forums (LRFs) in the South West
31 LRF Communicating with the Public in an Emergency Plan
32 JESIP Multi-Agency Information Cell (MAIC) Guidance

DOSEP v8.0. Page 44




OFFICIAL

Page 49

2.7.7 Command, Control and Coordination

The structure for the command, control and coordination of an off-site nuclear emergency follows
the strategic, tactical and operational format used for major incidents. This is familiar to category |
and 2 responders as defined in the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. In addition, support may be
provided via lead government departments. This is coordinated via the Ministry of Housing,

Communities and Local Government Resilience and Emergencies Directorate (MHCLG RED) and the

Defence Crisis Management Organisation (DCMO). The structure is illustrated in figure 5 below.

‘ Devonport off-site Emergency Plan — Command, Control and Coordination

COBR

MHCLG RED

@l

-~

DCMO
£

PSP

.

. E [ Media Liaison

> o

o E

= [ RCCC
Recovery

Coordination
Group (RCG)

Strategic Coordination Centre
(scc)
Middlemoor Police Headquarters

]——b[ Foreign Governments ]
A

=
Scientific Advisory Group for

-

Emergencies (SAGE)

~
Science and Technical Advice
Cell

(STAC)

=)

/\

Tactical Coordination Centres (TCC)
Plymouth (Primary), Truro and Exeter

-

Individual

Agencies
Response

(=) =] ()

| DOSEP v.8.0 Command & Control 07/24 |

-

Y

Local
Authority
(Emergency Response
Centres)

Devonport Accident Control Centre
(DACC)

Local Authorities’
Capability Cells

Figure 8 DOSEP Command, Control and Coordination Structure

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 45




OFFICIAL

2.8 P\ Criteria for Handover from Response to Recovery

Page 50

To ensure all agencies are aware of the implications and arrangements for handover from the
response to recovery phase, the SCG will meet as soon as possible after the emergency’s
containment, when it meets these nuclear emergency specific criteria:

=  The on-site incident is contained

» There is no significant risk of further radiological release
* Public safety measures are in place and working effectively

In addition:

* Plymouth City Council (and other LAs) convene the recovery coordinating group (RCG)
* Sub-groups supporting the RCG are meeting

* Individual organisations are functioning effectively with adequate resources

Local authority recovery plans are activated in support of community recovery in the event of a
radiation emergency at the Devonport Site.

A formal handover process to local authorities is followed. The DCIOS LRF handover certificate will

be completed™.

Once complete, the handover is communicated to other responding agencies and the community.

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

BY WHOM

ACTION REQUIRED

COMPLETE v

DCP & Local

ACTION 22 Authority

Activate handover to recovery

NOTE: The handover to recovery may be a phased event depending on the emergency. For
example, if multiple sites are affected they may be released to the RCG over a period of time.

33 DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol (ERP) — Section 70

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 46




OFFICIAL Page 51
3 PART 3 -HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC
3.1 Protective actions

The risk to people from a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site can be prevented or reduced
by swift implementation of protective actions.

REPPIR** outlines a protective action as:

“...action that is taken to prevent or reduce radiation exposure of workers, members of the public,
environment and contamination of property in the event of a radiation emergency.”

REPPIR guidance also defines urgent protective action (UPA) aimed at reducing exposure to people
prior to and during the early phase of a radiation emergency. This includes:

e sheltering-in-place

e administration of stable iodine

e evacuation

e restrictions on food and water supplies

Some of this action may be taken on a precautionary basis.
Other urgent protective actions, such as:

e personal decontamination
e medical intervention and reassurance monitoring

may be required by one or more people depending on the outcome and spread of the radiation
emergency.

Over a longer period, protective actions may be needed which help reduce exposure from
surroundings which may have become contaminated and are in the intermediate time where a
response activity transitions through the immediate remediation toward longer term recovery.

Longer term protective actions could, for example, include:

e continuing restrictions on food and water supplies
e temporary and permanent relocation
e recovery action

Recovery action is designed to protect people from longer-term exposures from environmental
contamination and food. Some individuals may benefit from continued precautionary health checks.

3 REPPIR (2019) Reg 2(1) Guidance para 65 (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations
2019 Approved Code of Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk)) [01.02.24].

DOSEP v8.0. Page 47



https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm

OFFICIAL Page 52

3.2 Preparation for initiating Urgent Protective Actions

At SQRNel K] responsefAX®l[e]\ ML the SCG requests confirmation from the DPH that adequate
and proportionate preparation is in place for the delivery of UPAs in the detailed emergency planning
zone (DEPZ) appropriate for the declaration of the off-site nuclear emergency (OSNE)

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Director of Public
Health and SCG
Chair

Confirm preparation for Urgent Protective
Actions

3.3 Protective Actions in the Devonport DEPZ after OSNE

NOTE | - SEE PART 3A on page 56 for alternative information relating to protective actions for
an off-site nuclear emergency in the off-shore DEPZ for CHARLIE DELTA and ECHO Buoys.

NOTE 2 - SEE PART 3B on page 60 for alternative information relating to protective actions for
an off-site nuclear emergency in the off-shore DEPZ for 22 & 23 ANCHORAGES

The declaration of an OSNE at response at response SRFa\€l 3 includes the declaration of a
radiation emergency. This requires strategic command to implement urgent protective actions for
members of the public. Protective actions include sheltering and stable iodine tablet (SIT) distribution

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Director of Public
Health and SCG
Chair

Confirm implementation of Urgent
Protective Actions

Comms & Media |Issue advice to the population in the DEPZ
Cell to “Go In, Stay In and Tune In”.

Plymouth City Activate the Plymouth Emergency
Council Notification System for Devonport

Comms & Media |Consider activating UK Government
Cell Emergency Alerts

3.4 Stable lodine

UK Government guidance® issued in 2023 indicates that radiation emergencies at nuclear reactors
that are operational, or have recently shut down, may result in releases of radioactive forms of iodine
which can accumulate in the thyroid gland. Administration of stable iodine at the right time blocks the
absorption of radioactive iodine by the thyroid gland and speeds up the body’s ability to remove
radioactive iodine. This reduces the risk of harm from radioactive iodine exposure to the thyroid.

33 What to do in a radiation emergency published 30 November 2023
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/radiation-emergencies-information-for-the-public/what-to-do-in-a-radiation-

emergency) [26.07.24].
DOSEP v8.0. Page 48



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/radiation-emergencies-information-for-the-public/what-to-do-in-a-radiation-emergency
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/radiation-emergencies-information-for-the-public/what-to-do-in-a-radiation-emergency

OFFICIAL Page 53
3.5 Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - On Land - Devonport DEPZ

Plymouth City Council (PCC) has developed a subsidiary document, the Devonport off-site Stable
lodine Tablet Distribution Plan, in partnership with the operators, MOD & DRDL. The plan sets out
the arrangements for the delivery of stable iodine tablets (SITs), by military personnel, to members of
the public outside the Devonport Site and within the DEPZ.

The plan details actions required by on-site staff to undertake the off-site distribution on behalf of the
relevant Director of Public Health. Arrangements for the on-site distribution of SITs are detailed
within DEVNUSAFE and local cell orders/check log of actions

Following the OSNE declaration, SITs are delivered in the downwind (45 degree) sector of the
accident submarine. Tablets are distributed within identified SITs delivery zones to the extent of the
geographic limit defined by the DEPZ.

Distribution of SITs is pre-authorised. However, where possible, a conversation to confirm the
distribution should take place. The SITs Distribution Coordinator (a nominated manager in
HMNB(D)) will contact Plymouth City Council’s Director of Public Health, to obtain verbal authority
to start tablet deliveries.

If contact with the DPH (or nominated deputy) is not achieved, the DPH has pre-authorised SITs
distribution on declaration of OSNE. A copy of the pre-authorisation letter is shown at figure 9

NOTE: The SITs Distribution Coordinator uses best endeavours to contact the DPH (or nominated
deputy), to obtain the verbal authority for SITs distribution. If contact is not achieved, the letter
confirming the prior authority to distribute tablets endorses the decision to start deliveries.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
SITs Dist. Attempts contact with DPH requesting

Coordinator authority to distribute.

DPH Grants authority to distribute tablets

SITs Dist.

. Records outcome of DPH Contact.
Coordinator

Confirms DPH authority to distribute,
either through verbal contact or via the
prior confirmation letter.

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Mobilises SITs delivery teams following
instructions in the Devonport off-site
Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Plan

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

DOSEP v8.0. Page 49



OFFICIAL Page 54

OFFICIAL
PLYMCUTH
CITY COUMND
Oifice of the Director
of Public Health
Ruth Harrell
5ITs Distribution Coordinator Director of Public Health
HM Maval Base P‘rﬂﬂuﬂ;(él:'unﬂﬂllﬂ
Plymouth Crownbhi
Taityour Road
Plymouth PL& 50H
T: OI752 307835
E: ruth hiarrel i@ pymouth_govuk
wiwpl Eov.uk
Via email
Date: 27 March 2024 My Ref: RHAS Your Ref:
Dear Sir

Devonport off-site Emergency Plan

The authonty to issue stable iodine tablets [(S1Ts) to the public in the event of a reactor accident on the
Devonport site, rests with the Director of Public Health (DFH). In the event the site operators are unable,
following best endeavours, to contact the DPH or nominated deputy, a pre-authonsation to issue and take
the tablets when ingfructed has been agreed.

In additicn, Plymouth City Council has consulted the Directors of Public Health for the adjacent areas of
Devon and Comwall. They confirm:

* The Plymouth DPH has the authority to pre-authorise distribution and use of these tablets, including their
populations,

and;

* The Plymouth DPH has the authorty to direct the distribution and use of these tablets, to include their
populations.

Therefore in relation to the above plan:

On declaration of the off-site nuclear emergency, | hereby authorize on behalf of Plymouth, Devon and
Comwall DPHs, the site operators to commence igsuing of SiTs to defined members of the public in the
Strategic Coordinating Group (SCG) recommended sector of the Detailed Emergency Planning Zone. The
advice to members of the public is to take the tablets when instructed, in accordance with the directions in
the accompanying leaflet.

Yours faithfully
[, lr_n'EJ-.,, 3

Ruth Harrell
Director of Public Health
Plymouth City Council

Figure 9 DPH Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Authority Letter

DOSEP v8.0. Page 50



OFFICIAL Page 55
3.6 Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft

Following the OSNE declaration, arrangements must be considered to enable people on watercraft
located in the downwind sector of the accident submarine, to the extent of the geographic limit
defined by the DEPZ.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Consider arrangements to enable SITs to
be obtained by people on watercraft inside
the DEPZ and located in downwind sector
of the accident submarine.

DPH

3.7 Communicating Health Information

Radio, television, news and social media announcements are used by Plymouth City Council’s
Director of Public Health and the UK Health Security Agency to provide further advice to the
population concerning:

* The importance of shelter
* How they will receive stable iodine tablets
» Taking the stable iodine tablets in accordance with instructions given on delivery

Communication, warning and informing is coordinated by partner agencies communication teams
working together, as outlined in Part 4 of this plan.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Activate warning and informing channels to
provide advice to the population
concerning, sheltering and obtaining SITs,
with information about when to take SITs.

DPH / UKHSA

3.8 Education and Early Years Settings

Issuing SITs administration instructions to Education & Early Years settings

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Consider issuing SITs administration
instruction to education and early years
settings by local authorities®

DPH / PCC/
Cornwall Council

3 Devonport off-site Emergency Plan Appendix 5 Education and Early Years’ Settings

DOSEP v8.0. Page 51



OFFICIAL

Page 56

3.9 Population Radiation Monitoring

Activation of population radiation monitoring unit(s)

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
DPH / PCC/

Cornwall Council |Consider activating population radiation

/ Devon CC/ monitoring arrangements for Plymouth,

UKHSA / UKHSA | Cornwall and Devon.

RCE

UKHSA SW/ Activate South-West Radiation Monitoring

UKHSA RCE Unit Framework

PCC/CC/DCC

Activate local monitoring unit (RMU)
deployment plans / arrangements

3.10 Health Protection Information

During a radiation emergency, local authorities are required to provide information about the
emergency, what is being undertaken to manage the emergency and any relevant health protection

measures.

The communication and information dissemination is coordinated by partner agencies communication
teams working together, as outlined in Part 4 of this plan.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Provide at regular intervals, and in an

DPH / PCC/ appropriate manner, information and

Cornwall Council |advice about the facts of the emergency,

/ Devon CC the steps being taken and, as appropriate,
the health protection measures.
Information to be relevant to members of
the public in the local authority area.

DPH /PCC/ Information should detail health protection

Cornwall Council |advice such as recommendations to

/ Devon CC shelter, SITs administration, restrictions on

food consumption, hygiene and
decontamination

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 52




OFFICIAL Page 57

3.11 Protective Actions in the Outline Planning Zone

The protective actions identified above may be extended to an OPZ following analysis of radiological
monitoring data compared against the set of site-specific intervention levels (SSIL) determined for
Devonport. The STAC will provide further advice.

Shelter SSIL = 3 mSv Whole body dose Lower Emergency Reference Level
SITs SSIL = 100 mSv | Thyroid dose Upper Emergency Reference Level
Evacuation SSIL | = 300 mSv | Whole body dose Upper Emergency Reference Level

Table | Emergency Reference Levels®

However, there is a requirement to determine that the SSIL values identified here remain appropriate
for the particular circumstances prevailing at the time of the accident and that use of the upper
emergency reference level (ERL) values for extension of SITs distribution and evacuation protective
actions remains justified.

3.12 Health Communication Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ
People outside the DEPZ will be advised to monitor radio, television, news and social media

announcements. Local radio and TV stations will broadcast further advice. However, no special
action need be taken unless informed otherwise by the DPH and /or UKHSA.

TV Radio FM/DAB
BBC | BBC Radio Devon - 1034
ITvV Heart - 88 — 108 (Varies)
Sky News Radio Plymouth - 106.7
BBC Radio Cornwall -95.2
Hits Radio Cornwall -102.2

Table 2 TV and Radio Stations

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Provide at regular intervals, and in an

DPH / PCC/ appropriate manner, information and
Cornwall Council |advice about the facts of the emergency,
/ Devon CC the steps being taken and, as appropriate,

the health protection measures.

%7 Public Health Protection in Radiation Emergencies (Radiation emergencies: public health protection 2019 - GOV.UK

(www.gov.uk)) [13.03.24].
DOSEP v8.0. Page 53



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/radiation-emergencies-public-health-protection-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/radiation-emergencies-public-health-protection-2019

OFFICIAL Page 58

3.13 Preplanning for Protective Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ

Preplanning for the OPZ does not include urgent protective actions such as sheltering in place as
the population is further away from the site. Therefore, any release allows for a greater time to
implement protective actions and/or take decisions about further actions. If protective actions are
implemented, vulnerable communities, food, water, and all farming practices should be considered
immediately.

Local authorities to gather data for the protective actions required in the OPZ, for residential
areas, education, care, nursing, residential and health settings and other vulnerable communities.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Consider protective actions which may be

PCC /;ornwall required beyond the DEPZ but inside the

Council / Devon .

cC OPZ. Gather data to inform necessary

protective actions

3.14 The UK Health Security Agency Role

The UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) is responsible for providing leadership in public health
emergency preparedness, resilience, response and recovery and scientific and technical advice at all
organisational levels, working in partnership with other organisations to protect the public.

UKHSA is a Category | responder with responsibility for all duties under the Civil Contingencies Act
2004. In this role we will provide the expert health protection advice to local authority Directors of
Public Health, the local NHS and to LRF/LHRP structures and their programmes.

In fulfilling these responsibilities UKHSA will:

e Provide specialist services (inc. Health Protection, Field Services, Radiation Chemical and
Environment, Communications & Emergency Preparedness Resilience & Response) in provision
of public health advice and support relating to the health aspects of the incident (including any
necessary public protection measures), and act as a gateway to national sources of specialist
health protection advice,

e Activate and coordinate the provision of a Scientific and Technical Advice Cell (STAC), during
relevant responses, including arranging a Chair, Deputy, Manager, Loggist and administrative
support. If required this includes ensuring the transition of STAC support from the SCG to the
recovery working group during the recovery phase,

e Support the development of public health messages during the response and recovery,

e Provide advice and support regarding monitoring impacts on public health and longer-term
surveillance,

e Deploy suitable representatives to SCG, TCG, Communications and Recovery Group as
required,

e Provide suitable representatives to an Air Quality Cell if convened and support with analysing
any monitoring data.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 54



OFFICIAL Page 59
3.15 The Science and Technical Advice Cell
The Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC) is activated because of the potential for significant
health and environmental consequences as a result of a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site.

This reflects the need for scientific and technical advice beyond any initial front-line response.

The STAC brings together technical experts from those agencies involved in the response who can
provide scientific and technical advice to the SCG Chair.

During the escalation process for response to the radiation emergency, an SCG is convened. The
chair requests a STAC be formed by contacting the UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) South
West (SW) Region Duty Consultant in Health Protection (CHP).

Should an incident at Devonport be deemed likely to have an impact on the health of the local

population, the STAC will be recommended to the SCG chair by senior public health professional
such as:

e Local Authority Director of Public Health

e Consultant in Health Protection
e UKHSA SW Region Centre Director

In the initial stages of any emergency, the immediate concern is likely to be the risk to human health
from the substances involved and any possible mitigation measures required.

3.16 Emergency Plans Activated in Support of Health Protection

The following emergency plans are activated in support of health protection in the event of a
radiation emergency at the Devonport Site:

e Science and Technical Advice Cell (STAC) Plan for the Local Resilience Forums (LRFs) in the
South West (SW-LRF STAC PLAN v04.00, UKHSA, 2022)

e Devonport off-site Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Plan (MOD & PCC, 2024)

e Plymouth Radiation Monitoring Unit Deployment Plan (PCC, 2024) informed by Nuclear and
Radiological Emergencies: South-West Radiation Monitoring Unit Framework

DOSEP v8.0. Page 55



OFFICIAL Page 60

3A HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC CHARLIE, DELTA
and ECHO BUOYS DEPZ

3A.1. Advance Warning for Dispersal from or Evacuate the Bovisand / Staddon Areas

If sufficient warning is given of a declaration of an emergency, or if the situation favours the controlled
dispersal or evacuation of the population, police and other emergency responders will be allocated to
the Bovisand/Staddon Height areas to warn and advise the public/residents to evacuate the area.

* The Police will deploy officers to control traffic flow at the following locations to allow efficient
clearance of the area: -

(1) Hooe Hill and Staddon Lane
(2) Jennycliff Lane and Staddon Lane
(3) Renney Road and Bovisand Lane

As a precaution an evacuation assembly point (EAP) will be identified during the incident. Immediate
assistance and/or onward travel will be arranged for displaced people, where there is either no suitable
shelter available, or they have no means of transport.

* The police can request resources from Devon County Council (DCC) to support the evacuation.

3A.2. Advance Warning to Evacuate Drakes Island

Drakes Island is uninhabited. Organisers of visits and events consider evacuation from the island in an
emergency

If sufficient warning is given of a declaration of an emergency, the police will request activation of the
emergency notification Drakes Island SMS group to advise event organisers to evacuate.

3A.3. Protective Actions in the CHARLIE, DELTA & ECHO Buoy DEPZ after OSNE

The declaration of an OSNE at response at response SFa\€l 3 includes the declaration of a
radiation emergency. This requires strategic command to implement urgent protective actions for
members of the public. Protective actions include sheltering and stable iodine tablet (SIT) distribution

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Director of Public | Confirm implementation of Urgent
Health and SCG  |Protective Actions

Chair

Comms & Media |Consider activating messaging to evacuate
Cell Bovisand, Staddon ad Drake’s Island
Plymouth City Issue advice to the population in the
Council CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO Buoys

DEPZ to “Go In, Stay In and Tune In”.
Activate the Emergency Notification
System for CHARLIE, DELTA & ECHO
Buoys

Comms & Media |Consider activating UK Government
Cell Emergency Alerts

DOSEP v8.0. Page 56



OFFICIAL Page 61

Plymouth City Council (PCC) has developed a subsidiary document, the Devonport off-site Stable
lodine Tablet Distribution Plan, in partnership with the operators, MOD & DRDL. The plan sets out
the arrangements for the delivery of stable iodine tablets (SITs), by military personnel, to members of
the public in the CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO Buoys DEPZ.

Following the OSNE declaration, SITs are delivered in the downwind sector of the accident
submarine. Tablets are distributed to identified SITs delivery locations.

Distribution of SITs is pre-authorised. However, where possible, a conversation to confirm the
distribution should take place. The SITs Distribution Coordinator (a nominated manager in
HMNB(D)) will contact Plymouth City Council’s Director of Public Health, to obtain verbal
agreement to start tablet deliveries.

If contact with the DPH (or nominated deputy) is not achieved, the DPH has pre-authorised SITs
distribution on declaration of OSNE. A copy of the pre-authorisation letter is shown at figure 9

NOTE: The SITs Distribution Coordinator uses best endeavours to contact the DPH (or nominated
deputy), to obtain the verbal authority for SITs distribution. If contact is not achieved, the letter
confirming the prior authority to distribute tablets endorses the decision to start deliveries.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
SITs Dist. Attempts contact with DPH requesting

Coordinator authority to distribute.

DPH Grants authority to distribute tablets

SITs Dist.

. Records outcome of DPH Contact.
Coordinator

Confirms DPH authority to distribute,
either through verbal contact or via the
prior confirmation letter.

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Initiate the distribution of stable iodine
tablets in the downwind sector of the
accident submarine. Tablets are distributed
to locations listed in section 3A.6.
following instructions in the Devonport
off-site Stable lodine Tablet Distribution
Plan

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

DOSEP v8.0. Page 57



OFFICIAL Page 62

3A.4. Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft

Following the OSNE declaration, arrangements must be considered to enable people on watercraft
located in the downwind sector of the accident submarine, to the extent of the geographic limit
defined by the DEPZ.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Consider arrangements to enable SITs to
be obtained by people on watercraft inside
the DEPZ and located in downwind sector
of the accident submarine.

DPH

3A.5. Stable lodine Tablet Deliveries

If the emergency involves a submarine on CHARLIE, DELTA or ECHO Buoys and the wind is blowing
from between 235 degrees and 300 degrees, then SITs deliveries are required inside the DEPZ to
properties in the vicinity of Bovisand and Staddon Heights.

3A.6. Identified Stable lodine Delivery Locations

i. Staddon Heights residents & Staddon Heights Golf Club

Residents located in the Staddon Heights area and visitors to the Staddon Heights Golf Club will
be advised to “Go In, Stay In and Tune In”, in their properties or the Staddon Heights Golf Club
House until further advised or evacuated

The Director of Public Health will advise people about the importance of shelter and the
distribution of SITs via radio, social media and television announcements

A leaflet delivered with the SITs advises that instructions as to when the tablets should be taken,
will be broadcast through radio, social media or television.

ii. Bovisand Diving Centre

Divers at the Bovisand Diving Centre or visitors to the marina associated with the diving centre,
will be advised to take shelter in the diving school through the “Go In, Stay In and Tune In”
announcement until further advised or evacuated

The Director of Public Health will advise people about the importance of shelter and distribution
of SITs via radio, social media and television announcements

A leaflet delivered with the SITs advises that instructions as to when the tablets should be taken,
will be broadcast through radio, social media or television

iii. Bovisand Lodge Estate

Residents, holiday makers, staff and visitors to the Bovisand Lodge Estate will be advised to take
shelter. They will be directed by the management to shelter in the private houses, following the
“Go In, Stay In and Tune In” announcement, until further advised or evacuated

DOSEP v8.0. Page 58



OFFICIAL Page 63

* The Director of Public Health will advise people about the importance of shelter and distribution
of SITs through radio, social media and television announcements

= A l|eaflet delivered with the SITs advises that instructions as to when the tablets should be taken,
will be broadcast through radio, social media or television

iv. Bovisand Park and Cedar Park

* Residents, holiday makers, staff and visitors to either Bovisand Park or Cedar Park will be advised
to take shelter. They will be directed to “Go In, Stay In and Tune In”, until further advised or
evacuated

* The Director of Public Health will advise people about the importance of shelter and distribution
of SITs through radio, social media and television announcements

= A leaflet delivered with the tablets advises that instructions as to when the tablets should be taken,
will be broadcast through radio, social media or television

v. Transient Population and Beach Goers

* On receiving the major incident declaration, and if it is safe to do so, police and other emergency
responders will be allocated to these areas to advise transient population and beach goers to
evacuate the area unless circumstances dictate finding suitable shelter.

* The Director of Public Health will advise people about the importance of shelter and distribution
of SITs through radio, social media and television announcements

= A leaflet delivered with the tablets advises that instructions as to when the tablets should be taken,
will be broadcast through radio, social media or television

vi. Transport Routes & South West Coast Path

Devon & Cornwall Police will implement cordons around the DEPZ to stop commuters and walkers
from entering the zone. All non-emergency personnel will be directed away from the area.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 59



OFFICIAL Page 64

3B HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC
22 & 23 ANCHORAGE DEPZ

3B.1. Advance Warning to Evacuate the Area
The 22 & 23 Anchorage DEPZ is entirely over water.

If sufficient warning is given of a declaration of an emergency, or if the situation favours the controlled
evacuation of the area, HM Coastguard, the King’s Harbour Master and the police will warn and advise
members of the public and watercraft to evacuate the area.

3B.2. Protective Actions in the 22 & 23 Anchorage DEPZ after OSNE

The declaration of an OSNE at response at response W\l 3! includes the declaration of a
radiation emergency. This requires strategic command to implement urgent protective actions for
members of the public. Protective actions include sheltering and stable iodine tablet (SIT) distribution

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Director of Public
Health and SCG
Chair

Confirm implementation of Urgent
Protective Actions

Consider issuing advice to the members of
the public and watercraft to evacuate the
22 & 23 Anchorage DEPZ.

Comms & Media
Cell

Consider additional communication
channels for warning and informing in the
22 & 23 Anchorage DEPZ.

Comms & Media
Cell

Comms & Media |Consider activating UK Government
Cell Emergency Alerts

Plymouth City Council (PCC) has developed a subsidiary document, the Devonport off-site Stable
lodine Tablet Distribution Plan, in partnership with the operators, MOD & DRDL.

Distribution of SITs is pre-authorised. However, where possible, a conversation to confirm the
distribution should take place. The SITs Distribution Coordinator (a nominated manager in
HMNB(D)) will contact Plymouth City Council’s Director of Public Health, to obtain verbal
agreement to start tablet deliveries.

If contact with the DPH (or nominated deputy) is not achieved, the DPH has pre-authorised SITs
distribution on declaration of OSNE. A copy of the pre-authorisation letter is shown at figure 9

NOTE: The SITs Distribution Coordinator uses best endeavours to contact the DPH (or nominated

deputy), to obtain the verbal authority for SITs distribution. If contact is not achieved, the letter
confirming the prior authority to distribute tablets endorses the decision to start deliveries.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 60



OFFICIAL

Page 65

BY WHOM

ACTION REQUIRED

COMPLETE v

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Attempts contact with DPH requesting
authority to distribute.

DPH

Grants authority to distribute tablets

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Records outcome of DPH Contact.

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Confirms DPH authority to distribute,
either through verbal contact or via the
prior confirmation letter.

Not Applicable

Not applicable as DEPZ is over water

3B.3. Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft

Following the OSNE declaration, arrangements must be considered to enable people on watercraft
located in the downwind sector of the accident submarine, to the extent of the geographic limit

defined by the DEPZ.

the DEPZ and located in downwind sector
of the accident submarine.

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Consider arrangements to enable SITs to
DPH be obtained by people on watercraft inside

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 61




OFFICIAL Page 66
4. PART 4 - COMMUNICATIONS AND WARNING AND INFORMING

Nuclear Emergency Planning and Response Guidance issued in 2015 indicates that agencies involved
in response to a radiological incident at the Devonport Site, should consider appropriate warning and
informing preparation is in place ahead of any reasonably foreseeable radiation emergency®.

DOSEP supplements the Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly LRF document Communicating with the
Public in an Emergency Plan. This plan outlines communication activity delivered for all emergencies.
Lead agencies may vary dependent on the type of incident.

4.1. Information to the Public and Media in the Event of a Radiation Emergency

A radiation emergency at the Devonport Site will create immediate and sustained demand for
information from the media and members of the public, as well as widespread sharing of information
on social media platforms.

This means all agencies need to work together to ensure accurate, authoritative and timely
information is provided to the public and the media throughout the incident.

This will involve the proactive use of official communication channels such as council and police
websites and social media platforms, television, radio and news websites and email and text message
alerts.

Significant media and social media activity will likely continue through the incident response and
recovery phases.

4.2. Communications and Warning and Informing Objectives

* To provide authoritative and timely information to all incident stakeholders to ensure they can
take the right actions to stay safe, minimise the risk of alarm and confusion and prevent
inaccurate information being shared by the media and on social media

* To coordinate all communication activity and public messages from the responding agencies and
work with the Cabinet Office and other Government agencies to ensure authoritative and
accurate information is shared

* To provide regular updates to all stakeholders using the full range of communication platforms

* To make effective use of all communication tools to reassure the wider community across
Plymouth, Devon and Cornwall that plans to manage a radiation incident at the Devonport Site
and maintain public safety are being implemented

* To ensure employees of all responding agencies are kept fully informed through regular internal
briefings and updates

3 Nuclear Emergency Planning and Response Guidance — Part 2 -
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5a7f5e6ee5274a2e87db56f | /INEPRG02_-_Response.pdf [02.05.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 62



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5a7f5e6ee5274a2e87db56f1/NEPRG02_-_Response.pdf

OFFICIAL

4.2.1

Page 67

Stakeholder and Communication Channels

A radiation incident on the Devonport Site will require communication with a wide range of

stakeholders. See tables below:

On the Devonport Site
STAKEHOLDER

INFORMATION NEEDED

CHANNEL / PLATFORM

All staff based at / working on the
Devonport Site

Actions to take

MoD and Babcock internal
channels

1.

Partner Agencies

STAKEHOLDER

INFORMATION NEEDED

CHANNEL / PLATFORM

All partner agencies

Actions to take

Partner agency internal channels

STAKEHOLDER
People living and staying in the
Devonport DEPZ

To include:

Plymouth: Morice Town,
Devonport, Ford, Keyham, North
Prospect, Ham, Camel’s Head,
Weston Mill, St Budeaux and
Barne Barton

Cornwall: Torpoint and Wilcove

Devon:

People living and staying in the
CHARLIE DELTA and ECHO
Buoys DEPZ

Bovisand and nearby Caravan and

Camping Parks

‘ INFORMATION NEEDED

Residents Outside the Devonport Site — Detailed Emergency Planning Zone (DEPZ)

CHANNEL / PLATFORM
Send Word Now text alert

Cabinet Office Emergency Alert
message

Police / Council Twitter (X)
Council Facebook

Council Next Door
Council email bulletins
Council WhatsApp

Media: including BBC Radio Devon,
Greatest Hits Radio, ITV
Westcountry, Plymouth Live

Door knocking (if activated)

Leaflet drop (if activated)

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 63




OFFICIAL

Page 68

iv. Residents Outside the DEPZ but inside the OPZ

STAKEHOLDER

People living and staying outside
the Devonport DEPZ but in the
OPZ

To include:

Plymouth inside OPZ
Cornwall inside OPZ
Devon:

People living and staying outside
the CHARLIE DELTA and ECHO
Buoys DEPZ but in the OPZ

‘ INFORMATION NEEDED

CHANNEL / PLATFORM
Send Word Now text alert

Cabinet Office Emergency Alert
message

Police / Council Twitter (X)
Council Facebook

Council Next Door
Council email bulletins
Council WhatsApp

Media: including BBC Radio Devon,
Greatest Hits Radio, ITV
Westcountry, Plymouth Live

v. Education and Early Years Settings — Detailed Emergency Planning Zone
and All Locations in OPZ where SITs are pre-distributed

(Note — a specific Devonport addendum for the “Managing a School Emergency Practical Guide” is
issued to all education and early years settings where SITs are distributed)

STAKEHOLDER

Education and early years settings
where SITs are pre-distributed

‘ INFORMATION NEEDED
Actions to take

What to tell parents

CHANNEL / PLATFORM

Send Word Now text alert to
designated contacts / service
managers

Phone calls

Council email to principals and
service managers

Nurseries in the detailed
emergency planning zone without
pre-distributed SITs

Actions to take.

What to tell parents

Phone calls

Council email to managers

Parents

Action to take concerning their
children in school or nursery,
including the nursery facility on
the Devonport Site

In addition to ‘residents’ — direct
contact from providers

vi. Businesses Outside the Devonport Site — Detailed Emergency Planning Zone

STAKEHOLDER ‘ INFORMATION NEEDED CHANNEL / PLATFORM
Businesses Action to take about staying Phone calls (in addition to channels
open or closing outlined in ‘residents’)
After OSNE visits by responding
SITs distribution teams, downwind
sectors only
DOSEP v8.0. Page 64




OFFICIAL Page 69

vii. ~ Vulnerable Persons Settings — Detailed Emergency Planning Zone
STAKEHOLDER ‘ INFORMATION NEEDED CHANNEL / PLATFORM
Care homes within DEPZ Actions to take Phone calls (in addition to channels

outlined in ‘residents’)

After OSNE visits by responding
SITs distribution teams, downwind
sectors only

Supported housing schemes within | Actions to take Phone calls (in addition to channels
DEPZ outlined in ‘residents’)

After OSNE visits by responding
SITs distribution teams, downwind
sectors only

viii.  Transport and Marine Traffic
STAKEHOLDER ‘ INFORMATION NEEDED CHANNEL / PLATFORM
Transport providers — bus, rail Actions to take re services and Phone calls and direct messages
and ferry services information to share on their

communication channels

Boat and watercraft users on Radio messages via KHM / MCGA
River Tamar / Hamoaze /
Plymouth Sound

ix. Elected Representatives Parliament and Local Government

STAKEHOLDER ‘ INFORMATION NEEDED CHANNEL / PLATFORM

Members of Parliament Regular updates and information | Phone briefings
* Plymouth Sutton and Devonport | they can share with constituents
= Plymouth Moor View

* South West Devon

= Torridge and Tavistock
* South East Cornwall
Local Authority Elected Members | Regular updates and information | Phone briefings
* Plymouth they can share with constituents
= Cornwall

* Devon, West Devon & S Hams

Email updates

Email updates

X. Assistance Centres

STAKEHOLDER INFORMATION NEEDED CHANNEL / PLATFORM
Potential rest and assistance Regular updates and information | Via rest / assistance centre
centre locations for people accommodated at the | management team

centres

DOSEP v8.0. Page 65



OFFICIAL Page 70

4.3. Communication Activation

Following the activation of DOSEP, communication leads for all responding agencies will follow the
procedures set out in this section. However, some communication activity may be required before
formal activation of the plan to respond to social media or media activity.

4.3.1. Communication Activation
DOSEP will be implemented if:

* A radiation emergency has occurred
= An event has occurred which could give rise to a radiation emergency
= An event occurs which could be perceived as a radiation emergency off-site, but will not result in

irradiation or a release of radiation®
4.3.2. Activation for a false alarm

If a false alarm sounds at the Devonport Site, refer to the Devonport Site Nuclear Accident Alarm — False
Alarm Communication Protocol. Actions listed in the false alarm protocol provide clear and appropriate
reassurance for members of the public.

4.4. Incident Alert - Local Activity

If the Devonport Site operators identify that there has been an abnormal event with potential for an
off-site radiological hazard, the perception of such a hazard, or a false alarm, MOD, DRDL, PCC and
DCP communications leads should be notified immediately.

If the Dockyard siren is sounded then a holding statement must be issued as soon as possible.

4.4.1. Actions for Communication Leads

= Communications leads for the MOD and Babcock should liaise with communication leads from
other partner agencies at an early stage and agree public and internal holding statements for
media and social media

* Ensure communications staff are on standby to join a communications and media call
* |dentify who will attend SCG and TCG meetings if instigated
* Ensure wider partner communications leads are briefed

* Monitor the media and social media for any relevant activity.

4.5. Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan Activation
DOSEP is activated if there is an abnormal event with either:
Potential for an off-site radiological hazard

or
The perception of such a hazard

3% REPPIR (2019) Reg 17 ACOP Para 490 (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019 Approved
Code of Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk)) [19.01.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 66



https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm

OFFICIAL Page 71

Devon & Cornwall Police will hold a PEAT, which should be attended by communications leads from
these agencies:

* Devon & Cornwall Police (DCP)

= Ministry of Defence Police

* The Devonport Site operators (MOD & Babcock International)
* UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA)

* Plymouth City Council

* Cornwall Council

* Devon County Council (ONLY for incidents at CHARLIE, DELTA, and ECHO buoys)

The PEAT will identify a communications lead, who will be responsible for preparing to implement
the multi-agency communication, warning, informing and media strategy in line with the DCIOS LRF
document Communicating with the Public in an Emergency Plan.

The lead will be responsible — alongside responders from each agency — for ensuring communications
officers from all relevant agencies are kept informed and begin preparing for a potential further
escalation of the incident.

At this stage it may not be clear what the incident involves and how it may develop but it is essential
that there is not a delay in acknowledging to the public that there has been an incident, the full details
are not known yet and that information will be shared as soon as they are known.

4.5.1. Actions for Communication Leads

* [ssue holding statements if the Devonport nuclear siren has been sounded — these can be shared
by key agencies

= Attend the PEAT meeting

= Agree a plan for communicating with media as soon as possible

* Decide text and email alert messages — and be prepared to implement

=  Agree holding lines for media, social media and internal communications

=  Allocate senior staff to attend SCG, tactical and other meetings

=  Set up regular communication staff briefings

* Identify and brief talking heads able to carry out interviews

* Identify the potential locations for a forward media briefing point

*  Put talking head up for interview if necessary

* Draft — and issue as necessary — internal communications messages

*  Ensure there running updates are published on the Council’s website — and this is promoted as a
definitive source for latest updates

DOSEP v8.0. Page 67



OFFICIAL Page 72

4.6. Major Incident Declared
4.6.1. Tactical Level

If a major incident is declared the TCG is formed to make decisions to ensure public safety outside of
the Devonport Site.

While the incident may only be affecting the Devonport Site and no radiation released, there will be
significant potential for public concern about safety outside the site.

A senior communications lead will be assigned to the TCC, attending either in person or on-line to
ensure all media and communication activity is coordinated and that communications leads for each
partner organisation are kept fully informed of actions they need to take.

4.6.2. Strategic Level

An SCG will be formed, and a dedicated, multi-agency Communications and Media Cell will also be
formed, led by a senior communications manager from Devon and Cornwall Police, who will report
to the SCG and attend meetings.

The Communications and Media Cell is likely to convene on-line, though it may be necessary for
communication leads to attend in person.

4.6.3. Template Media Statements

To assist the rapid agreement of key messages for public information statements and media releases,
a series of template media releases are detailed in section 4.8. These template statements must be
amended as appropriate, and the information verified by the Communications and Media Cell lead
before publication.

4.6.4. Role of the Communications and Media Cell

A Devon and Cornwall Police communications manager is likely to chair the Communications and
Media Cell in the first instance, but consideration will be given to another organisation chairing the
cell if that agency’s expertise aligns with the likely impact of the incident.

The lead agency chairing the media cell is responsible for managing information released to the public
and the media where it concerns activity outside the Devonport Site.

Partner agencies can release pre-agreed statements, background information, practical information

which relate specifically to their own responsibilities but must coordinate this activity through the cell
lead.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 68



OFFICIAL Page 73
4.6.5. Staffing the Communications and Media Cell
Communications staff from the following agencies will form the Communications and Media Cell:

* Devon and Cornwall Police

* Ministry of Defence

= Babcock International (Devonport Royal Dockyard Ltd)
* Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service

* South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust
= University Hospitals Plymouth NHS

* UK Health Security Agency

= NHS England

* Plymouth City Council

* Cornwall Council

* Devon County Council

* South Hams District Council

* Environment Agency

* Food Standards Agency

Other responding agencies may be asked to contribute to the Communications and Media Cell.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 69



OFFICIAL Page 74

4.7. Off-site Nuclear Emergency Declaration

The Devonport Site Emergency Controller (EC) declares an OSNE when the consequences of the
on-site event extend, or have the potential to extend, outside the Devonport Site. This will lead to a
greater focus on the actions and information from the Police and local authorities in ensuring public
safety.

4.7.1. The Devonport Site Siren
The Devonport Siren is not part of the public warning and informing infrastructure.

The activation of the siren(s) notifies personnel on-site that an OSNE has been declared. Members of
the public in the surrounding area can hear this siren and may assume that a radiation emergency is
unfolding.

The media cell should consider aligning any external communication with internal messaging issued by
the Devonport Site operators.

NOTE - If the Devonport Siren is sounded outside of its normal test routine and no
radiation emergency is signalled, the Devonport Site Nuclear Accident Alarm - False
alarm communication protocol is activated

4.7.2. Media Briefing and Interviews

An OSNE at the Devonport Site will result in significant and sustained interest from national media
organisations. They are likely to try to seek access to information, interviews and imagery from the
scene.

It is essential that senior representatives from the key responding organisations talk to the media at
an early stage, providing what information has been confirmed so far, and continue to be available at
regular intervals throughout the incident.

The media cell chair should agree who will conduct this role and where a forward media briefing
point should be set up. This should be outside of any emergency cordon and away from operational
locations. It is important to consider whether the location will remain available for a number of days
and what facilities are available for both interviewees and media representatives.

4.7.3. Coordination with National Agencies/Government

Once the emergency has attracted national and international media interest, a News Coordination
Centre, (NCC), may be put into place by the UK Government. The NCC will normally be activated
when COBR is convened for an emergency but may also be stood-up if required by a particular
government department.

The NCC advises the lead government department on media handling and also assists with national
messages being released by agencies. The NCC also ensures consistency with messages from the
government in relation to a local emergency, or if the emergency is cross-department.

It is essential that the local media cell has a close working relationship with the NCC to ensure local
and national messages are clear and consistent. The media cell will designate a single point of contact
for the NCC to liaise with. This liaison officer will usually be a senior communications officer from
either Police, the MOD or Local Authority.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 70



OFFICIAL Page 75

4.7.4. Internal Communications
It is essential that employees of all responding agencies are provided with regular updates covering
the facts about the incident and actions they need to take. These messages should reflect the public

information and be coordinated and consistent. All internal messages should be considered to be in
the public domain as they may be shared on social media and picked up by the media organisations.

4.7.5. The Emergency Notification System

Plymouth City Council maintains an emergency notification system (ENS) for use in the unlikely event
of a radiation emergency. The ENS is used to send SMS text messages, voice messages and emails to
people who choose to register their details on the system.

Plymouth City Council activates the ENS at the declaration of an OSNE.

The agreed message states:

“There has been a radiation emergency at Devonport Dockyard. Go inside, close all windows and doors.
Check local TV, radio and social media for more information.”

4.7.6. Emergency Alerts

The UK Governments Emergency Alerts system is used to provide warning and informing
information to people in the area likely to be affected by a radiation emergency. Emergency Alerts
can send a message to mobile phones or tablets to warn people if there is a danger to life nearby.
The message will include details of how to search for more information.

For designated nuclear sites such as Devonport there are two routes to activating the Emergency
Alerts system.

A decision to request an emergency alert via either the REPPIR or the SCG process, should be
considered at an early stage.

4.7.7. Emergency Alerts REPPIR Request Process

Authorised individual: decision to send an alert Alert preparation

The alert is drafted with all of the An approved

While the message

Have all the thresholds been met:

Is there a risk to life? Y/N The is being finalised, following information included individual sends
Off Site e an-area that pre-approved an approved . Issuing Authority the drafted alert to
Radiation can be defined? Y/N individual individual informs . Date and Time COBR Unit
Emergency o i urgenc-y‘7 Y/N confirms the the COBR Unit . Subject Watchkeepers at
is declared Do the public neled to take a decision to Watchkeepers on . Action the public must take nss.watchkeeperl
specific action? Y/N issue an alert 0203 793 1859 to . Specific location @cabinetoffice.gov
: expect an alert . Direction to further info .uk

SCG: Alert follow-up

COBR Unit Ministerial Local authority

COBR Unit . R Emergency alert is Local authority X If the alert is
Watchkeeper I:us?n[:g;cc:g; autho:;g?t:hon 1S released via mobile confirms that cjnilwstwhlih GgE being
inputs the — tg review andy agr:":ortla th:rrue1 network operators and the alert has nv‘vhe? 1Che Zleeﬁiers updated, this
alert into - -~ out to handsets in the been received process
Notify authorise the million defined area on the ground should be D p—
alert recipients updated/terminated

Figure 10 Emergency Alerts - REPPIR Process

DOSEP v8.0. Page 71



OFFICIAL Page 76

The Cabinet Office has agreed that REPPIR regulated nuclear sites can request an Emergency Alert in
the event of an OSNE. This agreement recognises that, in this type of emergency, there may not be
sufficient time to convene an SCG, therefore, the Cabinet Office is content for police gold or silver
to request an alert.

Emergency Alert messages must contain:

* The subject

* Time and date

* A specific location

* The authorising authority

* Clear action for the public to take

= A website where the public can receive more information

The current Cabinet Office capability can push alerts to electoral wards or local authority boundaries
The suggested message states:

This is an emergency alert issued by [x].

An Offsite Nuclear Emergency has occurred at [site name] on [date / time].

Please get inside and stay inside. Shut all windows and doors.

For further information, tune into [local radio station], or search for [local authority website]

and gov.uk/alerts.

4.7.8. Emergency Alerts SCG Request Process

SCG: decision to send an alert SCG: Alert preparation

/" Hawe ail the thresholds been ¢~ scoonar i it alert, inclisting e SCG Comms
mat g massage s being Tollowing: Cell sends the
. . s B drafted, the 8CG p p
= I there a risk b life? YN decision o issuwe atad . l==uing Authorily drafted aleri to
Major ol |= the incident in an anea an alert, afer e Be the COBR - Diate arid Tirme COBR Unit
incident thal san be defined? YN consulation with = rmiin: - Subject Watchkeepers at
| & o . . .
- 1= Ihel:e urgeney ¥R the rest of the Watehkespers. on L3 Action the public must nss.watchkesper
L Desag the public nead to SCG, including 0203 733 1855 10 ke 1@cabinetoffice
take vific action? ¥il the GLO! i '
ake & specific action " L] expect an alet L ":ﬂ" - gow.ulk

Alert release SCG: Alert follow-up

COBR Unit Wiriisterial - -
COBR Unit Duty autharisation Emergency alert is o n‘ﬁfr[:lgthat SC'?E"?BH;{'ITLI"% with If the alartis
Watchkeeper Director logs is gained if released via mobile el o e it
inputsthe  — into Notifyto  —»  thereare network operators z Eepers ek
alert into review and more than 1 and out to handsets =en when the slert p

begins
again

. . -~ r received on should be
Ry auh;r;._teﬂne mm_'"_m“m iz faie: fee the ground updatediterminated

Figure || Emergency Alerts - SCG Process

Following a major incident, if all the ‘thresholds for use’ are met and an SCG has
been formed, the following steps can be taken:

The Chair of the SCG confirms the decision to request the release of an alert, having
assessed all potential local impacts with local partners.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 72


http://gov.uk/alerts

OFFICIAL Page 77

Wherever possible, all communications leads from the key agencies contributing to the response
should be notified in advance about:

* The decision for the need to send an alert

* The alert’s content

* Timing

* Geographic coverage

The Communications and Media Cell lead is responsible for the Emergency Alert message, alongside
supporting communications.

Following approval of the alert by the SCG Chair, the nominated representative from the
Communications and Media Cell emails the COBR Unit Watchkeepers with the alert message, this is
followed up with a telephone call.

The SCG must consider when they want the alert to cease transmitting.

Following the release of an emergency alert, the SCG/TCG should attempt, where possible, to
validate via local personnel, that the message has been received on the ground. This is important
because some crises may impact the phone signal across the affected area and if the SCG expects
members of the public to respond to an alert, they must have confidence that the message has been
seen by the public.

4.7.9. Actions for Communication Leads

* Ensure spokespersons provide interviews at regular intervals
* Allocate someone to liaise with the News Coordination Centre (NCC), if set up

* Ensure Send Word Now emergency text messages are sent, if they have not already been
issued. If so, consider the need for further messages.

* Ensure emergency alert message is followed up with a call to COBR Unit Watchkeepers
* Brief all members of the Communications and Media Cell

* Allocate communications officers to support a recovery group

* Ensure staff are available to relieve cell members if the event is likely to be prolonged

* Ensure leads are dedicated to monitoring posts and questions on social media and preparing
answers to a Q&A section on the Plymouth City Council website

* Ensure all media enquiries are being logged and responded to

* Check any arrangements for rest centres and allocate communication leads to attend to
manage media interest

* Ensure regular internal communications updates are being issued

* Check MPs and Elected Members are being briefed

DOSEP v8.0. Page 73



OFFICIAL Page 78

4.8. Pre-prepared Media Statement Templates

These draft statements can be used as prompts for issuing timely media statements. It is
important that there are no delays in communicating important updates so the
communication lead should not wait for full statements if all the information is not known.

4.8.1. Incident Limited to the Devonport Site

Incident at HM Naval Base Devonport/Devonport Royal Dockyard
News release |

An incident occurred at ##### today on board the nuclear-powered submarine HMS .............

which is alongside at Devonport Naval Base.
Insert confirmed details of incident including any casualties.

The Devonport Emergency Response Organisation has been called into action to deal with the

incident and all non-essential personnel have been evacuated from the submarine.

An exclusion zone has been established around the submarine but there is no identifiable risk to the

public outside of the Naval Base or to the workforce on the site.

The health and safety of the public and our own personnel is our number one priority, and we will

provide further information on this incident as soon as it becomes available.
If you live near the Devonport Site you do not need to take any special safety precautions, but we

ask that other members of the public stay away from the area to keep roads clear to allow easy

access for emergency vehicles.
NOTES TO EDITORS

Please use (insert numbers) when calling about information relating to this incident.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 74



OFFICIAL Page 79
4.8.2. A Nuclear Emergency is Declared Affecting Areas Outside the Dockyard
Incident at HM Naval Base Devonport/Devonport Royal Dockyard

News release 2

The incident involving the nuclear-powered submarine HMS ............. this morning, date, at
location, has developed and an Off-Site Nuclear Emergency has been declared by the Devonport

Emergency Response Organisation.

There is no hazard external to the submarine but, as a precautionary measure, the emergency
services, the Ministry of Defence, Babcock, Plymouth City Council and the UK Health Security
Agency have put their safety plans into operation. This means that everyone working on the
Devonport site (excluding those dealing with the incident) are being looked after in our on-site

shelter stations and members of the public living in the following areas (define areas) are advised to:

GO IN - Go indoors and stay there.
Shut all windows and doors — shut down fans, fires, ventilators or any air
conditioning system drawing air from outside the building.

If people are away from their home they should go into the nearest building.

STAYIN - Please do not go outside until advised to do so.
Do not collect your children from school until you are asked

to do so — the school will take care of them until then.

TUNEIN - Listen out for emergency text notifications
Look for updates on official Plymouth City Council and Police social media
platforms
Visit the Plymouth City Council website for the latest updates

www.plymouth.gov.uk

Listen to local radio and TV news bulletins

Stable iodine tablets are currently being distributed to people working and living in the defined areas.
We are now advising anyone who has received stable iodine tablets through their door to take them
in accordance with instructions broadcast by radio, social media, and television or police

announcements in the street.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 75


http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/

OFFICIAL Page 80

If you live outside the areas listed above, you do not need to take any special safety precautions, but
we ask that you stay away from the area to keep roads clear to allow easy access for emergency

vehicles.

Employees, including all contractors and military personnel, who are due to arrive on shift today are
to remain at home. Essential personnel who are required to deal with the incident will be contacted

separately.

The health and safety of the public and our own personnel is our number one priority, and we will

provide further information on this incident as soon as it becomes available.

NOTE TO EDITORS:

During the incident at the Devonport site there is a single point of contact provided to the media for
all agencies. The number to call is: add number.

The incident team includes press officers and spokespeople from Devon & Cornwall Police, the Royal
Navy, Babcock, Plymouth City Council and health agencies and services.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 76



OFFICIAL Page 81

4.8.3. Update on Off-Site Nuclear Emergency
Nuclear Emergency, Devonport, Plymouth

News Release 3.

The incident involving the nuclear-powered submarine xx this morning, date, at location has
developed further and despite every effort to isolate and contain the incident a release of radioactive

material has now been detected outside of the submarine.

This is radiation emanating from the submarine and not a release of radioactive material into the

atmosphere. The hazard is contained within the exclusion zone in the dockyard.

Radiation monitoring personnel and equipment have been in place since the start of the incident and

are continuing to monitor the situation.

The incident is being managed by a highly experienced, multi-agency team who have emergency plans
to deal with such an incident and they continue to make every effort to isolate and contain the

source of the hazard.

We remind anyone in location and location who has received stable iodine tablets through their door
to take them, in accordance with the accompanying information leaflet and the instructions broadcast
by radio, social media, and television or police announcements in the street. If you are located in the
areas listed below and have not received tablets, please call the emergency help line number (0800

700 500).

We are also advising members of the public in the location and location areas to continue to:

GO IN - Go indoors and stay there.
Shut all windows and doors — shut down fans, fires, ventilators or any air
conditioning system drawing air from outside the building.
If people are away from their home they should go into the nearest building.
STAYIN - Please do not go outside until advised to do so.
Do not collect your children from school until you are asked to do so — the
school will take care of them until then.

TUNEIN - Listen out for emergency text notifications

DOSEP v8.0. Page 77



OFFICIAL Page 82

Look for updates on official Plymouth City Council and Police social media
platforms
Visit the Plymouth City Council website for the latest updates

www.plymouth.gov.uk

Listen to local radio and TV news bulletins
Anyone outside the affected area should stay away, including site workers, contractors and staff who
are not already at the dockyard. Care workers and essential public health workers will be further

advised by their employer regarding access to location.

The health and safety of the public and our own personnel is our number one priority, and we will

provide further information and guidance as soon as possible.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 78


http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/

OFFICIAL Page 83

4.8.4. Off-site Nuclear Emergency
Nuclear Emergency, Devonport, Plymouth
Radioactive material release confirmed
News Release 4.

This text assumes that an earlier statement has been issued. If this has not happened then modifications

incorporating appropriate text from the earlier statements will be necessary

The incident involving the nuclear-powered submarine HMS ............. this morning has developed
further and despite every effort to isolate and contain the incident a radiation hazard has now been

detected outside of the submarine.
Adpvice still remains that the best way to protect yourself is to stay indoors and within shelter.

Radiation monitoring personnel and equipment have been in place since the start of the incident, and
they are now working to establish the extent of the release of radioactive materials. However, we

believe this to be low/medium/high level in nature.

The incident is being managed by a highly experienced, multi-agency team who have emergency plans
to deal with such an incident and they continue to make every effort to isolate and contain the

source of the hazard.
We would stress that there is no danger whatsoever of a nuclear explosion at the submarine.

If you have been issued stable iodine tablets (SITs) and have not already taken them — then please
take them now. If you are located in the areas listed below and have not received tablets, please call
the emergency help line number (insert number).

List affected areas.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 79



OFFICIAL Page 84

We are also advising members of the public in the areas listed to continue to:

GO IN - Go indoors and stay there.
Shut all windows and doors — shut down fans, fires, ventilators or any air
conditioning system drawing air from outside the building.
If people are away from their home they should go into the nearest building.
STAY IN - Please do not go outside until advised to do so.
Do not collect your children from school until you are asked
to do so — the school will take care of them until then.
TUNEIN - Listen out for emergency text notifications
Look for updates on official Plymouth City Council and Police social media
platforms
Visit the Plymouth City Council website for the latest updates

www.plymouth.gov.uk

Listen to local radio and TV news bulletins

Anyone outside the affected area should stay away, including site workers, contractors and staff who

are not already at the dockyard.

The health and safety of the public and our own personnel is our number one priority, and we will

provide further information and guidance as soon as possible.

Guidance Note to Editors

During the incident at the Devonport site there is a single point of contact provided to the media for
all agencies. The number to call is: add number.

The incident team includes press officers and spokespeople from Devon & Cornwall Police, the Royal
Navy, Plymouth City Council and health agencies and services.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 80


http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/

OFFICIAL Page 85

4.8.5. Off-site Nuclear Emergency
Nuclear Emergency, Devonport, Plymouth
No Longer a Risk to Public Safety

News Release 5

Environmental monitoring has confirmed that there is no longer a risk to public safety following the

incident on board a nuclear-powered submarine at Devonport Dockyard this morning, date.

The advice for people to stay indoors has been lifted and people in the location and location areas

can now safely return to their normal routines, including collecting children from schools.

Devon and Cornwall Police are advising that there may be some congestion while people return to

normal routines and thank everyone for their continuing co-operation and understanding.

A multi-agency response was launched after the incident on the submarine alongside at time and

location of incident.

A full investigation into the incident is now underway.

Ends
Date, time

Press release 5

Notes to editors

Please contact the press office on add number for further information.

The incident team includes press officers and spokespeople from Devon & Cornwall Police, the Royal
Navy, Plymouth City Council, and health agencies and services.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 81



OFFICIAL Page 86

5 PART 5 - EMERGENCY PLANNING ZONE MAPS, MAPPING AND THE
MAPPING CELL

The aim of the Mapping Cell is to provide a single mapping source available to responder agencies to
show their movements, activities and hazards, to assist the response to a radiation emergency at the
Devonport Site.

5.1 Mapping to Support a Response to an Off-site Nuclear Emergency at the
Devonport Site

REPPIR indicates the importance attached to mapping in support of a multi-agency response to an
OSNE at the Devonport Site. Mapping illustrated in this section shows the extent of the DEPZs and
OPZs, accompanied by a narrative description®.

In addition, REPPIR outlines the importance of assessing and mapping the demography of the DEPZ
and the OPZ population. Guidance for the DEPZs indicates that the population can be identified in
detail to show the number of people who live in the area, more vulnerable locations, for example
schools, care settings, or the travelling community‘”.

5.2 Purpose of Mapping
The mapping to support a response to a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site is intended to:

* Provide an early decision-making tool
* Help with shared situational awareness by providing an overall picture of the incident

The mapping is available for viewing by:

* The SCG and supporting cells including STAC, SMCC and MAIC
* The TCG

» Operational responding agencies

* Individual responders on the ground

“° REPPIR (2019) Schedule 6, Part 2, Chapter 3 Guidance (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public
Information) Regulations 2019 Approved Code of Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk)) [01.02.24]

*' REPPIR (2019) Schedule 6, Part 2, Chapter 2 Guidance (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public
Information) Regulations 2019 Approved Code of Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk))

DOSEP v8.0. Page 82



https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm

OFFICIAL Page 87

5.3 Devonport Detailed Emergency Planning Zone

Wnc\ Tl Vi s g
X £ OR e
ResilienceDirect 7 V4 ; o
2024 Plymouth CC DOSEP v8.0 Mapping /' ey e 'y 5
( / o i N
Frinted by Cockles Farm / T Ssettis a7 S % YA
3 SFrifor
: / 2 ¥ Whitleigh : Sl
Classification 1ot LN “a / % i)
s urraton 7 / ! W R
OFFICIAL 2 dl. %, Wicg r” )
Southipill ) e A 3 3
Last modified dateftime 0 / =1 el iE
Hi % fej, NestPark Rothesy,
biet - Thu, 01 Feb 2024, 09:41 GMT tchbrook NGl € Rogy 2y T S 5313 e
Jor n 1 u Sy Kk p
voss Cofiage el ; BN, U] / i P 2, i
Coombe L2 Saltash e King's \ o it
< ine FErton 7 Honicknovile £
: Ta % E
A~ Saltash St'Budéaux O
Buttspark 5 7 \ %
pucsil Holse St A o loe®
vollard Burg Stephens & Wearde, !‘ Rivfrside A\ \\N 2
3 | S_Barne: )
South Broadi Trehan Forder z / Barton g, I (o0 D — 202000 &
St:Budeaux i
Granges Merryfield- R\ 1 Westof il 2\
___View \% ST
~— = o A— 3 PENNYCross 4 D\\
T \_shillifgham il ML
— \! 3 Vales N Eggblicklal
Treedown Farm,
shillingham Manor \ 5%
ggar's Islar Hartle
# Camel's Head ) ~—
i \ Higher £ gebuaanats
Greeps i North ospect 3 Peverel Comptony<,
L Broomhill o
The Gardeners Cottage
orince Castie - Mannamead Efloy
Antony House
Maryfield Milehouse
Westdown Cottage Ford Gaira
ParkjmMutley ——ipsonVale =
Horson: I — =ik N
Cottage SR — Y
e Devonport E.":fp'n',:_ p 1 |
Bulland HodSe < v R A e /.
Fastclif Torpoint 37 g0 Eagtymo ¢ /,
i P Stoke —> ¥ 2
RO h3? Mount Gould
Morice X
Scraesdon T R it
Farm - a0 “Beau ===\
Antony i i |
2 PlymOUth Prince\Rock \
ol
& = 3 |
3 E St John's MoGREWise [stonenouse A b3y, g
° Lake Coside )
& Cattedown,
arm_#” Lower Surviel Farm T
Tregantle S StJohn
| 2km |
% ] Oreste
& Mendennick Inswork Point Cremyll 2mi
Bgrion © Crown copyright and database rights (2024) Ordnance Survey (licence number 100038200)
Mendennick 4 - Y :
Higher Hil Harbourside Mapping to be used solely for preparing for and responding to emergencies
Tregantle House
. wered by AR o X
Bridgemoor s SR Number6  Home . ) Powered by
5 SottAOWTRDa Redoubt Farm| Summer House systems
Freathy % Tider . k! FHooe

Figure 12 Devonport Detailed Emergency Planning Zone

The Devonport DEPZ extends to a minimum of |.5km from the operational submarine berths and
submarine maintenance facilities at the Devonport Site. The DEPZ includes densely populated urban
areas of Plymouth, a section of the estuarine River Tamar (the Hamoaze), and part of the town of
Torpoint in Cornwall.

To the north of Torpoint is a more rural area around the Wilcove hamlet. The DEPZ population is
estimated to be approximately 45,000 across both Plymouth and Cornwall.

The Torpoint Ferry, operated by Tamar Crossings, is a car and pedestrian chain ferry which connects
the A374 between Devonport and Torpoint, crossing the Hamoaze. Each of three ferry craft can
carry over 70 vehicles.

The Thankes Oil Fuel Depot is operated by the Oil and Pipelines Agency. The depot is on a peninsula
on the west bank of the Hamoaze, just north of Torpoint, Cornwall. The site is regulated by the
Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and the Environment Agency (EA) under the Control of Major
Accident Hazard Regulations 1999 (COMAH). Fuel is stored in large tanks and is supplied to the
Royal Navy and defence customers.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 83



OFFICIAL Page 88

5.4 Devonport Outline Planning Zone

Hatt ercdh 5 v North
: Fhe fam

ResilienceDirect
2024 Plymouth CC DOSEP v8.0 Mappingsfiéming
r £

Classification
pdr <« OFFICIAL
ast modified date/time

Thu, 01 Feb 2024, 14:07 GMT

Saltdshw
7

Torpoint

Billacombe,

Figure 13 Devonport Outline Planning Zone

The Devonport OPZ extends beyond the DEPZ to 5km from the operational submarine berths and
submarine maintenance facilities at the Devonport Site. Similar to the DEPZ, the area includes
densely populated urban areas of Plymouth, sections of the estuarine Rivers Tamar, Tavy & Lynher
and their confluence in the Hamoaze.

The Tamar Bridge, a toll bridge operated by Tamar Crossings is to the north of the OPZ. The bridge
connects the main A38 between Plymouth and Saltash in Cornwall. The A38 is part of the strategic
road network (SRN) maintained by National Highways.

The OPZ extends over the Defence Munitions Plymouth site, situated on the east bank of the River
Tamar between the Tamar Bridge and Ernesettle. A range of non-nuclear military explosives are held
at the munitions depot, in support of the country's armed forces. Defence Munitions is covered by
the Major Accident Control Regulations 2004 (MACR).

The urban areas of Torpoint and Saltash fall into the OPZ in Cornwall. Rural areas around Torpoint
and Saltash have smaller settlements at St John, Anthony and Millbrook, along with agricultural land

and wooded areas.

The north of the OPZ spreads into rural areas. The OPZ population is estimated to be
approximately 200,000 across Plymouth, Cornwall and Devon.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 84



OFFICIAL Page 89

5.5 CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO Buoys Detailed Emergency Planning Zone

ResilienceDirect
2024 Plymouth CC DOSEP v8.0 Mapping |
rerfyl

Classifi
OFFICI

d dateftime

Last mq
Thu, 01 Feb 2024, 14:07 GMT

Down
Thomas

Zm |

Stad|

Figure 14 CHARLIE, DELTA and Echo Buoys Detailed Emergency Planning Zone

The CHARLIE DELTA and ECHO Buoys DEPZ extends to a minimum distance of |.5km from the
operational moorings located north of the breakwater in Plymouth Sound. The DEPZ extends mainly
over the marine environment, including the uninhabited Drake’s Island in the north, with a coastal
rural area of Devon to the east.

Drake’s Island:

Drake’s Island is uninhabited, but organised visits and events are held for members of the public

Bovisand and Staddon Area

The permanent population of the area is limited to a small number of properties in the Bovisand and
Staddon area. There are holiday homes at the Bovisand Estate and Cedar Park where the population
varies according to the season.

Plymouth Breakwater

The breakwater is uninhabited, but members of the public occasionally visit. The breakwater and fort
are MOD property. Access to is closely controlled by the King’s Harbourmaster-.

Marine Traffic

Marine traffic associated with the Royal Navy, passenger car ferries to and from continental Europe,
freight, the fishing industry, leisure and tourism passes through the shipping lanes in the area.
DOSEP v8.0. Page 85



OFFICIAL Page 90

5.6 22 and 23 Anchorage Detailed Emergency Planning Zone

ResilienceDirect
, 2024 Plymouth CC DOSEP v8.0 Mapping
-

Classification
OFFICIAL
Lastmodified date/ftime

Thu, 01 Feb 2024, 14:07 GMT

Ki

sand fire Hill Down
Thomas

Heybrook Bay

| 2km |

Figure 15 22 and 23 Anchorage Detailed Emergency Planning Zone

The 22 and 23 Anchorage DEPZ extends to a minimum distance of |.5km from operational
anchorages located south of the breakwater in Plymouth Sound. The DEPZ extends over the marine
environment and includes the uninhabited Plymouth Breakwater.

Plymouth Breakwater

The breakwater is uninhabited, but members of the public occasionally visit. The breakwater and fort
are MOD property. Access to is closely controlled by the King’s Harbourmaster-.

Marine Traffic

Marine traffic associated with the Royal Navy, passenger car ferries to and from continental Europe,
freight, the fishing industry, leisure and tourism passes through the shipping lanes in the area.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 86



OFFICIAL Page 91

5.7 Plymouth Offshore Mooring and Anchorage Outline Planning Zone

Markwell

s . Forder
ResilienceDirect

- & Al
2024 Plymouth CC DOSEP v8.0 Mapping —TN7 — \ Pennycros

Wilcove:

Classification
OFFICIAL
Last modified dateftime

Mon, 05 Feb 2024, 08:06 GMT

Sneviock

Antony
Crafthole

Sherford

wrinkle
StJohn

Fiéathy Brixton.

Hollachmbe
Cawsand

Heybrook Bay

Newton
Ferrers

Sparkwell
Hemerdon

Yealmbridgg

Yealmpton

Bitts =

Membland

2mi |

Figure 16 Plymouth Offshore Mooring and Anchorage Outline Planning Zone

The Plymouth offshore mooring and anchorage OPZ extends beyond both DEPZs to 5km from the
nuclear-powered vessel mooring buoys and anchorages to the south of the breakwaters.

The area includes densely populated urban areas of Plymouth, and rural parts of Cornwall and the
South Hams in Devon, with some isolated communities. Sections of the Rivers Tamar, via the

Hamoaze and the Plym via the Cattewater meet in Plymouth Sound.

The OPZ extends over the upper and lower tier COMAH sites in the Cattedown area of Plymouth.
These are located on the northern side of the Cattewater. A COMAH lower tier site is also found at

the Millbay Ferry Terminal.

Rural areas to the south of Torpoint and the west of Plymouth Sound fall into the OPZ in Cornwall,
including agricultural land, wooded areas, smaller settlements at Millbrook, Rame and the twin villages
of Cawsand and Kingsand. The east of the OPZ extends over the South Hams area of Devon,

including the villages of Heybrook Bay, Down Thomas and part of Wembury.

The OPZ population is estimated to be approximately 180,000 across Plymouth, Cornwall and
Devon. Marine traffic associated with the Royal Navy, passenger car ferries to and from continental
Europe, freight, the fishing industry, leisure and tourism passes through the shipping lanes in the area.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 87



OFFICIAL Page 92

5.8 Mapping and the Multi-Agency Information Cell

JESIP guidance for a Multi-Agency Information Cell (MAIC)* outlines the potential for mapping
capability to benefit the response and the relevance for shared mapping. Such maps can be included
within the common operating picture (COP) or available separately to inform the COP.

For a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site, the MAIC will be supported by a multi-agency
mapping cell formed by appropriately trained staff drawn from DOSEP responder agencies. The
MAIC manager will link to the mapping cell via the lead mapping officer (see 5.9 below)

5.9 Multi-Agency Mapping Cell

For a Devonport Site response, the Mapping Cell is established at the tactical level. The cell is either
on-line, to support virtual TCGs, or as a physical set-up split between the Plymouth and Cornwall
TCCs. Maps are produced using a common Resilience Direct base map shared to multiple locations.
The Mapping Cell coordinates, updates and edits the incident maps. Responder agencies view
relevant mapping through the Resilience Direct mapping function. Where suitable printing facilities

are available, paper maps can be provided.

Staff drawn from DOSEP partner agencies form the mapping cell:

Agency Role Location

Plymouth City Council Lead Mapping Officer Plymouth TCC

Plymouth City Council Mapping Officer Plymouth City Council EOC
Devon County Council Mapping Officer Exeter (Remote via Teams)
Cornwall Council Mapping Officer Truro TCC

MOD / DRDL Mapping Officer (D:ee:;)rr;port Accident Control

Table 3 Agencies Staffing the Mapping Cell

5.10 Lead Mapping Officer

A lead mapping officer coordinates the cell’s activity. Plymouth City Council provide the lead mapping
officer, based at the TCC. The lead officer attends TCG meetings to ensure available mapping is
current, accurate and reflects all agencies requirements for shared situational awareness.

5.11 Mapping for a Radiation Emergency

In addition to mapping provided for a conventional incident, specific mapping layers relating to a
Devonport Site radiation incident will be required:

* The expected direction of travel for any pollutant plume
* The mapped zones where SITs are expected to be delivered
* The likely population who may require radiation monitoring

2 Multi-Agency Information Cell (MAIC) Guidance JESIP (Multi-Agency Information Cell (MAIC) Guidance - JESIP
Website) [21.03.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 88



https://www.jesip.org.uk/downloads/maic-guidance/
https://www.jesip.org.uk/downloads/maic-guidance/

OFFICIAL Page 93

5.12 Demographic Mapping, Focussed Engagement Areas and SIT Delivery Zones

REPPIR guidance recognises there is no difference in the types of response activity that are needed to
support the population in both the DEPZ and OPZ areas. However, the level of planning does differ.

For emergency planning purposes, the area within the Plymouth City boundary is mapped to a level
of a Royal Mail postcode sector. This sector is further subdivided into discrete Focussed Engagement
Areas (FEAs). Each postcode-based FEA allows early identification of a particular district in the city,
which could be affected by any emergency. Population and demographic data applicable to an FEA is
used to support the emergency response and associated public information and media messaging.

SITs delivery zones are mapped against the FEAs to ensure a consistency in the shared situational
awareness.

Demographic data drawn from the National Population Database overlaid on the common map show

locations of:

» Schools and colleges
= Care homes

* Hospitals

|

Railway stations

These sites can therefore also be mapped against the FEAs to show where resources and response
activity will be focussed.

This information contributes to:

* The understanding of potential impact on the population
* Transport access management
* Affected rail links

5.13 Pre-prepared Mapping

A map of the Devonport Site with initial mapping layers is available via Resilience Direct. The pre-
prepared mapping shows:

Layer Group Map Layers

HMNB Devonport DEPZ

HMNB Devonport DEPZ & OPZ
HMNB Devonport OPZ

DEPZ CHARLIE, DELTA, ECHO Buoys

HMNB(D) Offshore DEPZs & OPZ DEPZ 22 & 23 Anchorages

5km OPZ from CDE and 22&23 Anchorages

Stable lodine Tablet (SIT) Delivery Zones SIT Areas A-G

Cornwall (Torpoint) FEA PLII Torpoint FEA
Plymouth FEAs PLI 4, PLI 5, PL2 I,PL22,PL2 3, PL5 | & PL5 2
Local Authority Boundaries Cornwall, Devon, Plymouth

Table 4 Master Mapping Layers

Example mapping is shown in sections 5.14 & 5.15

DOSEP v8.0. Page 89



OFFICIAL Page 94

5.14 Further Information Sources

= RREMS (Radiological Response and Emergency Management System) application®
= Sitrep / Partner Agency Reports

* TCG meetings

* SCG meetings

* Marine Traffic

5.15 Additional Mapping Layers

A list of standard mapping layers and overlays produced by partner agencies is available via the
DCIOS LRF REPPIR pages on Resilience Direct.

5.16 Example Map - Focussed Engagement Areas — Schools - Devonport DEPZ

i
IH
ResilienceDirect
& 2024 Plymouth CC DOSEP v8.0 Mapping
4
OFHILIAL o
Last modified dateftime
Wed, 07 Feb 2024, 10:15 GMT
Merryfield —"
View—~
Pennycross
e
N 2 %, LA
N g [
T
ar ) HMNB \
and . Devinpo g
A Camel's Head
\ g 10 el Y
o m 14 Wt e
\¥ || A ProMect: & £ Peverell
\ Koy 33 & £ - . 3
\ !
Keyham
4 on Tosiey
Wilcove \ \\ '''''
% Hy A
\ D Y .
& \. o=
< ROWCottage & \ \ B -
Maryfield \ Milehouse
o
Da )
‘ BN
< ”
N
g SCH 7 . s gl A s (9 Ol &~ Z
sl gEH ] I . | N g A NG -
< ~ Torpoint : e RennycomequickZ=Plimsutt
1 o £
t Vb ey ] | 1km |
imi | T
4 "
evoport \ 2T ® Crown copyright and@gbase rights (2024) Ordnance Survey (licence numb8R100038200).
ariby t- ¥ Mapping to be used 5igly for preparing for and responding to@mergencies.
MofiterTomT e
2 e E i A I3 ol
N systems
J & [Socen oe o

Figure 17 Example Map showing Focussed Engagement Areas, Schools and DE?Z

Figure 17 above, illustrates an example of the data available to emergency responders via the pre-
prepared Resilience Direct mapping. This map shows the distribution of schools inside and near the
Devonport DEPZ, the locations of schools to the north of the Devonport Site and their relation to
Plymouth’s postcode linked FEAs.

* Radioactive incident monitoring (UK Gov) https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/radioactive-incident-monitoring

DOSEP v8.0. Page 90


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/radioactive-incident-monitoring

OFFICIAL Page 95

5.17 Example Map Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Zones - Devonport DEPZ

ol £ o - z Saitash

||, ResilienceDirect
5 NAEA
Printed by

Classification

3 4
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE R171(182)s B
Last modified dateftime 167(%9)
Tue, 19 Mar 2024, 16:54 GMT E18Y(113) F19(138) £20 (137) v olEhpianc e sgEmy St Pancras Avenue =
ey e[d// \ F21(1ﬂ’5 (120) e
ﬁgS (15:1) Pennycross M
Emmsasa || EIF) &

r2N119) NG )
<\ )
78! (145)&

Beggar's HHNE
1sland Devonport

"“»\ (1‘E12(135 515(110 >
i ‘EM (169) BE15/(223) ‘
m?l E1 0(1 aa) E13](1 aa)E16 05D

“l@“ 5‘63 @9
€1 (C2:(C31(154)
ﬂﬂi )
under; develc‘:_pjpem) 1231 (1 56), C10 (206)
v\ ce (136 < ‘;
C27(20023(221 By
G291(225)

} c12(215c;1 21,(14
t))
(-142(;19\022 _\_23) ” 5y
CA(167) “*ﬁs {13
023.‘9‘23)(%)1 (13C. {

\4o+ )

5(20 (*w E(147\
k ,.,(289)024 210) 3

Maryfield

'z

Stake Damere!
Community College

imi | ding

Tre
S0l Roag—
L2
N o & Crown copyright and database rights. (2024) Ordnance Survey (licence number 100036200). ¥
ey Mapping to be used solely foy preparing for and responding to emergencies 13
n

Poweredby ~ /N | R o X

systems

penincula Dentar T Seyceet |5t Pefers churchotEngtandfvoluntary

Figure 18 Example Map Devonport DEPZ and Stable lodine Delivery Zonés

Figure 18 above, shows the SITs distribution areas with the Devonport DEPZ.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 91



OFFICIAL Page 96

6 PART 6 - RESPONDING AGENCIES’ RADIATION PROTECTION AND THE
ROYG SYSTEM

6.1 Radiation Protection Advice

REPPIR states an employer, who requires staff to respond during a radiation emergency, needs to
ensure appropriate radiation protection advice is available. Where an employer engages a radiation
protection adviser (RPA), this should be recognised with a written appointment which covers the
scope of the advice to be provided™.

6.2 ROYG System: Issuing Radiological Information to Off-site Responders

The ROYG (-, Orange, Yellow and -) chart system provides easily interpreted information
about potential radiological hazards. The charts are intended for use by responding agencies who may
need to work in the vicinity of the Devonport Site following the declaration of an OSNE.

The charts are supplied to the TCCs and SCC, to support operational commanders with responder
tasking. They are intended to supplement incident commanders’ shared situational awareness and to
jointly understand risk as outlined in JESIP. This approach supports single and multi-agency command
decision making ahead of the availability of advice from a responder organisation’s dedicated RPA.

6.3 The ROYG Method

ROYG consists of a series of six standard charts. Each chart supplies a summary of radiological
conditions outside the Devonport Site.

A member of the Health Physics Support Group (HPSG), based at the Devonport Accident Control
Centre (DACC) decides which ROYG chart represents current radiological conditions. The HPSG
member supplies the chart information to an emergency services liaison officer (ESLO), based in the
DACC. The HPSG member also advises when the next update will be provided.

The ESLOs based at the DACC are allocated by Devon and Cornwall Police and Devon and
Somerset Fire and Rescue. Each is a suitably qualified and experienced person (SQEP).

NOTE

Charts | and 2 relate to events with no off-site consequences. They are shown for information
only.

6.4 Communicating ROYG

The ROYG chart level, as it applies to the radiological hazard outside the Devonport Site, is provided
by the ESLOs to the TCC.

* REPPIR (2019) Reg 24 ACOP Guidance Para 650 — 658 (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public
Information) Regulations 2019 Approved Code of Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk)) [26.01.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 92



https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm

OFFICIAL Page 97
6.5 Defining the Off-site Areas
Each ROYG chart illustrates the potential level of radiological hazard as it may affect one of three
areas outside the Devonport Site. These area descriptions in themselves do not define a specific
geography. They are used, in conjunction with geographical data and mapping to help decide extra

precautions agencies may need to take in responding to an incident in the affected neighbourhood.

The three areas are defined as:

Area A: Downwind from the Devonport Site Accident (DSA) location. This is the area where
SITs are issued to members of the public.

Area B: Downwind from the Devonport Site Accident (DSA) location and beyond the SITs
distribution zones.

Area C: Any other area off the Devonport Site which is not downwind of the Devonport Site
Accident (DSA) location.

6.6 Level of Radiological Hazard

Each ROYG chart denotes the potential radiological hazard across the three areas described above.
The -, Orange, Yellow and system indicates the level of the hazard and precautions
required to support an agency’s tasking in the affected area. The - category applies when the
hazard does not extend beyond the Devonport Site.

Level of Hazard Precautions

No or very low levels of radiation detected. |No special precautions required. Use dose
Yellow |Deployment in this area (over next 4 hrs) will |[meters if available for reassurance.
not exceed 5 mSv * exposure

Increasing levels of radiation detected or Continue tasking — seek advice from Radiation
anticipated soon but deployment in this area |Protection Adviser and monitor dose meter if
(over next 4 hrs) not expected to exceed 5 |supplied.

mSv* exposure If in Area A - Take stable iodine tablets and use
dose meters if supplied. Do not eat, drink, or smoke
outside.

Orange

* 5 mSv whole body dose, assuming stable iodine tablets not taken.

NOTES

If the accident is predicted to be bounded by the planning assumptions made during this plan’s
production, the only area likely to become Orange is Area A.

The standard charts are limited to supplying general information only for all responders. If more
detailed advice is needed, it should be requested from the organisation’s own RPA.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 93



OFFICIAL Page 08
6.7 Mapping ROYG Areas
A link to the incident mapping will be available via the Resilience Direct response page.
Mapping layers will be created and coloured according to the ROYG Chart hazard level identified.
ROYG Area A

Area A is defined as downwind from the Devonport Site Accident (DSA) location and is the area
where SITs are issued to members of the public.

SITs are issued in the downwind (45 degree) sector extending towards the boundary of the DEPZ
(See Devonport SITs Distribution Plan) The areas where SITs are delivered are discrete defined
zones and are identified on the incident mapping generated by the Mapping Cell.

ROYG Area B

Area B is defined as downwind from the Devonport Site Accident (DSA) location and beyond the
SITs distribution zones.

This is outside the DEPZ but is inside the OPZ extending the 45-degree downwind sector. It is
therefore an area where should detailed or generic arrangements prove insufficient, strategic decision
makers should consider identifying appropriate protective actions and from where capabilities may be
obtained.

ROYG Area C

Area C is defined as any other area outside of the Devonport Site which is not downwind of the
Devonport Site Accident (DSA) location.

Responders should consult relevant mapping to check if an incident requiring a response is located in
this area. This is because the incident site may be affected by future wind direction changes, and its
location could be redesignated as an area A or B for ROYG purposes.

6.8 Duration of ROYG
Once a ROYG chart is issued for a particular area, it remains at that level unless it is raised because
the hazard risk increases. A ROYG chart does not decrease during the response phase of an OSNE

at the Devonport Site.

Dependent on the duration of the hazard, and changes in the wind direction, it is probable that
significant areas in the DEPZ will be subject to a ROYG chart increase.

ROYG Charts are not a substitute for a responder agency to obtain their own advice from their
dedicated RPA.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 94



Page 99

OFFICIAL

6.9 ROYG Chart |

............................ ”H.m m:o mﬁ.m—UQD H.xwz

................. e wo_w>_,_nn_ UjjesH aus-up >Q panss|

..................... AEO..CV CO_H.OO..__O ﬂuc_>>

101085 PUIM UMCP 8U) Ul 10N

101985 PUIM UMD
a1 Ul pUE $8U0Z 5] |S puofeg

MMOJIBA, PR2IX 0} PaIadxa 19AdU SI
(101225 PUIM UMOP Ul JOU pUE 2SEQ |2ABN JPISING) D E21y: 2J0N

Aqpuejg ang

131V Apyes topeay

g esay Y esly uonedISSE|D WSPIIIY

panss| Useq aazy (S]/5)
SIe|0eL BUIPO| 9|0EIS SIBUM BRIy

ssed [BABN [ pJEf{20Qd episy|

uonduasag

U2l Aj2JeS Jojoesy
J2 SUIBLWSI UOHEDYISSEID I SNIEIS WNWIXeyy PpapIpald

uoloallq
PUIAA

aidLe

(2d30) auoz
Bumue|g
B
PaIRRO

o)

*3

‘2pISINo
eyous io yuup “jes juoq ‘payddns
4 SIojW 8sop esn pue sipelqel
auIpoj e[qejs el - i el j

‘paliddns J IajeLw asop Jojuow
puE JasSIAPY UOND310.d Uolieipey
wio.y a9IApe Haas — Bupise) anupuo

TSRS JaquinN alepdn

alnsodxs
ASW G pasoxa 0} pajoadxe
J0U (S1Y {7 }¥aU 13A0)
eale sy} ul JuswiAojdap jng
uoos pajediopue Jo PajdRIRP
uoljeIpel Jo sjeAs| Buisealou|

abueip

‘89UBINSSE3I
10} S[cefieAR J| SI3jRW S0P IS
‘padinbal suoinesaid [eroads op

‘palinbal suonnesatd o

s1apuodsay loj suonnesaid

alnsodxa ASW G
P339X%3 JoU [IM (1Y 7 3%3U
13/0) B3lE SIy} ul JuswAoldaqg
‘Pa30338p Uonelpel
10 s[3As| mo| AIsA 1o ON

‘psezey [e2i6o[OIpE] 3)IS-10 ON

piezeH Jo |3AaT]

MOj[]PA

uaain

"Aluo uofjeurioyul Joj 9)is-yo paliddng "NOILVNLIS LNIAIDIV NV LON — Ajuo 13|y 9jis-uQ oju| [euonippy

9 ealy

g ealy

V ealy

Agpueys ajs
| Haly Kajes Jojoeay

uoleouisse|) JuUaAg

9)IS Joduoaaq Jo ANUIDIA ul piezeH |edi1bojoipey jualin)

Il L4VHOD

Figure 19 ROYG Chart |

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 95



Page 100

OFFICIAL

6.10 ROYG Chart 2

............................ ”ﬁ.m w:D w#mﬂua: H.xwz

MROJI@A, PEODXe 01 Paldadxe JeAsU S|
(101095 puim UMOP Ul JOU pUE asBg [BABN SPISIN0) D) BAlY : 810N

1usppU| 8IS -UQ

fapuels el
{18y M8es 101088y

gealy v ealy uopealISSE|D JUBPIFDY

1USPIOU| SIS UG
1 SUlBLie) LONEJNISSED I SNIBIS WNWIXEW peldlpeld

................................... ”AEO(C,V CO_HOGL_D Uc_g

................. ”Mm mo_w>-l_a —l:._mw—l— mﬂ_mlco >n Uw:ww_

101285 pult UMOP 8L LI JOp

107285 PUIM UMMOD
8] Ul pUB 56U0Z 51 |S pucieg

penssi ueaq srey (s1|5)
Sl2|0B] SUIPO| 2|GBIS laUM Baly

aseQ [BABN /PJBMI00Q 8plsu|

uondiasaeg

uoloadlg

PULAA

aldwex3

(2d3q) auoz
Bumeld
fowsBiaw3

PARIA0

o)

TR Jaquun ejepdn

‘apIsyo
8OLUS 0 yulp ‘jes JUoq ‘pejddns alnsodxs

# sisjeul 8sop asn pue sjg|qe) ASW G pasoxa 0} paypadxa

eulpof elqels exel - v el uj JOU (S1Y 7 JxaU JaAo) abueig
‘paiddns Ji 123eW 8sop JoyuoL BaIe SIU ul Juswiholdsp Ing
pUB I3SIAPY L0I93)014 Uolelpey | uoos pajedippue Io pajoalep
wo. 391Ape 3295 — Bupjse) snuyuo) | uolieipel Jo siA3| Buisealau|

alnsodxe ASw ¢

P339X%3 10U [|M (S1Y ¥ IX3U

*39oueInsSsSEs) 19A0) B3R siuy Ul Juswkoldsg | MOJIBA

10} 3[qE[IBAE J| SIRISW 3SOP IS
‘padinbali suonnesald [e1aads oN

‘palinbal suoinessid o

s1apuodsay 1oj suoynesald

‘pajaajep uchelpel
10 s|3A8| Mo| AIsA 10 ON

‘pJezey [eoifo|olpe. 3)IS-H0 ON

piezeH jo [aAa7

uaain

9 ealy

g easy

‘Aluo uonewuojui Joj ajis-jo paliddng “AYVYANNOG LIS
aNOA3d AN3LX3 OL1 d3193dX3 LON suonipuos [ealbojolipey — Ajuo asuodsal s)is-uQ ojuj [euonippy

V ealy

juspiouj aJ)s-uo

uonedlyISSe|D JUdA]

9)S poduonaq o ANUIDIA ul piezeH [edibojolpey Judling

¢ L4VHO

Figure 20 ROYG Chart 2

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 96



Page 101

OFFICIAL

6.11 ROYG Chart 3

............................ ”ﬁ.m m:D O#NUQD H.xmz

................. Je soIsAud yyesH a)s-uQ Aq panss|

.................................. ”AEO(—hv Co_ﬁow{__o UC_>>

MOJ|BA, Paaaxe o) pajoedxs Jensu s

(10J29% PUIM UMOP Ul JoU pUB 35e4d [BABN 3PISING) O BAlY: 9JON

Maj|aA

g ealy

(INS0) Aousbiawz

Mmotiei IB3ONN BUS4 0

juspidu) ajs-uQ

Adpuers aus
JHalv Alpjes lopeay

v ealy UoReDJISSE]D JUAPIOdY

(pepele@ prezeH ON - INSO) IUBpRIY 8duBIBjeY
QOIN UM SUlBLUS] JUBPIGIE J| SNJBIS WINWIXEIA] pojoIpald

0185 PUIA UMOP 8L LIl 10N

101985 PUIM UMOP
a1 Ul pUE S8L0Z 5] 15 pusiseg

panss| usaq aney (5] |S)
S18|0B] SUIpa| 8|JBIS SlaUM BANY

aseg [BABN / pJefioogd episu|

uonduasag

uonoali]
PLIAA
aldwex3

(Zd3a) 8uoz

RN

......... JJaquinN QU_.NUQD

10} 3[C/e|IRAR JI SIS)BL 8S0P 35
‘paainbal suonnesa.d [eads oy

‘padinbas suonesaid oN

‘|pIsino
SOUIS .10 YULP “Jee juoq peliddns ainsodxa
4 sisjeui esop esn pue sigjqel ASW G p339Xa 0} pajpadxa
aulpo] sjqels ayel - y ealy uj jou (S1y § J¥aU I1aA0) abueip
‘palddns Y 123w asop JojuoLl eale S|Uy ul Juswiholdap Jng
pUE I3SIAPY UCIID3)014 Uolelpey | uoos pajedidpue lo pajosisp
wio.y 391Ape Xaas — Bunise) anupuod | UoleIpEl Jo sjeAs| Buiseslou|
alnsodxa ASW G
pa9Xa JoU [IM (SIY {7 1xau
*80UBINSSEAI 13A0) E3lE SILy Ul Juswlodag | MOJIBA

‘pajaaep Uopelpel
10 5|3A3| MO| AI3A 10 O

‘pIezey [eo160[oIpEl 3)ISHO ON

uaalg

s1apuodsay 10} suopnedald

plezeH jo |aAe

@3y¥Vv123d LNIAIONI ¥OrviN sueaw Aouablaw3 JeajonN a)iS-HO

"Juasaid je pajoajep Uoljeipel ON :0ju] [euolIppY

MOJIPA

MO|IPA

MOJ|9A

(aNSO) Aouabiawz
Je3|dnN a)S-HO

9 ealy

g eaJay

V ealy

uoljealjisse|) Juang

9)IS poduoaa( jo AJUIDIA Ul piezeH |edlbojoipey Jualing

Figure 21 ROYG Chart 3

Page 97

DOSEP v8.0.



Page 102

OFFICIAL

6.12 ROYG Chart 4

............................ ”,—,m m:D G#NUQD H.xmz

................. e wo_w>_..._n_ yjesH aus-uo >Q panss|

.................................. ”AEO(—%V Co_ﬂowl__o UC_>>

J0108S Pk LIMOP 8L LIl 10N

ARDI|BR, P38 0] paliadie Jaas 51
{10198 pUIM LMOP LI 10U PUE 85EG [BABK SPISINO) 1 SN | S10p

101985 PUIM UMOP
SU] Ul pUB S8U0Z 515 puoiseg

pansst usad aazy (511S)
818|081 sUIPO| BIBIS BlalM BBy

ased |eAe J PIeRR0Q SpIsU|

2us
-uo

paLLIIOD

pleZeH LoeIpeY — (INSO)
Aausflswg Jesjany 81S-HO

MOJIBA aBuelg

U8pIoU| 1S U0

fepueis
AUS f Ualy A8es Jopoesy

g ealy Y ealy

uoeIYISSED JUSPIIAY

uonduaseg

ealy

(PALLLYUOD PIBZEH UOIEIDEY — INSO) UapIddy eoualajey
O UILYM SUIBLIS] JUSPIIOR )l SNIEIS LUNWDE} PE1Ipeld

uonoali
PUIAA
sidwexg

(2d30) euoz
Buluueld
Rowbiawg
pelRiagq

0]

R Jaquun @yepdn
‘epIs;o
2YOLIS 10 YULp ‘Jes Juog ‘paljddns alnsodxe
# sisjeLUl 8sop esn pue siejqel ASW G Pad0Xe 0) papadxe

8ujpoj 8|qelS 8xel - I ealy U
‘paiddns j Jajewl asop Jojuow Eale siu} ul juswioldap yng
PUB ISSIADY UOIPR)0Id UOHEPEY | U0O0S pajedppue io pajajep
wio. a0IApe Yaas — Bupjse) anupuo) | uoneipel Jo s[eAs| Buisesiou|

J0U (S1Y § 1X8U 18A0)

abueig

alnsodxs ASW g
paadxa Jou [|MA (S1Y 7 IX8U
J3n0) eale sy ul Juswikojdag
'Pa393)3p UoREIPES
JO 5|3A8] MO| AIBA 10 ON

ERITEIES=CT]
10} 3[[E|IBAR JI 51919 9S0P 35
‘pauinbau suonnessud [erosds o

‘pauinbaJ suojjnesaid oN

‘paezey [eoifojoipel B)IS-40 ON

siapuodsay Joj suogneaald plezeH jo [ana

"PaUWIUOD plezeH UOHEIpey :0ju] [BUOHIPPY

MO|IPA

MOI|IDA

abueup

(aNSO) Aouabiawzg
Jde3a|onN 3jls-HO

9 ealy

g eaay

V ealy

uoIeolIsSse|) JUaAg

9)IS JoduoAa( Jo AJIUIDIA Ul piezeH [edibojoipey jJudalin)

Figure 22 ROYG Chart 4

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 98



PO

......... .._GQE—JZ GHNUQD

............................ ”ﬁ.m m:D Q#NUQD mez srsssrsrrar s ”Hm wo_w>—&_& —&_H._mw—l— mﬂ_mlco >D Umjww_

.................................. ”AEO(—%V Co_ﬂowh_o U_(__>>

Page 103

OFFICIAL

6.13 ROYG Chart 5

101285 PUIM UWMOP S} Ul 10N a
101085 pUIM UMOD
MO A, Peaoxe o) pajoadxa Janau s| UL UIpUB 5107 51 IS plodsg 8
(lojo@s puiM uMOp Ul Jou pue asegd [BABN @pIsin0) D Baly: 8j0N panssl useq aney (51IS) v ‘8pIsino
SIBIBL3UPO| SIGEIS B3 B3y 8)ows.io yuup ‘jee juoq payddns ainsodxa
aseq laen fpaekpog epsul | S0S 4l siejeL 6sop esn pU S}eIGeL | Agu g pagoxa 0} pajpadxa
pauuyuod [epzjel) pr— cory sulpo| aqels exel - i ealy uf 10U (SIY  1¥8U 19A0) abueig
MOIPA abuzio anoeolpeY Jo asesjey i P ‘palddns yi Jejew asop JoyuoLl eale siyj ul juswifojdap ing
- (3Nso) fousbiew3 pUE I3SIAPY UO}23]01d UoleIpey | uoos pajedionue Io pajosisp
1ESRNN 2USHO Wiy 321APE 3935 — Bup{Se) aNURUOD | UolIeIpel Jo S[aA| Buiseasau|
A alnsodxa ASW G
pa20xa Jou [|w (S1Y f Ixau
fgpuels w__w, - el *90UBINSSEAI 19A0) Bale SIU} Ul Juswhoidag | MOJIBA
/ uely Ajsjes lojoeey 10} 8|¢E|IBAE JI SIS}SW 8SOpP 3s ‘Pejosisp uohelpel
‘padinba. suonnesa.d [eads oy 10 s|@A3| mo| A1sA Jo oN
gesv v ey HOHEALISSEID UIpLoay uoweu] ‘paJinbal suopnesaid oN ‘piezey [e2ifojolpRI AYS4O ON  UIAID
(Pauuyu0 [elele|| 8NP EOIPEY 40 85E3|8Y — INS 0) JUepRIY b
|dualaiey OIM UIYM sulewal JUapidde JI sniejs Wnwixep| pajpald Al e mr_w—u_._o.uwwm Jo} suoynedald PieZeH Jo [aA97

"PAWLUOD [ELI9JE\| @AIJOECIPEY JO 9Sea|9y pPUE pJeZeH Uoneipey :0oju| [euonippy

MOJ|IDA

MOI|IDA

abuelp

(aNSO) Aouabiawg
Jesa|onN aS-HO0

9 ealy

g ealy

v ealy

UOI}eDI}ISSe|) JUSAT

9)IS JoduoAs(] Jo AJIUIDIA Ul plezeH |esifojoipey jualing

Figure 23 ROYG Chart 5

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 99



Page 104

OFFICIAL

6.14 ROYG Chart 6

............................ ﬂm m:D mmeQD mez

MOJIAA, Pa92%9 0} pajaadxa Janau §|
(10§85 puji1 uMop u| Jou pue aseq [eABN SpISiNG) O Baly : BjON
*pasinbaa aq Aew suonnesaxd jeuoinppy

*suopdwnsse Bujuuejd pasaxa
03 pajoipatd s| Juaplode sueaw 9 peyg

(aINs0) fousblawg

MO[|3A JesjanN sS40

Waploul 2us-uo

Agpueys sus
{ Yapy Ajejes lopeey

uoljealIsse|d Juaplddy

JUBpI29Y #duslajey
QO UM SUleWal JUspaae J| SNJe}S WnWXe| pejolpeld

.................................. ”AEO.‘C.V Co_ﬁowl__o U_(__>>

101985 Pk LMAP SLY Ul 10N o}

101285 PUIM UMOP
U] Ul pUB S8U0Z 5] |5 puokeg
panssl ueaq sazy (8] |S)
s12|geL BUIPO| 2IGEIS 2J8UM 2oty

3580 |BABN / pIERIG0 splisul

uopduaseq

uonosiig /
PUIAf 4
adwex3 y

................. ;Je saIsAUd YljeaH a)IS-uQ Aq panss|

T JaquunN 8yepdn

10} 3|[E[IEAR }| SIS)RLU 3SOP 3s()
‘padinbal suonesa.d [eads oN

‘pauinbal suonessid o

‘epISino
aYoulis 10 yuup ‘Jes Juod pajiddns ainsodxa
# siejeul esop esn pue sigjqe) ASUW G pasoxa 0} papadxe
suipo| 8jqels exef - i ealy Uf 10U (S4Y ¥ U ISA0) abueig
‘payddns p 1838w asop Joyuow eale siy} ul juswloldsp jngq
pUE JSSIAPY UoIR3)01d Uoljelpey | uoos pajedionue io pajiaiep
wio.y 991Ape ¥23s — Bupise) anupuod | uoneipel Jo s[pas| Buiseslou]
alnsodxs ASW G
Pa20X3 J0U [IIM (S1Y tIX3U
'80UBINSSE3) J189/0) BaIE S|U) Ul JuswiAoidag | MOJIBA

‘pajslep UolEIpE.
10 S[2A3] M| AIaA Jo O

‘pJezey [ea16o|0Ip.I 3)ISYO ON

u3alg

s1apuodsay 10} suonnedaid

piezeH Jo [3AaT

"ALITIEFIANTLX - SNOILdWNSSY ONINNY1d

MOJ|IDA

abueip

9 ealy

g eaay

V ealy

G330Xd OL A31010349d "PAWIUGS [EHSJE|y SAROEOIPEY JO 9SEa[oy PUE PIEZE[ UOHEIPEY :Oju] [eUORIPPY

(INSO) Aouabiawz
Je3|onN 9)S-HO

uoljeolisse|) JUaAg

8]l Joduoasa( Jo ANUIDIA Ul piezeH |eoibojoipey Jusdind

9 LUVHD

Figure 24 ROYG Chart 6

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 100



OFFICIAL Page 105

7 RESPONDER CAPABILITY ASSURANCE

7.1 REPPIR Capability Requirements

Guidance to REPPIR Regulation || indicates that responder organisations with staff who may be
required to participate in the implementation of the off-site emergency plan must ensure that each
emergency worker is provided with necessary information, instruction, and training to perform their
role®.

In addition, the employer should ensure any staff member deployed to the affected area is provided
with equipment necessary to restrict exposure to ionising radiation. This could include PPE and the
issue of suitable dosemeters or other devices.

7.2 Organisational Capabilities

All DOSEP responder agencies must ensure that any member of staff they deploy in response to a
radiation incident at the Devonport Site, is a suitably qualified and experienced person (SQEP).

This SQEP requirement includes all who directly carry out response operations and extends to others,
such as commanders, directors and managers, whose roles, if inadequately conceived or executed, may
affect the safety of responding staff and members of the public.

The response organisation should have arrangements for identifying its competence needs and
mechanisms to ensure these are met and maintained.

All DOSEP responders should ensure appropriate levels of training are provided such that their staff
acquire and maintain the skills and knowledge needed to perform a role to defined standards.
7.3 Annual Capability Assurance

REPPIR guidance suggests that local authorities confirm that responder agencies maintain their
underpinning capabilities for the purposes of the response to a radiological emergency.

As the lead local authority, Plymouth City Council, undertakes an annual check of partners capabilities,
in April each year.

This check is carried out using an on-line survey, via Microsoft Forms. By submitting the on-line form,
DOSEP responder partners confirm their agency's competence for the purpose of responding to a
radiation emergency.

“ REPPIR (2019) Regulation || Guidance (The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations
2019 Approved Code of Practice and guidance (onr.org.uk)) [20.06.24]

DOSEP v8.0. Page 101


https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm
https://www.onr.org.uk/reppir-2019-update.htm

OFFICIAL Page 106
8 PARTNER AGENCIES ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The roles and responsibilities of key partner agencies likely to be involved in a response to a radiation
emergency are listed below. This section refers to agencies who have a duty under the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004 as a Category | or 2 responder, alongside other agencies which have no
CCA obligation, but whose capabilities are vital to the local response effort.

To avoid duplication with other emergency plans, and a consequent risk of obsolescence in agency
detail, each plan section outlines the agency’s generic emergency response and communication role.
In addition, each agency has detailed their additional capabilities for a specific response to a radiation
emergency.

Agencies are listed in alphabetical order, classified according to either their CCA 2004 Category I,
Category 2 status, or an allied responding organisation.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 102



OFFICIAL Page 107

8.1 CCA Category | Responders

8.1.1 British Transport Police

British Transport Police jurisdiction covers the railway line passing over and through the Devonport
Site. Jurisdiction also covers the dockyard branch line up to the dockyard Rail Gates.

Activation

* Devon & Cornwall Police ELECTRON cascade notification to Force Incident Manger (FIM) of Force
Control Room in Birmingham

= Calls to Station Duty Officer (SDO)

= 999 calls

* Notification by other emergency services

Standard emergency response

*  As described in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol document

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

I. If not already informed, the FIM to notify SDO

2. Contact CBRN Tac Ad

3. Inform Duty NILO

4. If requested and have capacity we will assist implementing the outer cordon

5. If requested and have capacity we will assist in transporting people to assistance centres

6. BTP Commanders will attend any relevant TCG & SCG

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

*  Part of TCG/SCG warning and informing cell, providing consistent messaging with all partners (if
implemented)

* Information will also be monitored from Resilience Direct via D&C Police
Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 103



OFFICIAL Page 108

8.1.2 Cornwall Council

Parts of south-east Cornwall could be affected by a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site. As a
CCA category one responder Cornwall Council supports the response to and recovery from a major
incident.

Activation

* Notification via CFRS Critical Control Room as part of Devon & Cornwall Police Op LINK /
ELECTRON cascade
* Notification will go to the on-call duty officer who is part of a 24/7 365 rota

Standard emergency response

*  As described in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

a. Provide detail of known vulnerable people within the DEPZ/OPZ
b. The following responders will be deployed as departmental representatives

* Duty Emergency Management Officer
* Duty Senior Officer

=  Communications Officer

* Contact Centre Supervisor

* Health Safety and Well-Being Officer
= Adult Social Care

=  Children’s Social Care

= CORMAC

= Schools Team

= Localism Officer

= Public Health Officer

=  Waste & Environment

=  Public Protection

The Duty Senior Officer activates the Cornwall Council Emergency Management and Business
Continuity Plan

Cornwall Council will provide assistance to schools and students as requested by the appropriate
Duty Senior Officer

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

* Part of TCG/SCG media, warning and informing cell, providing consistent messaging with all
partners (if implemented)
* Information will also be monitored from Resilience Direct via Devon and Cornwall Police

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 104



OFFICIAL Page 109

8.1.3 Devon and Cornwall Police

Devon and Cornwall Police coordinate the response phase of the incident. They

coordinate the emergency services, local authorities, and other supporting organisations, both at the
scene of the incident and elsewhere, this includes activation of the tactical and strategic coordination
groups.

Activation

= MOD Police inform DCP Force Incident Manager (FIM) commencing activation
* Follow Op ELECTRON which includes notification options of Initiating a ‘restricted PEAT’ or
initiating a ‘DOSEP TCG’, SCG as well as below additional arrangements

Standard emergency response

*  As described in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* Implement the call cascade (for ‘Restricted PEAT, DOSEP TCG, SCG) with reference to Op
Electron

* Dispatch a Police Inspector (Nuclear Emergency Procedures Trained on GRS) to the DACC as
Liaison Officer with support officer if required.

* Liaise with the force Radiation Protection Supervisor (RPS) and notify Radiation Protection
Advisor (RPA at AWE) with regards to informing and equipping police personnel responding
(only to emergencies) within the DEPZ to minimise potential risks from radiation and any specific
required PPE required / Dosimetry.

=  Appointment of CBRN Tactical Adviser, available to Tactical Commander

* Notify Police National CBRN Centre for info only

* Liaise with National Arrangements for incidents involving Radioactivity (NAIR)

» Establish Science & Technical Advice Cell (STAC)

»  Support the Communications and Media Plan of DOSEP and Cell activity.

* Initiate the Traffic Management Plan as per Op Electron

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

*=  As per the DCIOS Local Resilience Forum Warning and Informing plan. Warning and Informing
cell to provide consistent messaging with partners

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

*  Communication lead will follow the procedures set out in the DOSEP plan following its
activation

DOSEP v8.0. Page 105



OFFICIAL Page 110

8.1.4 Devon County Council

The Council is a category one responder supporting responses to major emergencies, as well as
information and advice to residents and businesses before, during and after an emergency.

Activation

= OP ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade,
=  Notification via other local authorities

Standard emergency response
* In accordance with the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* In the event of the radiation emergency in the offshore moorings at Charlie Delta and Echo
Buoys, Devon County Council will align its response with Part 3, Health Protection And
Protection Of The Public

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

*  Council will link in with the warning and informing arrangements in the SCG/TCG and has its
own communication plan for warning and informing local contacts (such as Elected Members)

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 106



OFFICIAL Page 111

8.1.5 Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue
Activation
= MOD Police inform Fire Control commencing activation

* Follow Op ELECTRON which includes notification options of Initiating a ‘restricted PEAT’ or
initiating a ‘DOSEP TCG’, SCG as well as below additional arrangements

Standard emergency response

*  As described in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol
= DSFRS Devonport Off-Site Emergency Plan

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* Implement the call cascade (for ‘Restricted PEAT, DOSEP TCG, SCG) with reference to Op
ELECTRON

*  Fire Control to notify Plymouth Stations to issue Potassium lodate Tablets (2 per person) and
instructed not to take until advised

* Fire Control to mobilise 1x Level 3 supervisory officer and Ix Level 2 supervisory officer to the
DACC (Devonport Accident Control Centre)

* Fire Control to mobilise Ix Level 3 Supervisory officer, Ix Level 2 Supervisory officer, Ix
HMEPA (Hazardous Materials and Environment Protection Advisor) and |x Radiological
Protection Officer from Bureau Veritas to TCG at Crownhill Police station

=  Support the Communications and Media Plan of DOSEP and Cell activity

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

* As per the DCIOS Local Resilience Forum Warning and Informing plan. Warning and Informing
cell to provide consistent messaging with partners

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

*  Communication lead will follow the procedures set out in the DOSEP plan following its
activation

DOSEP v8.0. Page 107



OFFICIAL Page 112

8.1.6 Environment Agency

The Environment Agency (EA) is at the core of planning for, responding to and recovering from many
emergencies in England as a category | responder. The EA works to keep people safe, minimising
serious and lasting damage to the environment and the wider community.

Activation

= OP ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade,

= Call from Devonport to Incident Communication Service Radiation Hotline
* Notification via other emergency services

Standard emergency response

*  As described in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol and internal documents

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* The EA National Radiation Assessment Cell will be scaled in response to an off-site nuclear
emergency

= Radiation Assessment Cell members will be available both remotely and physically at SCG & STAC
*  The National Air Quality Cell will be active

*= EA waste specialists along with the Radiation Assessment Cell will be present at the Recovery
Coordinating Group

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

*  Part of SCG warning and informing cell, providing consistent messaging with all partners

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

* Part of the SCG STAC, providing additional guidance and messaging with partners

DOSEP v8.0. Page 108



OFFICIAL Page 113
8.1.7 Livewell Southwest

Livewell Southwest (LSWV) is an independent, social enterprise providing integrated health and social
care services for people across Plymouth, South Hams and West Devon.

Activation

* Devon and Cornwall Police OP ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade

*  On-call director informed of incident via NHS England.

=  LSW may also receive a cascade call from Plymouth City Council if social care functions are
required.

Standard emergency response

As outlined in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol document

LSWV response will include:

Activation of LSW Incident Control Centre to co-ordinate response and recovery arrangements

2. ldentification, communication and review of LSW staff and patients within the incident area to
provide guidance, support and clinical intervention as required

3. In the event of assistance centre activation LSWV will deploy staff to support this facility and assist
with community response

4. To provide support to the health system if movement of patients required

5. To provide assistance as requested by partner organisations to support the response and recovery
whilst maintaining LSW core services

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* In the event of a radiation incident LSW will identify and triage vulnerable persons within the
affected areas to understand clinical requirements

* |f clinical intervention is required LSW will need to request support from specialist operational
multi-agency teams such as HART

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= LSW will utilise the LRF warning and informing cell communication strategy for the incident to
provide consistent messaging with all partners

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 109



OFFICIAL Page 114

8.1.8 MCA - HM Coastguard

The Maritime and Coastguard Agency (MCA) is an Executive Agency of the Department of
Transport. HM Coastguard is responsible for the initiation and coordination of civil maritime search
and rescue in the UK SAR region and will mobilise, organise and task adequate resources to respond
to persons either in distress at sea, or to persons at risk of injury or death on the cliffs or shoreline
of the UK.

Activation

The relevant Maritime or Joint Rescue Coordination Centre (MRCC or JRCC) is notified via the
Operation Link ELECTRON Devonport call cascade

The relevant JRCC/MRCC will additionally receive notifications via Airwave Shared Hailing
Groups, telephone, or email with access to Resilience Direct via designated officers

Standard emergency response

The coordination of an emergency response rests with the JRCC/MRCC, with control and
command for incidents moving between the scene of operations and remotely, amongst
designated appropriate MCA and HM Coastguard Officers

Response operations will be undertaken using safe systems of work, standard operating
procedures and with consideration for the associated operational details

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

MCA and HM Coastguard Duty Officers will join Strategic and Tactical Coordination Group calls
including Pre-Event Activation Teleconferences in accordance with the Local Resilience Forum
Plans

In keeping with UKSAR and the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, HM Coastguard will consider all
requests for mutual aid and may assist where practicable, in particular where a Major Incident is
declared

Declared Resources to HM Coastguard, including the Coastguard Rescue Service can assist with
the control of coastal pathways and littoral boundaries

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

HM Coastguard broadcasts Maritime Safety Information to all vessels at sea regarding
navigational and meteorological warnings, forecasts, and other urgent safety related messages as
part of the Global Maritime Distress and Safety System (GMDSS)

HM Coastguard will conduct enquiries to establish the safety of vessels or persons that may be in
any potential danger areas

As required, the MCA media team is contacted by the relevant J/MRCC or duty officers to issue
press releases, monitor the media, or handle related media enquiries

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

Warning, informing, and media activity is undertaken in accordance with the strategic and tactical
objectives as cascaded to operations by the relevant MCA and HM Coastguard Duty Officers
who attend the SMAC

DOSEP v8.0. Page 110



OFFICIAL Page 115
8.1.9 NHS England / NHS Cornwall & Isles of Scilly / NHS Devon (ICB)

NHS England along with NHS Cornwall and Isles of Scilly and NHS Devon Integrated Care Boards,
plan for and respond to a wide range of incidents and emergencies which could affect health or
patient care.

For a radiation emergency at the Devonport Site, the organisations support the response and
recovery.

Activation
= OP ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade

Standard emergency response

* As outlined in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

*  Opversight of NHS Provider organisations’ radiation monitoring impact and response

* Communication of Public Health messaging and advice to Primary Care and all other NHS
Providers

*  Coordination of mutual aid across system(s).

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= Standard Communications staff participation in Warning and Informing Cell

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page |11



OFFICIAL Page 116
8.1.10 Plymouth City Council

Plymouth City Council has legal emergency planning and community resilience responsibilities and
plays a vital role in:

* Recognising and assessing the risks that the city faces

* Encouraging action to prevent and minimise the effects of emergencies arising from those risks
* Ensuring the wellbeing of our communities

* Providing business continuity advice to local businesses

Activation

* Incident alert to CPS On Call mobile by MOD/DRDL at local activation
* Devon & Cornwall Police ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade
» Attend restricted PEATSs, PEATs, TCGs & SCGs following escalation path to full OSNE response

Standard emergency response

= Start action and decision log

* Contact and brief PCC’s duty Tactical Commander (TC)

* Notifying and brief the Strategic Commander (SC) and activate PCC Emergency Response Plan
(ERP)

* Arrange for appropriate representation detailed in PCC’s ERP

* Prepare to activate the RCG, according to the PCC Major Incident Recovery Plan

» Consider activating the Emergency Assistance Centre Plan

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* Director of Public Health to consider authorising SITs distribution

* DPH to activate and chair STAC meetings

= Appropriate public health and environmental health officers to attend STAC

* Provide early notification to schools, colleges and early years settings inside the detailed emergency
planning zone (DEPZ)

* |ssue Devonport Dockyard emergency messaging via the emergency notification system (ENS)

» Activate PCC’s radiation protection advisor

* Ensure a mapping officer is deployed to the TCC or linked virtually to the TCC

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= Refer to DCIOS LRF Communicating with the Public in an Emergency Plan

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

* PCC Comms officer to attend restricted PEAT, PEATs, TCGs and SCGs

* Media officers collaborate with partner agencies during incident escalation, prior to OSNE
declaration, ensuring all media releases are coordinated with MOD/DRDL and Devon and
Cornwall Police

* Through the appropriate authority consider activating Government Emergency Alerts for
Devonport DEPZ

Devonport Site Nuclear Accident Alarm - False Alarm Communication Protocol
e |If the site siren alarm sounds outside the agreed DOSEP process, the Devonport Site and

Plymouth City Council (PCC) activate the protocol detailing the process for notifying members of
the public that one (or more) siren(s) inadvertently sounded and was a false alarm.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 112



OFFICIAL Page 117

8.1.11 South Hams District and West Devon Borough Councils

The Councils provide support to the emergency services during major emergencies, as well as
information and advice to residents and businesses before, during and after an emergency.

In an emergency response situation, the Council can offer technical advice and temporary
accommodation for evacuees, if required. It can also lead on the recovery of a damaged area to a
state of normality.

Activation

= OP ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade,

= Call from Devonport to Incident Communication Service Radiation Hotline
* Notification via other emergency services

Standard emergency response

*  Out of hours officer or Emergency Response Officer responds to send word now message by
initiating Councils emergency response plan. Council will form its own Incident Management Team

and carry out the actions in the Plan, including nomination of trained officers to join the TCG and
SCG.

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

=  As above, no additional actions

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

*  Council will link in with the warning and informing arrangements in the SCG/TCG and has its
own communication plan for warning and informing local contacts (such as Elected Members)

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 113



OFFICIAL Page 118
8.1.12 United Kingdom Health Security Agency - South West

UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) prevents, prepares for and responds to infectious diseases, and
environmental hazards, to keep all our communities safe, save lives and protect livelihoods. We
provide scientific and operational leadership, working with local, national and international partners
to protect the public’s health and build the nation’s health security capability.

UKHSA is an executive agency, sponsored by the Department of Health and Social Care.

Activation

* Devon & Cornwall Police ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade
* Notification via LRF / Multiagency Partner / Emergency service

Standard emergency response

»  Attend restricted PEATSs, PEATs, TCGs & SCGs following escalation path to full OSNE response
* As outlined in the DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol
*  As outlined in the South West LRF’'s STAC plan

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* Contact the Regional Deputy Director for Health Protection (South West) or nominated deputy.

* Contact the South West Head of EPRR

* Contact UKHSA RCE

» Activate the STAC

* Notify the office of the UKHSA Chief Executive and the UKHSA National Response Centre
(NRQC)

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= Member of SCG warning and informing cell.
»= STAC would support warning & informing.

» UKHSA Regional Communications team to support the provision of information to assist with
consistent public messaging with all partners.

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page |14



OFFICIAL Page 119

8.1.13 United Kingdom Health Security Agency - Radiation, Chemicals and
Environmental Hazards

UKHSA RCE is the expert body legally responsible for ensuring health security in relation to
chemical, radiological and nuclear threats and is a Category | responder under the UK Civil
Contingencies Act (2004). The response to chemical, radiological and nuclear incidents is always a
multi-agency response; however, for the majority of emergency incidents the lead rests with other
bodies for example the police, local authorities or other government departments.

Activation

* Devon & Cornwall Police ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade
* Notification via UKHSA-SW

Standard emergency response

»  Attend restricted PEATSs, PEATs, TCGs & SCGs following escalation path to full OSNE response
*  As per UKHSA-RCE Radiation Emergency Response Plan

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

=  As above

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= None

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 115



OFFICIAL Page 120

8.1.14 University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

The NHS needs to be able to plan for and respond to a wide range of incidents and
emergencies that could affect health and patient care. These could be anything from
extreme weather conditions to an infectious disease outbreak, major transport
accident or a terrorist act.

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust is responsible for providing care across the widest of
spectrums: from within people’s homes and working with our voluntary sector partners in local
communities, to offering the most specialist hospital care available in our regional centre.

Activation

Devon & Cornwall Police ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade
Call from South Western Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust into major incident line at Derriford
Hospital

Standard emergency response

In support of DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol:

a)
b)

Invoke the UHP Major Incident Plan

Receive casualties to the agreed level detailed in the SW Casualty Distribution Plan On-call
Director to lead UHP response

Nominated Major Trauma Centre

Identify second On-call Director to support TCG

Activate Incident Control Centre at Derriford Hospital

De-escalate the Emergency Department and prepare wider hospital to receive casualties from
incident

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

a)
b)

<)
d)

e)
)

Identify responder from UHP Radiation Emergency call out list, able to respond to the incident
Invoke the UHP Medical Physics Emergency Response Plan

Identify operational staff to support decontamination and radiation monitoring process

Invoke enhanced arrangements for the receipt of casualties that have been irradiated,
contaminated and have life-threatening injuries requiring immediate treatment. Such casualties will
be conveyed by SWASFT to the back of Derriford Hospital, entering the building on Level 2 and
into Freedom Theatres. Those that do not fall into these criteria are expected to be monitored
and decontaminated at HMNB Devonport before conveyance to Derriford Hospital for treatment
Establish limited monitoring and casualty decontamination facility in the courtyard outside of the
Emergency Department, Derriford Hospital

Radiation Protection Advisors to provide radiation advice to UHP and Livewell Southwest staff

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

Re-iterate messages from Warning and Informing Cell, to ensure consistent approach.

Media enquiries to be directed to Police

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

Website and social media to include message for worried well not to attend Derriford Hospital
for assessment/decontamination

DOSEP v8.0. Page 116



OFFICIAL Page 121

8.2 CCA Category 2 Responders

8.2.1 Met Office

Legislation supporting the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 states that Category | responders must have
regard to the Met Office's duty to warn the public, and provide information and advice, if an
emergency is likely to occur or has taken place.

This duty includes issuing severe weather warnings and plume predictions, together with tidal alerts
(provided by the Flood Forecasting Centre). Linked to these services is advice, available from teams
of Met Office forecasters, specialist scientists and advisors, on the interpretation and impact of the
weather during an emergency.

Activation
* Devon & Cornwall Police ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade
Standard emergency response

* Met Office (EMARC) Forecasters responding to a telephone call and providing a verbal or written
forecast if out of hours. During working hours, this will be provided by the SW Advisor.

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

*  The Met Office provides the emergency authorities with meteorological forecasts, advice and
specialist services in the event of any CBRN release into the atmosphere

* Met Office (EMARC) Forecasters will respond to a telephone call/notification from Op Electron
indicating an emergency, by providing an immediate verbal assessment of the wind direction and
an estimate of the likely plume characteristics;

*  The forecaster will then provide a more detailed written forecast (PACRAM available to
responders within 20 minutes of the request. It will be sent via fax and/or email (as required).
Note that all PACRAM forecasts are also emailed to UKHSA RCE and Food Standards Agency
(FSA) for info. Should other Government agencies make enquiries of the Met Office in relation
to the incident (e.g. Police, Local Authority), then the same PACRAM information will be
forwarded to that agency;

»  The forecaster will contact the incident control centre with updates as appropriate, e.g. possible
changes in wind direction and/or respond to requests for further information as required

* Note that, if requested Met Office Civil Contingencies Advisors can attend the incident control

centre to provide direct liaison between the incident commanders and forecasters at the Met
Office HQ

The role of an advisor during an incident is:

* To ensure that the management teams are aware of all the meteorological factors that may
impact on the incident

* To endure consistency of information and that all responders within the DOSEP response are
able to utilise this information

*  Where required, to interpret this information for the responders.
DOSEP v8.0. Page 117



OFFICIAL Page 122

* To source other scientific advice available from the Met Office (e.g. from dispersion scientists)
and to act as a point of contact between the Met Office and responders. This will free up
responder’s resources to enable them to utilise their specific skills effectively.

= Respond to weather related enquiries

* If required and appropriate, to arrange for routine forecasts and other information to be supplied
in the recovery phase

= To assist in the audit trail by documenting all meteorological requests and responses

= Information on any plume, including all PACRAM forecasts, can be uploaded on to the Met Office
Hazard Manager website so that all information is available to all responders.

= Contact the SW Civil Contingencies Advisor to activate responders access to the Hazard
Manager site which is available to all CAT | and CAT 2 responders at all times.

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

* Not applicable

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

* Not applicable

DOSEP v8.0. Page 118



OFFICIAL Page 123
8.2.2 National Grid
As a category 2 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act (2004), National Grid Electricity
Distribution (NGED) has an obligation to cooperate with category | responders to plan for

emergencies and meet the needs of those who may be vulnerable as a result.

Activation
* Devon & Cornwall Police ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade

Standard emergency response
= Attend, if required, PEATs, TCGs & SCGs following escalation path to full OSNE response
Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* Incident dependent, with additional briefing, radiation protection and PPE needs Identified at the
time

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= None

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 119



OFFICIAL Page 124

8.2.3 National Highways
National Highways is responsible for operating, maintaining and improving the strategic road
network. National Highways is the highway authority for the A38 trunk road in the Plymouth area.

National Highways is a category 2 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act (2004).

Activation
* Devon & Cornwall Police Operation Link ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade

Standard emergency response
»= Attend PEATs, TCGs & SCGs following escalation path to full OSNE response
Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

= National Highways do not routinely attend any inner cordon but would seek to provide roads
closures and diversions on the strategic road network.

*  Provision of any available variable message signs (VMS) messaging to warn drivers

* |tis not anticipated that National Highways staff or contractors would be within any affected
area.

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

*  Part of the SCG SMCC (W&I) cell
* Re-posting messages on behalf of the DOSEP processes

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 120



OFFICIAL
Page 125
8.2.4 Network Rail
The Network Rail National Emergency Plan sets out the arrangements in place to provide an
effective response to accidents, incidents, emergencies, or crises on or affecting Network Rail
controlled assets across Great Britain. It enables Network Rail to comply with the requirements of

the Civil Contingencies Act (2004) as a Category 2 responder.

Activation

* Devon & Cornwall Police Operation Link ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade to Route
Control (RCM) in Swindon

= RCM advises Plymouth Mobile Operations Manager (MOM)

Standard emergency response

* Route Control Manager Swindon (RCM) will then alert local Mobile Operations Manager (MOM)
who will be appointed Rail Incident Officer (RIO).

* RIO & Route Control to ensure all railway partners are made aware of the incident.

*  RIO will monitor the railway affected area of the contamination between Saltash and Devonport
railway stations. This could also include the Gunnislake line

»= Attend PEATs, TCGs & SCGs following escalation path to full OSNE response
Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

*  None as railway personnel will be evacuated in the potentially contaminated area.

Standard warning informing and media arrangements
* Via Network Rail media department — or on call via Control out of hours
* Information will be monitored from Resilience Direct via D&C Police

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

=  None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 121



OFFICIAL Page 126

8.2.5 Office for Nuclear Regulation

The Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR) is the UK’s independent nuclear regulator for safety,
security and safeguards.

ONR is responsible for provision of advice to government and other responders during such an
event as an off-site nuclear emergency at Devonport.

Activation

* ONR may be notified via the operator for an ‘onsite’ incident. Otherwise, it would be notified,
when OSNE declared and DOSEP activated via e-mail/phone
* Devon & Cornwall Police Operation Link ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade

Standard emergency response

= ONRis a Category 2 responder in the event of a nuclear or radiation emergency

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

During an off-site emergency at a nuclear site, ONR will set up the Redgrave Court Incident Suite
(RCIS) at the offices in Bootle. The RCIS functions as a centre for the collation of information, the
interpretation of that information, and the discussion and determination of ONR'’s independent
advice and regulatory decisions. The RCIS exchanges information and provides advice via its deployed
away teams at the Strategic Coordination Centre (SCC) and central/devolved government.

The main duties of the ONR SCC team are to:

= Support and provide relevant advice to organisations involved in the emergency response at the
SCC

* Attend the Strategic Coordination Group (SCG) meetings at the SCC

» Attend the Scientific and Technical Advice Cell (STAC) at the SCC

* Maintain and exchange information with ONR’s Redgrave Court Incident Suite (RCIS)

The ONR SCC team may comprise the following roles:

* ONR SCC Lead Inspector - Coordinates the activities of the ONR SCC team. Attends and
provides relevant advice at the SCG

* ONR SCC Specialist Inspector - Provides specialist technical support to the ONR SCC team and
deputises for the ONR SCC Lead Inspector

* ONR SCC Radiological Protection Inspector - Attends and provides relevant advice at the STAC

* ONR SCC Support - Provides administrative support and communication with the RCIS

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= None
Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

*  ONR specific media arrangements will be handled via the RCIS

DOSEP v8.0. Page 122



OFFICIAL Page 127
8.2.6 South West Water

Activation

a. Via Op ELECTRON (DC Police) Notification
b. Via PCC notification to local area
c. Via emergency services

Standard emergency response

a. As per DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol document

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

a. SWW has limited / no additional response arrangements outside of those listed in the DCIOS
LRF Emergency Response Protocol or the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan

b. SWW would look to keep staff out of the area affected and monitor systems remotely where
possible

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

a. Part of SCG warning and informing cell, providing consistent messaging with all partners

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

a. None

DOSEP v8.0. Page 123



OFFICIAL Page 128

8.2.7 Wales and West Utilities

The Wales and West Emergency Response Plan sets out the arrangements in place to provide an
effective response to incidents which may relate to a major or severe gas supply emergency. It
enables Wales and West to comply with the requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act (2004) as a
Category 2 responder.

Activation
* Devon & Cornwall Police Operation Link ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade to Wales and
West

Standard emergency response

*  Gold - Strategic — Implement the WWU Emergency Response Plan
Gas Distribution Network Leadership Team — This level will only convene in a Major or Severe
Local Gas Supply Emergency or if the use of Customer Self Isolation & Restoration is to be
authorised.

=  Silver — Tactical — Control the emergency

Incident Controller — This level will usually be the ultimate level of command and will operate
away from the site of a gas supply emergency.

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

= N/A

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

= N/A

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

= N/A

DOSEP v8.0. Page 124



OFFICIAL Page 129

8.3 Allied Responding Organisations

8.3.1 MOD & Devonport Royal Dockyard Ltd (Babcock)

The Site Operators

Activation

Process outlined in DEVNUSAFE (on-site emergency plan)

Standard emergency response

Emergency Incidents will normally be notified on site to the Duty Manager directly or to
Emergency Monitoring Headquarters (EMHQ) who will be monitoring radiological measurement
equipment (Dockside Installed Reactor Accident Monitoring System and Perimeter Monitoring
System) and maintaining regular communications via direct line links with pre-identified business
units/areas across the site.

Conventional emergencies are more likely to be notified directly to the Duty Manager who
makes a decision regarding further escalation. Radiological emergencies received by EMHQ will
similarly be notified to the Duty Manager for consideration, formal declaration and escalation as
required.

Wherever an emergency occurs, business units/areas/staff involved will respond immediately to
mitigate or deal with the emergency using existing localised contingency/emergency and other
response plans and procedures.

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

Radiological emergencies arrangements are identified within the Devonport Site Emergency Plan
and Devonport Nuclear Safety Orders (DEVNUSAFE)

The Duty Manager will decide upon the level of response required and these will range from No
action, Site Standby, Devonport Site Accident (DSA) - On Site Incident (OSl)or Off-Site Nuclear
Emergency (OSNE)

Following the declaration of a Site Standby, On-Site Incident or Off-Site Nuclear Emergency,
EMHQ will initiate a site-wide emergency cascade callout of appropriate Nuclear Emergency
Response Organisation (NERO) personnel in order to staff appropriate NERO facilities at EMHQ,
Forward Command Posts (FCP), Devonport Accident Control Centre (DACC) Exclusion Zone
Reception Centre (EZRC) and Shelter Stations and any other facilities.

In the event of an Off-Site Nuclear Emergency the Devonport Strategic Team support the
Strategic response and deploy to the Strategic Co-ordinating Centre (SCC) at Middlemoor, if
established.

The on-site response will be provided from the on-site tactical command centre operating at the
DACC.

Emergency support equipment is primarily detailed in DEVNUSAFE and includes monitoring
equipment, vehicles, buildings, facilities, stocks of Stable lodine Tablets (SITs), and personal
protective equipment (PPE).

DOSEP v8.0. Page 125



OFFICIAL Page 130

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

* Media and warning and informing arrangements will be detailed in line with the Local Resilience
Forum, Media, Comms Warning and Informing Plan.

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

*  The Naval base siren may sound with a rising and falling note in the event of a radiation
emergency. The siren is sounded to warn people on the Devonport Site of the radiation
emergency. The ‘all clear’ signal is given by sounding the siren on a steady note for at least a
minute.

Devonport Site Nuclear Accident Alarm - False Alarm Communication Protocol

If the siren alarm sounds outside the agreed DOSEP process, the Devonport Site will:

. Investigate the cause.
. Identify if there is a radiation hazard
. If no hazard, confirm a false alarm

The Ministry of Defence (MOD) and Babcock International (the Devonport Site operators) and
Plymouth City Council (PCC) activate the protocol detailing the process for notifying members of
the public that one (or more) siren(s) inadvertently sounded and was a false alarm.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 126



OFFICIAL Page 131

8.3.2 Food Standards Agency

Activation

Devon & Cornwall Police Operation Link ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade to Wales and
West

Standard emergency response

The FSA should be notified directly of any incidents or emergencies with potential effects on
food and /or feed safety. The Agency will, for example, need to be notified about incidents with
the potential to affect food/feed through direct deposition on crops or land used for grazing
livestock; via possible water pathways including leaks, spills of chemicals or contaminated
firewater runoff into watercourses; or where plumes from fires containing chemicals or toxic
gases could contaminate nearby agricultural land.

A release of radioactivity following an accident could contaminate grass, crops, foodstuffs and
animal feed. The meat and milk of grazing animals could also become contaminated. The FSA has
extensive powers to control the production and supply of contaminated or potentially
contaminated food and animal feed and would be responsible for recommending and enforcing
required control measures. These could involve restrictions on the supply of food (including
milk) and the movement of livestock. The FSA will work closely with DEFRA and other
responding organisations’ such as the Environment Agency, as necessary. The FSA has detailed
plans for responding to all types of incidents involving food/feed safety

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

Providing an appropriate FSA representative to advise the SCG, STAC, RCG, SMAC and other
required sub-groups on food/feed safety— remotely, in the first instance;

Providing public information in relation to food/feed safety in accordance with SCG strategy.

Carrying out a food and animal feed safety risk assessment of the incident’s potential impact on
food and animal feed safety by assessing the risk of any contamination of food and determining
whether statutory limits will be exceeded (may consist of an estimate of source term from
operators or measurements of air-borne radioactivity close to the site);

Determining the level of any contamination of the food chain.

Taking action to ensure that food and/or animal feed contaminated to unacceptable levels does
not enter the food chain. This may include the implementation of legal measures such as orders
under the Food and Environmental Protection Act (FEPA) 1985 to restrict the supply,
movement, or sale of produce from an affected area (where appropriate). In implementing
controls, the FSA will take account of regulations concerning maximum permitted levels of
radionuclides in food and feed;

Liaising with DEFRA on the implications of the FSA’s actions on food production and
distribution.

Ensuring, in conjunction with the Environment Agency and other appropriate government
departments, the safe management, control and disposal of contaminated food.

Ensuring that subsequent recovery arrangements take account of food/feed safety issues that
impact public health.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 127



OFFICIAL Page 132

* Emergency support equipment is primarily detailed in DEVNUSAFE and includes monitoring
equipment, vehicles, buildings, facilities, stocks of Stable lodine Tablets (SITs), and personal
protective equipment (PPE).

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

* The FSA will provide advice, information and reassurance messages to the public on matters
relating to the safety of food (as soon as possible following the declaration of an ‘off-site nuclear
emergency’) in collaboration with Media Advice Cell;

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

= N/A

DOSEP v8.0. Page 128



OFFICIAL Page 133
8.3.3 Ministry of Defence HQSW Joint Regional Liaison Officers (MOD JRLO)

Activation

] Restricted PEAT — MOD Police ONLY

*  Multi-Agency PEAT — MOD HQSW — (via Police contingency plan ELECTRON - Call Cascade)
Standard emergency response

a. Joint Regional liaison Officer (JRLO) and/or RAF Regional Liaison Officer (RLO) and/or RN RLO
at SCG level.

b. Assistant JRLO (AJRLO) at TCG level.

c. Possibly deploy a Military Liaison Officer (MLO) to the FCP.

d. Through OP TAPESTRY (requested by Police): The Technical Response Force (the military
Explosive Ordinance Disposal capability), is on — 10 Mins Notice to move and | hr Notice to
Effect. Initially, this is a very limited capability, but this can build as required (see Add| Radiation

response below).

Of note is that while the MOD has CBRNe capability it is not equipped to manage HAZMAT
incidents.

e. Provide advice on Military Aid to the Civil Authority (MACA).

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

a. Specialist Response Teams (under OP TAPESTRY)

b. Support from the Atomic Weapons Establishment (AWE) for Radiological and Nuclear Response

c. Support from the Defence Science and Technological Laboratory (DSTL) — Radiation Protection
Advisory

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

a. Part of SCG warning and informing cell, providing consistent messaging with all partners
b. Liaison with MOD media cell based out of HQSVV, Tidworth

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

a. Media as directed by MOD media Operations.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 129



OFFICIAL Page 134

8.3.4 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
Resilience & Recovery Directorate (RED)

Activation
* Devon & Cornwall Police Operation Link ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade

Standard emergency response

* As per Responding to Emergencies -The UK Central Government Response Concept of
Operations and MHCLG RED internal response plans

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

* MHCLG RED will deploy a Government Liaison Officer (GLO) to the Strategic Coordinating
Centre at Police Headquarters, Middlemoor, Exeter

* Coordinate formation of Government Liaison Team with representation from the appropriate
Lead Government Department (LGD) (MOD / Home Office (HO))

*  Once the Government Liaison Team and LGD GLO is in place the RED GLO will step into role
of consequence management.

* The Government Liaison Team will act as a conduit for information flow between the SCG and
LGD/CORBR (as appropriate) and to anticipate resource and advice needs that are likely to
emanate from the local response.

* The Government Liaison Team will additionally liaise between other departments and agencies
to ensure their interests are represented in the SCG in order to carry out their statutory duties
and support the emergency response.

* A Response Co-ordinating Group (ResCG) may be convened where the response would benefit
from some coordination or enhanced support at cross-SCG level. In such circumstances,
MHCLG may, on its own initiative, or at the request of local responders, or of the LGD, in
consultation with the Cabinet Office, convene a ResCG to bring together appropriate
representatives.

Standard warning informing and media arrangements

* Not applicable - MHCLG is not deployed as a responder agency

Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

* Not applicable - MHCLG is not deployed as a responder agency

DOSEP v8.0. Page 130



OFFICIAL Page 135

8.3.5 Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry Joint Committee (Tamar Crossings)
Activation

a. OP ELECTRON Devonport Call Cascade,

b. Notification via other emergency services

Standard emergency response

As per DCIOS LRF Emergency Response Protocol document

Additional radiation emergency response arrangements

Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry Joint Committees role in any radiation incident can be categorised
in to four parts based on the DOSEP escalation process:

= Stage |

N/A

= Stage 2

Senior Operational and Management staff to attend multi-agency PEAT if convened.

= Stage 3

Senior Operational and Management staff to attend multi-agency TCG if convened.

= Stage 4

Senior Operational and Management staff to attend Tactical and Strategic Coordination Groups when
a Major incident is declared.

Information on the situation and risks would be feedback internally to provide guidance and response
in line with Incident Management and Business Continuity Plans.

Standard warning informing and media arrangements
Public informed through variable message signs, social media and website.
Additional radiation warning informing and media arrangements

N/A

DOSEP v8.0. Page 131



OFFICIAL Page 136

APPENDIX A - COMBINED TACTICAL & STRATEGIC COMMAND RESPONSE
ACTION CHECKLIST

This checklist is designed to prompt and assist tactical and strategic command to confirm the
appropriate response and urgent protective actions, to be taken in the event of a radiation

emergency at the Devonport Site as outlined in DOSEP have been considered and completed.

The action list is drawn from DOSEP parts two (Activation, Actions, Command and Control), and
three (Health Protection and Protection of the Public).

It is intended to form both an aide-memoire and safeguard for commanders that appropriate activity
has been carried out in response to an OSNE at the Devonport Site.

Al .| Incident Alert - Local Response

Actions in Response to an Abnormal Event or False Alarm

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Devonport Duty Arrange a meeting with relevant local

ACTION |
Manager responder partners

Operators and The operators meet local responders and

ACTION 2 -
relevant responders | make a decision

Stage | Decision Considerations

Consideration | Decision to Make Action to Take WI}o takes the
action?
No escalation. The incident
A is managed in normal No further off-site action N/A

operations

Activate the Devonport Site Nuclear Plvmouth CC
B There is a false alarm Accident Alarm — False Alarm m
Communication Protocol

There is an abnormal event Consider activation of the Devonport

c with potential for a off-site Emergency Plan MOD Police
radiological hazard (or the Escalate to % ACTION 4

perception of such a hazard)

{3 el NS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
ACTIONS

Activate the Devonport Site Nuclear Accident
Alarm — False Alarm Communication Protocol

ACTION 3 Plymouth CC

ACTION 4 MOD Police Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
- Contact Devon & Cornwall Police

- Request DOSEP is now activated

- Ask Force Incident Manager (FIM) to
Convene RESTRICTED PEAT

Escalate to

DOSEP v8.0. Page 132



OFFICIAL Page 137
A2 ¥\l Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan

Convene a Restricted Pre-Event Assessment Teleconference (PEAT)

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Activate Contingency Plan ELECTRON

LR DCPFIM Convene a restricted PEAT

Publish the Resilience Direct Devonport Nuclear Emergency Response Page

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE

Publish the RD Devonport Off-site

ACTION 6 PLYMOUTH CC
Nuclear Emergency Response Page

Restricted PEAT Decisions

Stage 2 Restricted PEAT Decision Considerations

Who takes

Consideration | Decision to Make Action to Take .
the action?

Hazard reducing. No
A futher gscalatlon. T.h © No further off-site action N/A
incident is managed in

normal operations

Hazard not reducing, but
insufficient information to | Consider escalation to multi-
B declare a major incident. agency DOSEP PEAT. PEAT Chair
Potential off-site impact m

requires monitoring

Hazard shows increasing Consider major incident
C potential for off-site declaration and escalate to TCG | PEAT Chair

radiological risk STAGE 3JACTIONS 8 & 9

DOSEP v8.0. Page 133



OFFICIAL

Convene a multi-agency PEAT

Page 138

RESPONSE

ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

ACTION 7 DCP Convene a PEAT

Stage 2 Multi-agency PEAT Decision Considerations

Consideration | Decision to Make Action to Take Who ta.kes

the action?

Hazard reducing. No

A futher gscalatlon. T.h € No further off-site action N/A
incident is managed in
normal operations
Hazard not reducing, but
insufficient information to Consider further multi-agency

B declarg a major |r.1C|dent. DOSEP PEAT. m PEAT Chair
Potential off-site impact
requires monitoring.
Hazard shows increasing Consider major incident

C potential_for off-site declaration and escalate to TCG | PEAT Chair
radiological risk. STAGE 3JACTIONS 8 & 9

A3 SAP:X<l k] Major Incident Declared

Declare a Major Incident and escalate to Tactical Coordinating Group (TCG)

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

ACTION 8

ACTION 9

RESPONSE

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
PEAT Chair Declare Major Incident

Convene the Tactical Coordinating Group
BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

ACTIONS

ACTION 10 DCP

Send first TCG details to DOSEP
responders

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 134




OFFICIAL Page 139

Who takes

Consideration | Decisions to Make Action to Take .
the action?

Continue multi-agency
response activity until

A Hazard reducing incident managed locally N/A
No further escalation
Hazard shows continuing
B potential for radiological risk or | Convene a further TCG TCG Chair

the perception of such risk.
Activate the appropriate TCC(s)
The nature and likely scale of
the radiation emergency is such
that responder agencies require
C the activation of an SCG to Escalate to TCG Chair
provide direction in managing
the potential off-site
consequences

Convene the Strategic Coordinating Group

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
ACTION |1 TCG Chair Request SCG convene

If TCCs not activated, open Plymouth

aSLlied) B TCG Chair TCC (and Truro TCC if required)

At the strategic level, a major incident requiring a multi-agency response is coordinated through the
SCG which can meet online or in person.

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE

Send first SCG details to DOSEP

ACTION 13 DCP
responders

DOSEP v8.0. Page 135



OFFICIAL

Page 140

Preparation for initiating Urgent Protective Actions

RESPONSE
v

ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE

SCG Chair and Confi tion for U ¢ Protecti
ACTION |4 Director of Public or) I'm preparation for Lrgent Frotective

Actions
Health
BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

Director of Public
Health and SCG

Chair

Confirm preparation for Urgent Protective

Actions

Opening the Strategic Coordination Centre

Consideration

Decisions to Make

Action to Take

Who takes
the action?

A

Hazard reducing. Continue
response activity until handover

to RCG.

SCG handover to RCG

SCG Chair

Hazard shows continuing
potential for radiological risk or
the perception of such risk.

Convene a further SCG

SCG Chair

The nature and likely scale of
the radiation emergency is such
that responder agencies require
the activation of an SCC to
provide the facilities required to
managing the potential off-site

consequences

SCG Chair

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

ACTION I5

DOSEP v8.0.

BY WHOM

ACTION REQUIRED

COMPLETE v

SCG Chair

Confirm activation of SCC

Page 136




OFFICIAL

Page 141

A4 p:Xc ! Off-Site Nuclear Emergency Declaration

Off-Site Nuclear Emergency

RESPONSE

ACTIONS

:\ea (o] ' BI. W Devonport Site

Check Major Incident Declaration

RESPONSE
ACTIONS

ACTION 17 el

RESPONSE

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Declare OSNE
BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Check a major incident has been declared.
If not, then declare a major incident
Implement Urgent Protective Actions
BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v

ACTIONS

SCG Chair and
:Xeu g [e)\'BE:N Director of Public
Health

Confirm implementation of Urgent
Protective Actions

Protective Actions in the Devonport DEPZ after OSNE

NOTE | - SEE PART 3A for additional information relating to protective actions for an off-site

nuclear emergency in the off-shore DEPZ for CHARLIE DELTA and ECHO Buoys.

NOTE 2 - SEE PART 3B for additional information relating to protective actions for an off-site
nuclear emergency in the off-shore DEPZ for 22 & 23 ANCHORAGES

BY WHOM

ACTION REQUIRED

COMPLETE v

Director of Public
Health and SCG

Confirm implementation of Urgent
Protective Actions

Chair

Comms & Media |Issue advice to the population in the DEPZ
Cell to “Go In, Stay In and Tune In”.

Plymouth City Activate the Plymouth Emergency

Council Notification System for Devonport
Comms & Media |Consider activating UK Government

Cell Emergency Alerts

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 137




OFFICIAL

Page 142

Off-site Incident - Strategic Coordinating Group

RESPONSE

v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
ACTION 19 el Send SCG details to DOSEP responders
Open the Strategic Coordination Centre
RESPONSE
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
ACTION 20 [nley Confirm SCC Open
Establish Working Groups and Cells in support of SCC
RESPONSE
v
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE
ACTION 21 Do Confirm Working Groups and Cells are
supporting DCG
Stable lodine Tablet Distribution
BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
SITs Dist. Attempts contact with DPH requesting

Coordinator

authority to distribute.

DPH

Grants authority to distribute tablets

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Records outcome of DPH Contact.

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Confirms DPH authority to distribute,
either through verbal contact or via the
prior confirmation letter.

SITs Dist.
Coordinator

Mobilises SITs delivery teams following
instructions in the Devonport off-site
Stable lodine Tablet Distribution Plan

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 138




OFFICIAL

Page 143

Stable lodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Consider arrangements to enable SITs to

DPH be obtained by people on watercraft inside
the DEPZ and located in downwind sector
of the accident submarine.

Communicating Health Information

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Activate warning and informing channels to

DPH / UKHSA provide advice to the population

concerning, sheltering and obtaining SITs,
with information about when to take SITs.

Education and Early Years Settings

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
DPH / PCC / F:onsidgr issuing SITs‘ administration
Cornwall Council |nstruction to education and early years
settings by local authorities
Population Radiation Monitoring
BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
DPH / PCC/
Cornwall Council |Consider activating population radiation
/ Devon CC/ monitoring arrangements for Plymouth,
UKHSA / UKHSA | Cornwall and Devon.
RCE
UKHSA SW/ Activate South-West Radiation Monitoring
UKHSA RCE Unit Framework

PCC/CC/DCC

Activate local monitoring unit (RMU)
deployment plans / arrangements

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 139




OFFICIAL

Page 144
Health Protection Information

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Provide at regular intervals, and in an

DPH / PCC/ appropriate manner, information and

Cornwall Council |advice about the facts of the emergency,

/ Devon CC the steps being taken and, as appropriate,
the health protection measures.
Information to be relevant to members of
the public in the local authority area.

DPH / PCC/ Information should detail health protection

Cornwall Council |advice such as recommendations to

/ Devon CC shelter, SITs administration, restrictions on
food consumption, hygiene and
decontamination

Health Communication Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Provide at regular intervals, and in an

DPH / PCC/ appropriate manner, information and

Cornwall Council |advice about the facts of the emergency,

/ Devon CC the steps being taken and, as appropriate,
the health protection measures.

Preplanning for Protective Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ

BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
Consider protective actions which may be
PcC /;ornwall required beyond the DEPZ but inside the
Council / Devon :
cC OPZ. Gather data to inform necessary
protective actions
A5 Q<! Criteria for Handover from Response to Recovery
RESPONSE
ACTIONS BY WHOM ACTION REQUIRED COMPLETE v
ACTION 22 DCP &.Local Activate handover to recovery
Authority

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 140




OFFICIAL

Page 145

APPENDIX B - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Table | - Sheltering

Finding Shelter

Concerns
regarding
sheltering

Everyone is advised to go into the nearest building.
Close all doors and windows. Turn off air
conditioning that relays external air. Tune into
local radio, TV or social media.

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)
STAC

SCG

Contaminated
Clothing

Specific action
with regard to
taking shelter

If a person is outside for a prolonged period of
time during the emergency, then if possible when
inside a secure building, they should blow their
nose, remove outer clothing and place in sealed
bag. Wash hands, face and other exposed skin as
soon as possible. If wearing contaminated clothes,
people should double bag clothes and leave
clothes outside their door.

Additional advice will be provided via news/media
channels.

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)
STAC

SCG

Evacuation

Advice on
evacuation

Evacuation is not a protective action that
members of the public surrounding the Devonport
Site are likely to be advised to take.

An evacuation will only occur if the SCG consider
it is appropriate and the factors (traffic / release
timings etc.) favour evacuation.

SCG

Evacuation Not
Possible

In the event that
evacuation is not
appropriate

Sheltering provides protection that is equal to or
even greater than evacuation. Sheltering may be
the preferred protective action in cases where
weather, competing events, or short-term releases
are factors.

Visitors to the city, homeless people or residents
who are unable to return to their homes should
seek alternative housing or should shelter in an
assistance centre.

SCG

Public Self-
Evacuating

Why shouldn’t
the public self-
evacuate!

The public should not leave the area because
roads may become gridlocked, and the emergency
services will not be able to get through to do their
job. It is very unlikely that an evacuation of the
area will be needed. If there is any need for an
evacuation, details will be given on local TV and
radio. They will tell the public what to do and
when.

SCG

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 141




OFFICIAL

Page 146

Table 2 — Health and Stable lodine

Personal Health

People concern
about their or
their loved ones
health.

Advice will be provided by the Director of Public
Health via the media/social media. People should
‘Go in, stay in, and tune in’.

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)
STAC/SCG

UKHSA RCE during initial
stages of the emergency.

Public enquires
concerning SITs

Questions
regarding when
people should
take their stable
iodine tablets

The public will be advised to take the stable iodine
tablets via the media and police announcements.
Messages will be circulated using all available media
resources.

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)

Stable lodine Leaflet

STAC/SCG

SITs
Distribution

When are SITs
issued?

SITs are issued on declaration of an off-site
nuclear emergency (OSNE).

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)
STAC/SCG

Distribution of

stable iodine
tablets (SITS)

How are SITs
zones
established?

SIT distribution zones are established for all areas
inside the DEPZ. Schools in those areas hold a
pre-distributed stock sufficient for the needs of
pupils and staff.

Where SITs are required as part of the general
protective actions in an off-site nuclear emergency
sufficient quantity will be hand delivered to all
premises in the downwind zones.

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)
STAC/SCG

Off-site risk to
the health of the
public

What is the risk
to health due to
radioactive
material
released off-site?

The direct risk to health of those off-site, in a
down-wind area, is a potential increase in their
lifetime risk of developing cancer. The extent of
this increase in risk is dependent upon the
radiation dose received by an individual. Any
increase in risk is likely to be low.

Indirect risks to health may be due to an
individual’s inability to access necessary healthcare
within a necessary timescale; e.g. being unable to
attend a health facility, or health staff being unable
to travel to an individual, during a period where
the ‘Go in, stay in and tune in’ instruction has been
issued.

STAC
UKHSA
RCE

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 142




OFFICIAL

Page 147

Table 3 — University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

University
Hospitals
Plymouth

Role of
University
Hospitals
Plymouth

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust will be
the designated receiving hospital for casualties
sustaining injuries as a result of an emergency at
Devonport:

e Severely injured - Irradiated, contaminated
casualties suffering with life-threatening
injuries will be conveyed to hospital for
immediate treatment, prior to
decontamination.

e Moderately and minor injured casualties to be
decontaminated on-site where possible (note:
fixed and internal contamination may require
specialist medical decontamination) prior to
transportation to University Hospitals
Plymouth, as required.

Table 4 - Children at School and Vulnerable People

Children at school will be kept inside to protect
them from radiation.
Windows and doors will be closed, and heating
and air-conditioning units will be shut down.
How will Children will be given stable iodine tablets, from
. . ' . SCG
Children at children be the school's supply, if needed. o
Radiation Emergency
Schools cared for at Booklet (june 2023)
school? Do not risk exposing yourself or your children to
higher levels of radiation by going outside to
collect them.
You should tune in to local TV and radio to find
out about the care and return of children at
school.
Plymouth City Council, Cornwall Council, Devon
County Council and South Hams District Council | STAC/SCG
have detailed plans and maps displaying the UK Health Security
What about . L
location of vulnerable people facilities/areas such Agency
Vulnerable vulnerable
P . as schools and care homes. LRF — Vulnerable People
eople people within .
the community? Tactical Framework
" | All people in the potentially affected areas should Individual school
remain indoors and listen to advice and guidance evacuation plans
via radio and television.
DOSEP v8.0. Page 143




OFFICIAL

Table 5 — Pets and Wildlife

Page 148

Pets should be kept indoors to reduce the chances

Radiation Emergency

should thoroughly wash hand. No local wildlife
should be encouraged into resident’s houses.

of them bringing in radioactive material from the Booklet (June 2023)
outside. STAC/SCG/RCG
Pet Health Pet concern RSPCA
concerns Pets that can be quickly brought inside following DEFRA and Animal and
an emergency need to be washed thoroughly and Plant Health Agency
their interaction with children or vulnerable
people should be kept to a minimum.
People sh.ould l?e enf:ouraged to refraln. from STAC/SCG/RCG
. . contact with wild animals and birds during the
Interaction with initial incident and for a significant time after. An RSPCA
Local Wildlife | wildlife, birds, | " oo Ne'dent andior a signimcant o A" | DEFRA and Animal and
people interacting with wildlife, birds or pests
pests Plant Health Agency

Table 6 — Water Supplies

Public Water
Supplies

Public concerns
regarding
contaminated
water

It is unlikely that public water supplies will be
affected, providing supplies come from mains taps.

STAC/SCG

South West Water

UK Health Security
Agency

Environment Agency
LRF — Alternative Water

Supply

Private Water
Supplies

Public concerns
regarding
contaminated
water

Some private supplies are present around
Devonport. These are supplied by natural springs,
private wells, and other ground water sources.
Risk of contamination is minimal as radiation needs
to enter the ground water which would take time.

STAC/SCG

Environmental Health
Service will provide advice
for those with private
water supplies.

The UK Health Security
Agency will support PCC
with respect to sampling,
analysis of results and
establish if safe to drink.
Recovery Coordinating
Group will take samples if
necessary to sample water
after the emergency.

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 144




OFFICIAL

Table 7 - Waste

Page 149

Domestic
Woaste

Household
waste

Waste collection should be suspended in the initial
response phase to allow responders to access the
area and to protect the refuse collectors.

Public should be advised that waste should be left
in situ until waste removal can be completed
safely.

STAC/RCG

The continuation of waste
collection is dependable
on risk levels and specifics
of the emergency.

Drainage Waste

Are sewage
works likely to
be
contaminated?

South West Water will work alongside other
agencies to check the risk of water and sludge
materials to see if contaminated is present.

STAC/RCG

Environment Agency
DEFRA

South West Water will
advise on radioactive
waste entering the sewage
system.

The majority of
contaminated products
will settle out as sludge in
the sewage treatment
plant.

Disposal of the sludge can
be managed post event.

Contaminated

Contaminated

Following a radiation incident, the Environment
Agency (EA), along with UK Health Security
Agency (UKHSA), other partners and contractors,
will develop a sampling and monitoring strategy to
establish contamination levels.

STAC/RCG

Post emergency, Plymouth
City Council, Cornwall
Council, Devon County
Council and South Hams
District Council can
investigate and determine
if the land is to be
designated as

Land Waste Land — . _ contaminated land. If PCC
EA will advise on the impact of radioactive . .
S . . designate contaminated
contamination in the environment and work with . NP
. . . . land as ‘Special Site’ under
partner organisations to identify feasible .
remediation options the Environmental
P ) Protection Act of 1990
then the Environment
Agency will be responsible
for remediation.
DOSEP v8.0. Page 145



OFFICIAL

Page 150

Table 8 - Gardens, Allotments, Agriculture

Gardeners should not work in their garden
followmg the emergency u.ntll receiving STAC/RCG
Gardens, home instructions stating that it is safe to do so..
UKHSA RCE
Gardens grown vegetables .
. : Environment Agency
and allotments. People should refrain from eating vegetables or
. ; . Food Standards Agency
fruit from outdoors during an off-site nuclear
emergency until advised that it safe to do so.
Livestock should be left in their enclosures until
radiation results are known.
The Food Standards Agency will provide a case- EE?SR:'IA\SCG/RCG
by-case base to assess the potential for meat or )
. Animal Health and
by-products to be contaminated. .
. . . Trading Standards
Livestock Adpvice on livestock. Services
Using the Food & Environment Protection Act
- - Food Standards Agency
1985 contaminated movement restrictions can be .
. Food & Environmental
placed on livestock and slaughter for human .
. NS . Protection Act 1985
consumption can be prohibited if there is a
potential that food products from the animals may
present a risk to the public
Advice will be provided to farmers and farming STAC
unions via local TV and radio. No food or crops Food Standards Agency
Crops Are farm crops still | should be harvested in the affected area until Food & Environmental
P edible? confirmed as being safe to do so. Exposed food Protection Act 1985
should not be consumed or harvested but should | DEFRA
be left in situ. UKHSA RCE
Markets should stop selling exposed consumables | STAC/SCG
What should . . .
Outdoor stored or displayed outdoors until advised Food Standards Agency
outdoor market : .
Markets owners do? otherwise Food & Environmental
’ Protection Act 1985
DOSEP v8.0. Page 146




OFFICIAL

Table 9 - Food

Page 151

Food — General

Is food at home
safe?

People in the locality of the site are advised that all
foods stored inside the home, shops and other
buildings will be safe. Foods that may have been
carried outside since the incident, but which are
packaged and securely sealed (in tins, cartons,
bottles, boxes) and protected from any particles in
the air are also safe.

STAC/SCG/RCG
Food Standards Agency

Fish caught from the River Tamar or Plymouth

STAC/SCG/RCG
DEFRA
Animal Health and Trading

produced milk

It takes at least 24hrs for the contaminant to
appear in milk and may take a few days for peak
concentrations to be reached as of a result of
animals grazing on contaminated land.

Are locally Sound area should not be consumed while the .
. . . - Standards Services
Fish sourced fish safe | emergency is on-going. Fishing may resume once
> ) Food Standards Agency
to eat? sampling of fish stocks have been deemed to not :
. s Centre for Environment,
contain contamination. o
Fisheries and Aquaculture
Science
Milk bought from shops should be safe to drink.
Milk productions within the affected area should
be stopped until monitoring results are known.
STAC/RCG
Contamination of milk may occur in a downwind Animal Health and Trading
. Safety of locally Lo . .
Milk sector as a result of animal ingestion. Standards Services

Food Standards Agency

Table 10 - Housing Displacement and Financial Loss

Temporary
Housing

Displacement

If | have to move
out of my house,
where do | go?

Displaced people will be advised to stay with
friends or family. If this is not possible then
members of the public or visitors to the area
should take shelter in any appropriate building.
Assistance centres may be established for those
unable to make their own shelter arrangements.

SCG/RCG
PCC Assistance Centre
Plan

Long Term
Housing

Displacement

Long term
housing

Long term options for displaced people include
staying with friends or family, alternative
accommodation (hotel, B&B, hostel, local
authority provision, etc.)

SCG/RCG
LAs’ Rest Centre Plans
LAs’ Housing Teams

People losing

People who believe they are at a financial loss or
have lost business revenue should consult
insurance companies first. They should make notes

F|nar.1C|a'I money or of all expenses caused during the emergency. RCG
Implications : ; ) .
income Costs directly attributable to the off-site nuclear
emergency may be recoverable from the site
operators.
DOSEP v8.0. Page 147




OFFICIAL

Page 152

Table || - Radio and Television Stations Broadcasting Emergency Information

Radio Stations

Which Radio
Stations will
provide more
information?

FM/DAB

e Heart (97.0 and 96.6)

e BBC Radio Devon (103.4 and 95.7)

e BBC Radio Cornwall (95.2 and 103. 9)

e Greatest Hits Radio Cornwall East (102.2)
L]

Greatest Hits Radio Plymouth (106.7)

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)

TV Stations

Which TV
Stations will
provide more
information?

e BBCI
o [TV
e Sky News

Radiation Emergency
Booklet (June 2023)

Table 12 - Media Messaging

Media Messages

What
announcements
will be made via
media?

e Your food and water supply

e The delivery and consumption of
stable iodine tablets (SITs)

e Care of farm animals and pets

e Road travel arrangements

e Public transport

e  General shelter protective actions.
“Go in, stay in and tune in”
e The care of children at school

SCG

Radiation Emergency Booklet (June
2023)

Media Cell

Public Calls

Why shouldn’t
the public make
mobile or landline
phone calls?

The public are requested to avoid or
reduce the number of mobile or land
line phone calls because the phone
system could become overloaded. If
this happens the emergency services
and other responders may not be able
to contact each other.

Radiation Emergency Booklet (June
2023)
Phone providers

Devonport Site

How Large is the
Devonport Site?

The site encompasses approximately
740 acres, with 3.5 miles of water
frontage along the eastern bank of the
River Tamar.

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 148



OFFICIAL Page 153

Table 13 — Radiation Units

The unit by which the amount of
radioactivity is measured is the
Becquerel (Bq)

| Bq = | atomic disintegration/second.

The sievert (Sv) is the unit of radiation
dose, used to measure the effect of
ionising radiation on the body
Radiation Emergency Booklet (June

Radiation Quantities and One Sv is a large quantity so often the | 2023)

Measurements Units term millisievert (mSv) or microsievert | STAC/SCG
(uSv) is used. UK Health Security Agency
ImSv = 1/1000 Sv

[pSv = 1/1,000,000 Sv

| mSv is less than half the average
annual dose from natural radiation in
the UK. | pSv is approximately equal to
a tenth of the dose incurred during a
flight from the UK to Spain.

DOSEP v8.0. Page 149



OFFICIAL

APPENDIX C - CALL CASCADE CONTACT DETAILS

(REDACTED IN OFFICIAL EDITION)

Blue Light Services

Organisation

Primary Number

Secondary Number

Email Address

Person Contacted

Devon & Somerset

. . REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
Fire & Rescue Service
Cornwall Fire & Rescue Service | REDACTED REDACTED
SWAST REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
HM Coastguard — Falmouth REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
British Transport Police REDACTED REDACTED

Email Address

Organisation

Primary Number

Secondary Number

Person Contacted

University Hospitals Plymouth

Environmental Hazards

REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
NHS Trust
NHS England Southwest REDACTED REDACTED
Livewell Southwest REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
UK Health Security Agency REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
SW Centre
UK Health Security Agency
Radiation, Chemical & REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED

DEVONPORT OFF-SITE EMERGENCY PLAN V.8.0.

¥GT abed



OFFICIAL

Local Authorities

Organisation

Primary Number

Secondary Number

Email Address

Person Contacted

Devon County Council REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
Plymouth City Council REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
Cornwall County Council REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
South Hams District & West | peny s o1Ep REDACTED REDACTED

Devon Borough Council

Utilities

Organisation

Primary Number

Secondary Number

Email address

Person Contacted

Wales & West (Gas) REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
South West Water REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
National Highways REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
Network Rail REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
National Grid Electricity REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED

Distribution (Western Power)

Military / MOD

Organisation

Primary Number

Secondary Number

Email address

Person Contacted

JRLO (South)

REDACTED

REDACTED

REDACTED

DOSEP v8.0.

Page 151

GGT obed



OFFICIAL

Government Organisations and Allied Agencies

Organisation Primary Number | Secondary Number | Email address Person Contacted
Environment Agency REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
Met Office REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
Tamar Bridge & Ferry Joint REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
Committee

Office for Nuclear Regulation REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED

Food Standards Agency REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED
MHCLG

Resilience & Recovery REDACTED REDACTED REDACTED

Directorate (RED)

DEFRA REDACTED REDACTED

Cascade Version Control

The table below details amendments to the call cascade following plan v 8.0 publication in November 2024.

Version Updated by Amendment Date Published
8.0 Civil Protection Service Original Edition November 2024
DOSEP v8.0. Page 152

9GT abed



Page 157

The following relates to exempt or confidential matters (Para(s) 1 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Govt Act 1972). Any
breach of confidentiality could prejudice the Council/person/body concerned & might amount to a breach of the councillors
/lemployees codes of conduct.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL
PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT - DEVONPORT OFFSITE EMERGENCY PLAN
SECTION ONE: INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROPOSAL

Author(s): Dave Bate, Acting Civil Department and service: Civil Protection Date of 05/11/2024
Th . Protection Service Manager assessment:
e person completing the
EIA template.
Lead Officer: Ruth Harrell, Director of Signature: Qorve) ) Approval 06/11/2024
Head of Service. Servi Public Health — date:
ead of Service, Service
Director, or Strategic
Director.
Overview: The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2019, (REPPIR), place a statutory duty on

nuclear site operators, to prepare an on-site emergency plan. This obligation extends to local authorities with nuclear
operators in their area to prepare a written document, or suite of documents, which constitute an off-site emergency
plan designed to mitigate the consequences of a radiation emergency outside the nuclear site.

The Devonport off-site Emergency Plan (DOSEP) details how partner agencies work together during the response and
recovery phases of a radiation emergency and also outlines their roles and responsibilities. This ensures, in the event of a
radiation emergency, that members of the public are protected from the effects of that emergency and a full range of
functions and services are restored off-site in a timely and structured manner.

Following Exercise Short Sermon 2022 which tested version 7.1 of the plan and subsequent debrief recommendations, a
full review of the DOSEP took place resulting in a newly revised version 8.

Decision required: Approve the revised Devonport Offsite Emergency Plan v8 (DOSEP)

SECTION TWO: EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT SCREENING TOOL

Potential external impacts: Yes No No

Does the proposal have the potential to negatively impact service users, communities or
residents with protected characteristics?

Potential internal impacts: Yes No No

April 2024 Page | of 7

60€ abed



OFFICIAL

SECTION THREE: FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

As this is a statutory plan, an EIA is not considered a
requirement for this executive decision to proceed

April 2024 Page 2 of 7

0TE abed



OFFICIAL

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Age

Plymouth

16.4 per cent of people in Plymouth
are children aged under [5.

65.1 per cent are adults aged |5 to 64.
18.5 percent are adults aged 65 and
over.

2.4 percent of the resident population
are 85 and over.

South West

15.9 per cent of people are aged 0 to
|4, 61.8 per cent are aged |5 to 64.
22.3 per cent are aged 65 and over.

England

| 7.4 per cent of people are aged 0 to
14.

64.2 per cent of people are aged 15 to
64.

18.4 per cent of people are aged 65
and over.

(2021 Census)

April 2024 Page 3 of 7

T1€ abed



OFFICIAL

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Care
experienced
individuals

(Note that as per
the Independent
Review of
Children’s Social
Care
recommendations,
Plymouth City
Council is treating
care experience
as though it is a
protected
characteristic).

It is estimated that 26 per cent of the
homeless population in the UK have care
experience. In Plymouth there are currently 7
per cent of care leavers open to the service
(6 per cent aged 18-20 and 12 per cent of
those aged 21+) who are in unsuitable
accommodation.

The Care Review reported that 4| per cent
of 19-21 year old care leavers are not in
education, employment or training (NEET)
compared to |12 per cent of all other young
people in the same age group.

In Plymouth there are currently 50 per cent
of care leavers aged 18-21 Not in Education
Training or Employment (54 per cent of all
those care leavers aged 18-24 who are open
to the service).

There are currently 195 care leavers aged |8
to 20 (statutory service) and 58 aged 21| to 24
(extended offer). There are more care leavers
aged 21 to 24 who could return for support
from services if they wished to.

Disability

9.4 per cent of residents in Plymouth have
their activities limited ‘a lot’ because of a
physical or mental health problem.

12.2 per cent of residents in Plymouth have
their activities limited ‘a little’ because of a
physical or mental health problem (2021
Census)

April 2024 Page 4 of 7

21¢ abed



OFFICIAL

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Gender
reassignment

0.5 per cent of residents in Plymouth have a
gender identity that is different from their sex
registered at birth. 0.1 per cent of residents
identify as a trans man, 0.1 per cent identify as
non-binary and, 0.1 per cent identify as a
trans women (2021 Census).

Marriage and
civil partnership

40.1 per cent of residents have never married
and never registered a civil partnership. 10
per cent are divorced, 6 percent are
widowed, with 2.5 per cent are separated but
still married.

0.49 per cent of residents are, or were,
married or in a civil partnerships of the same
sex. 0.06 per cent of residents are in a civil
partnerships with the opposite sex (2021
Census).

Pregnancy and
maternity

The total fertility rate (TFR) for England was
.62 children per woman in 2021]. The total
fertility rate (TFR) for Plymouth in 2021 was
l.5.

April 2024 Page 5 of 7

cT¢ obed



OFFICIAL

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Race

In 2021, 94.9 per cent of Plymouth’s
population identified their ethnicity as White,
2.3 per cent as Asian and |.| per cent as
Black (2021 Census)

People with a mixed ethnic background
comprised 1.8 per cent of the population. |
per cent of the population use a different
term to describe their ethnicity (2021
Census)

92.7 per cent of residents speak English as
their main language. 2021 Census data shows
that after English, Polish, Romanian, Chinese,
Portuguese, and Arabic are the most spoken
languages in Plymouth (2021 Census).

Religion or
belief

48.9 per cent of the Plymouth population
stated they had no religion. 42.5 per cent of
the population identified as Christian (2021
Census).

Those who identified as Muslim account for
|.3 per cent of Plymouth’s population while
Hindu, Buddhist, Jewish or Sikh combined
totalled less than | per cent (2021 Census).

Sex

51 per cent of our population are women and
49 per cent are men (2021 Census).

Sexual
orientation

88.95 per cent of residents aged 16 years and
over in Plymouth describe their sexual
orientation as straight or heterosexual. 2.06
per cent describe their sexuality as bisexual,
1.97 per cent of people describe their sexual
orientation as gay or lesbian. 0.42 per cent of
residents describe their sexual orientation
using a different term (2021 Census).

April 2024 Page 6 of 7

yTE abed



OFFICIAL

SECTION FOUR: HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Human Rights

Implications

Mitigation Actions

Timescale and

responsible department

N/A

None required

N/A

SECTION FIVE: OUR EQUALITY OBJECTIVES

Equality objectives

Implications

Mitigation Actions

Timescale and

responsible department

Work together in partnership to:

. promote equality, diversity and
inclusion

" facilitate community cohesion

= support people with different
backgrounds and lived experiences
to get on well together

N/A

None required

N/A

Give specific consideration to care
experienced people to improve their life
outcomes, including access to training,
employment and housing.

N/A

None required

N/A

Build and develop a diverse workforce
that represents the community and
citizens it serves.

N/A

None required

N/A

Support diverse communities to feel
confident to report crime and anti-social
behaviour, including hate crime and hate
incidents, and work with partners to
ensure Plymouth is a city where
everybody feels safe and welcome.

N/A

None required

N/A

April 2024 Page 7 of 7

GTE abed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1a L29 24/25 - Devonport Offsite Emergency Plan V8
	DOSEP  V8 - OFFICIAL MARKED REDACTED EDITION
	1  PART 1 - INTRODUCTION
	1.1 Foreword
	1.2 Aim
	1.3 Objectives
	1.4 The Devonport Site
	1.5 Regulated Nuclear Activity
	1.6 Illustrations & Diagrams
	1.7  Glossary of Terms
	1.8 List of Acronyms
	1.9  Plan Production and Maintenance
	1.9.1 Plan Distribution
	1.9.2 Updates and Amendments
	1.9.3 Document Version Control

	1.10 Reviewing and Testing
	1.10.1 Activation, Immediate Actions, Command and Control
	1.10.2 Warning, Informing and Media
	1.10.3 Public Urgent Protective Actions & Health Protection
	1.10.4 Recovery

	1.11 Public Information
	1.12 Local Liaison Committee (LLC)
	1.13 Emergency Notification System, Public Alerting and the Devonport siren
	1.14 The Emergency Notification System (ENS)
	1.15 Emergency Alerts
	1.16 The Devonport Sirens
	1.17 Berthing
	1.18 Emergency Planning Zones
	1.19 Site Standby and Devonport Site Accident Arrangements
	1.19.1 Site Standby and Reactor Safety Alerts
	1.19.2 Devonport Site Accident
	1.19.3 Classifying a Devonport Site Accident

	1.20 Off-site Nuclear Emergency and Declaration Qualifiers
	1.20.1 Off-site Nuclear Emergency
	1.20.2 Supplementary Declaration Qualifiers

	1.21 Activating the Plan
	2 PART 2 - ACTIVATION, ACTIONS, COMMAND AND CONTROL
	2.1 Plan Activation
	2.1.1 Full Plan Activation
	2.1.2 Partial Plan Activation
	2.1.3 Activation for a false alarm

	2.2 Collaborative Decision Making
	2.3 Devonport off-site Nuclear Emergency Escalation
	2.4 STAGE 1 Incident Alert - Local Response
	2.4.1 Actions in Response to an Abnormal Event or False Alarm

	2.5  STAGE 2 Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
	2.5.1 Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
	2.5.2 Convene a DOSEP Restricted Pre-Event Assessment Teleconference (PEAT)
	2.5.3 Publish the Resilience Direct Devonport Nuclear Emergency Response Page
	2.5.4 Restricted PEAT Decisions
	2.5.5 Convene a DOSEP multi-agency PEAT

	2.6  STAGE 3 Major Incident Declared
	2.6.1 Declare a Major Incident and escalate to Tactical Coordinating Group (TCG)
	2.6.2 Convene the Tactical Coordinating Group
	2.6.3 Off-site Response - Tactical Coordinating Group
	2.6.4 Opening the Tactical Coordination Centres and Resilient Locations
	2.6.5 TCG Support Cells and Working Groups
	2.6.6 Devonport Accident Control Centre – On-site to Off-site Tactical Link
	2.6.7 Forward Command Post for Devonport Site
	2.6.8 Additional Response Centres
	2.6.9 Convene the Strategic Coordinating Group
	2.6.10 Multi-agency Off-site Response – Strategic Coordinating Group
	2.6.11 Preparation for initiating Urgent Protective Actions
	2.6.12 Emergency Plans Activated in Support of Health Protection
	2.6.13 Opening the Strategic Coordination Centre
	2.6.14 SCG Support Cells and Working Groups

	2.7 STAGE 4 Off-Site Nuclear Emergency Declaration
	2.7.1 Off-Site Nuclear Emergency
	2.7.2 Check Major Incident Declaration
	2.7.3 Implement Urgent Protective Actions
	2.7.4 Off-site Incident - Strategic Coordinating Group
	2.7.5 Open the Strategic Coordination Centre
	2.7.6 Establish Working Groups and Cells in support of SCC
	2.7.7 Command, Control and Coordination

	2.8 STAGE 4 Criteria for Handover from Response to Recovery
	3 PART 3 – HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC
	3.1 Protective actions
	3.2 Preparation for initiating Urgent Protective Actions
	3.3 Protective Actions in the Devonport DEPZ after OSNE
	3.4 Stable Iodine
	3.5 Stable Iodine Tablet Distribution - On Land - Devonport DEPZ
	3.6 Stable Iodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft
	3.7 Communicating Health Information
	3.8 Education and Early Years Settings
	3.9 Population Radiation Monitoring
	3.10 Health Protection Information
	3.11 Protective Actions in the Outline Planning Zone
	3.12 Health Communication Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ
	3.13 Preplanning for Protective Actions beyond the DEPZ but within the OPZ
	3.14 The UK Health Security Agency Role
	3.15 The Science and Technical Advice Cell
	3.16 Emergency Plans Activated in Support of Health Protection
	3A  HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO BUOYS DEPZ
	3A.1.  Advance Warning for Dispersal from or Evacuate the Bovisand / Staddon Areas
	3A.2.  Advance Warning to Evacuate Drakes Island
	3A.3.  Protective Actions in the CHARLIE, DELTA & ECHO Buoy DEPZ after OSNE
	3A.4. Stable Iodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft
	3A.5.  Stable Iodine Tablet Deliveries
	3A.6. Identified Stable Iodine Delivery Locations
	3B HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC
	22 & 23 ANCHORAGE DEPZ
	3B.1.  Advance Warning to Evacuate the Area
	3B.2.  Protective Actions in the 22 & 23 Anchorage DEPZ after OSNE
	3B.3. Stable Iodine Tablet Distribution - Water Craft
	4. PART 4 – COMMUNICATIONS AND WARNING AND INFORMING
	4.1. Information to the Public and Media in the Event of a Radiation Emergency
	4.2. Communications and Warning and Informing Objectives
	4.2.1  Stakeholder and Communication Channels

	4.3. Communication Activation
	4.3.1. Communication Activation
	4.3.2. Activation for a false alarm

	4.4. Incident Alert - Local Activity
	4.4.1. Actions for Communication Leads

	4.5. Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan Activation
	4.5.1. Actions for Communication Leads

	4.6.  Major Incident Declared
	4.6.1. Tactical Level
	4.6.2. Strategic Level
	4.6.3. Template Media Statements
	4.6.4. Role of the Communications and Media Cell
	4.6.5. Staffing the Communications and Media Cell

	4.7. Off-site Nuclear Emergency Declaration
	4.7.2. Media Briefing and Interviews
	4.7.3. Coordination with National Agencies/Government
	4.7.4. Internal Communications
	4.7.5. The Emergency Notification System
	4.7.6. Emergency Alerts
	4.7.7. Emergency Alerts REPPIR Request Process
	4.7.8. Emergency Alerts SCG Request Process
	4.7.9. Actions for Communication Leads

	4.8. Pre-prepared Media Statement Templates
	4.8.1. Incident Limited to the Devonport Site
	4.8.2. A Nuclear Emergency is Declared Affecting Areas Outside the Dockyard
	4.8.4. Off-site Nuclear Emergency
	4.8.5. Off-site Nuclear Emergency

	5 PART 5 – EMERGENCY PLANNING ZONE MAPS, MAPPING AND THE MAPPING CELL
	5.1 Mapping to Support a Response to an Off-site Nuclear Emergency at the Devonport Site
	5.2 Purpose of Mapping
	5.3 Devonport Detailed Emergency Planning Zone
	5.4 Devonport Outline Planning Zone
	5.5  CHARLIE, DELTA and ECHO Buoys Detailed Emergency Planning Zone
	5.6 22 and 23 Anchorage Detailed Emergency Planning Zone
	5.7  Plymouth Offshore Mooring and Anchorage Outline Planning Zone
	5.8 Mapping and the Multi-Agency Information Cell
	5.9 Multi-Agency Mapping Cell
	5.10 Lead Mapping Officer
	5.11 Mapping for a Radiation Emergency
	5.12 Demographic Mapping, Focussed Engagement Areas and SIT Delivery Zones
	5.13 Pre-prepared Mapping
	5.14 Further Information Sources
	5.15 Additional Mapping Layers
	5.16 Example Map - Focussed Engagement Areas – Schools - Devonport DEPZ
	5.17 Example Map Stable Iodine Tablet Distribution Zones - Devonport DEPZ
	6 PART 6 – RESPONDING AGENCIES’ RADIATION PROTECTION AND THE ROYG SYSTEM
	6.1 Radiation Protection Advice
	6.2 ROYG System: Issuing Radiological Information to Off-site Responders
	6.3 The ROYG Method
	6.4 Communicating ROYG
	6.5 Defining the Off-site Areas
	6.6 Level of Radiological Hazard
	6.7 Mapping ROYG Areas
	6.8 Duration of ROYG
	6.9 ROYG Chart 1
	6.10 ROYG Chart 2
	6.11 ROYG Chart 3
	6.12 ROYG Chart 4
	6.13 ROYG Chart 5
	6.14 ROYG Chart 6
	7 RESPONDER CAPABILITY ASSURANCE
	7.1 REPPIR Capability Requirements
	7.2 Organisational Capabilities
	7.3 Annual Capability Assurance
	8 PARTNER AGENCIES ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	8.1 CCA Category 1 Responders
	8.1.1 British Transport Police
	8.1.2 Cornwall Council
	8.1.3 Devon and Cornwall Police
	8.1.4  Devon County Council
	8.1.5  Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue
	8.1.6 Environment Agency
	8.1.7 Livewell Southwest
	8.1.8 MCA - HM Coastguard
	8.1.9 NHS England / NHS Cornwall & Isles of Scilly / NHS Devon (ICB)
	8.1.10 Plymouth City Council
	8.1.11  South Hams District and West Devon Borough Councils
	8.1.12 United Kingdom Health Security Agency - South West
	8.1.13 United Kingdom Health Security Agency - Radiation, Chemicals and Environmental Hazards
	8.1.14 University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust

	8.2 CCA Category 2 Responders
	8.2.1 Met Office
	8.2.2 National Grid
	8.2.3 National Highways
	8.2.4 Network Rail
	8.2.5 Office for Nuclear Regulation
	8.2.6 South West Water
	8.2.7 Wales and West Utilities

	8.3 Allied Responding Organisations
	8.3.1 MOD & Devonport Royal Dockyard Ltd (Babcock)
	8.3.2 Food Standards Agency
	8.3.3 Ministry of Defence HQSW Joint Regional Liaison Officers (MOD JRLO)
	8.3.4 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
	8.3.5 Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry Joint Committee (Tamar Crossings)

	APPENDIX A - COMBINED TACTICAL & STRATEGIC COMMAND RESPONSE ACTION CHECKLIST
	A1 STAGE 1 Incident Alert - Local Response
	A2 STAGE 2 Activate the Devonport Off-site Emergency Plan
	A3 STAGE 3 Major Incident Declared
	A4 STAGE 4 Off-Site Nuclear Emergency Declaration
	A5 STAGE 4 Criteria for Handover from Response to Recovery
	APPENDIX B - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
	Table 1 - Sheltering
	Table 2 – Health and Stable Iodine
	Table 3 – University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust
	Table 4 – Children at School and Vulnerable People
	Table 5 – Pets and Wildlife
	Table 6 – Water Supplies
	Table 7 – Waste
	Table 8 – Gardens, Allotments, Agriculture
	Table 9 – Food
	Table 10 – Housing Displacement and Financial Loss
	Table 11 – Radio and Television Stations Broadcasting Emergency Information
	Table 12 – Media Messaging
	Table 13 – Radiation Units

	APPENDIX C - CALL CASCADE CONTACT DETAILS

	DOSEP v8.0. OFFICIAL SENSITIVE MARKED EDITION
	DOSEP V8 - EIA


